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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

DaChan Food (Asia) Limited (the “Company” or “DaChan”) is
a multinational conglomerate with operations in the People's
Republic of China (“PRC"), Vietnam and Malaysia. The Company's
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 2007. The Company
(together with its subsidiaries and its jointly-controlled entities
the "Group”) is a leading fully integrated animal protein product
provider whose products range from feeds, poultry and advanced
nutritional formulas for aquatic animals to processed foods.

The Group has more than 30 factories across the PRC, Vietnam
and Malaysia. Its animal feeds are mainly sold under the brands of
“Green Knight” (4k55=1) , "Dr. Nupak” (f#i7i8+) and “TSOS",
and chicken meat and processed foods are mainly sold under the
brands of “Sisters’ Kitchen” (fH#KEE) .

The Group distributes its products through well known domestic
and international chain stores, wet markets, online stores,
distributors, and supermarkets. The Group also maintains “Safe
and Fresh Restaurant” in the wet markets of major cities in the
PRC to coordinate sales and marketing activities. Through its
established and comprehensive sales channels, the Group is well
positioned for rapid growth.

The Group attaches the highest importance to the quality of its
food products. The Group’s high standard quality control have
earned numerous industry awards and recognitions. In 2009, the
Group introduced a pioneering product safety traceability system
for its “Sisters’ Kitchen” products which enables consumers to
trace product information such as the name of the farmer, location
of the chicken farm, the feeds consumed by the animals as well

as the name of the food-processing factories.
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The Group endeavours to develops brand new high value-added
products by constantly utilizing the latest food science and
technology. By promptly addressing the ever-changing market
demand, the Group has greatly enhanced its level of customer

services.

VISION

As a company integrating the entire food production chain, from
agricultural source in the upstream, to the food researchers
and manufacturers in the middle to the mass consumers in the
downstream, DaChan links every section attentively in order to
enhance the efficiency and the value of the entire food production
chain, as well as providing consumers with safe, nutritious and
healthy products and services. We hope each party involved along
the production chain, including our staff, investing shareholders,
suppliers, and farmers at the source of production, will be proud
of cooperating with us. Besides, the Group also emphasises
eco-environmental protection and proactively fulfils its social
responsibilities. Meanwhile, DaChan will be the company which
invests most resources on the innovation and application of
biotechnology and information technology across the industry and
committed to becoming one of the most respected companies
and most supportive of staff development in the Greater China
Region!
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Corporate Profile

BT B COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

. SRBEAAESmENEE o Market leader with high brand publicity

e XBREER —KEEEBASK e Vertically integrated business with highly efficient mode of
—?—%‘*Eﬁ%ﬁ operation

s EREEEMEEE  URAIBRZRE o Strict and high standard of quality control and traceability

B
=

system

e HRPEEBBNEEFERTELEH e  Stable and long-standing relationship with nationally and
E2RED internationally renowned customers

e HERMBEBMABERZRIERME A o Extendable and scalable production capability and facilities in

BRTE BEESERALTHNEZR strategic locations across the PRC, Vietnam and Malaysia
25
e BAERKBEYERWMENEEASR o Experienced and dedicated management team

KB (Z3M) BBR A 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

ARBTFT —E-REF —T—AF #H)
RMB'000 2016 2015 Changes
SN Turnover 8,124,053 8,899,047 8.7%
/NGy Profit/(loss) attributable to

wHL(E18) owners of the Company 53,899 (153,549) 135.1%
AEMHRE Total assets 3,660,135 3,724,576 1.7%
BEFHAE Net assets 1,761,395 1,704,521 3.3%
SRERRTN S (EE) Basic profit/(loss)

(AR¥5T) per share (RMB) 0.05 (0.15) 133%
BEAELDRR (%) Return on total assets (%) 3.21% -2.98% 208%
HEZSE1FR (%) Return on equity (%) 6.66% 6.52% 202%
*EEERLE *Gearing ratio 45.6% 60.3% 24%
BREEFE(AREKT) Net assets per share (RMB) 1.73 1.69 2%

* AERSLEE =T BIEE AEFE * Gearing Ratio = Interest bearing debt/net assets
BEWAREME FlR) B R 2
Turnover and Gross Profit Margin Net Profit and Net Profit Margin
(AR¥EEBRT) (AR¥EER)
(RMB million) (%) (RMB million) (%)
12,000 ﬁﬁs 1?,97?2 151'%"6 112 200 -~ e | 20
= 117
10,000 - |10 R 3 '
100 - -1.0
8,000 18 0.3%
50 |- 3 -05
6,000 -6 o
4,000 - -4 50 L Jos
2,000 -2 100 [ oo 1.0
(94)
0 150 L i J15
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
o a EAEC) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
ot o FRERF B GRIE(%)
Turnover Gross Profit Margin (%) Profﬁifor the year Net Profit Margin (%)
KW N\ FETS 4 5B RBWNEH
Turnover by Business Segment Turnover by Business Segment
15.7% 12.2%
26.8% 37.3%
2016 2015
57.5% 50.5%
R Meat L E Meat
AT Feeds to External Customers AT Feeds to External Customers
MI®&M Processed Foods MMI®M Processed Foods

ZZE—XEFEFR Annual Report 2016
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To our shareholders,

The year 2016 was an extraordinary year for DaChan. During the
year, the white feather broilers market was highly unpredictable.
Consumption demand showed a stable and upward trend, while
supply was affected by the epidemics in the main importing
countries and the reduction of capacity in the country, and
shortage in the supply of grandfather generation breeder chickens
resulted in the continuous higher price of day-old chicks. The
overall price of chicken meat in China could not catch up with the
upstream market due to the increase in the amount of chicken
meat imported from overseas. For members of the white feather
broilers industry, the most depressing time for the industry has
passed. DaChan needs to continuously enhance its internal
management, adjust the product structure, focus on the quality
of products and put more efforts on expanding new markets
and new customers in order to achieve better results under the
challenging macro environment and industry environment, and

provide reliable and high quality food to our consumers.

Over the past three years, the white feather meat chicken industry
in China in general suffered losses which led to the accelerated
elimination of small and medium enterprises and farmers and
increasing industry concentration. DaChan closed down less
competitive factories and focused on investing resources in
factories with better competitive edge, while targeting the brand
development and food productization so as to increase the
value-added products and market recognition. With such efforts,
DaChan was able to gradually improve the structure of products
and its brand value in the past three years despite that the
operating results experienced unprecedented challenges. In 2016,
we were delighted a turnaround in the meat product segment

from loss to profit in general, which laid a solid foundation for

— NEF 3R Annual Report 2016
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

DaChan to resume profitability. The improvement of the results
of the meat product segment was due to the adjustment of
production capacity and the increase in sales of our valued sales
channels, and we were proud of the right move for adjustment in

the past which yielded achievements today.

The food segment continued to perform well in 2016, with an
increase of around 18% in the turnover as compared with the
same period of last year and accounted for around 16% of the
Group's total income, representing an increase of around 4
percentage points as compared with the same period of last year.
Export sales to Japan maintained a strong momentum, with an
increase of around 14% in income as compared with the same
period of last year, and such growth is expected to continue.
In addition, the food segment timely launched new products
including “better me"” while maintaining the market shares of key
products, so as to convey the message to consumers of being
positive and optimistic and showing a “Better Me"”, and such
promotion received a positive response from the market. The food
segment is positioned for providing integrated solution for meals
to clients. Leveraging on the strong research and development
capability, quality control management and brand channels, there
will be a rich diversity of products from the food segment of
DaChan in the future, and the sales channels will be expanded
to online and offline integration. We will create more featured
products so as to satisfy the demand of various customers in

different regions.

The feeds segment performed relatively stable in 2016, among
which, the scale of the Southeast Asian market continued to
expand. The turnover and gross profit had substantial growth.
We strived to overcome challenges in the Chinese market. In
face of the increasingly severe market competition, we actively
adjusted the structures of sales and customers which caused a
short-term fluctuation to a certain extent in our turnover. However,
this would not affect our determination of adhering to the long-
term strategy. For the positioning of DaChan’s feeds segment,

we will not start price wars with other competitors, and instead
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we make use of the research and development capability of
DaChan to develop prime products. DaChan is focusing on the
marketing and promotion of sow and piglet feeds based on the
exclusive pre-digestion in intestines biotechnology in order to
create the number one brand of sow and piglet feeds in China.
At the same time, we make use of the emission-free pig rearing
and breeding and rearing organic cycle demonstration base at
our advanced research centre to establish a real sustainable
and environmentally-friendly breeding and rearing system in the
industry. We expect that the above measure can reflect its market
value in the coming future and we are confident about it.

The core brand values of DaChan, being assurance and
traceability, will not change. We will promote the strategy of
food productization and brand development as always. We will
cooperate with our partners with an open-minded attitude in
respect of the feeds, meat product and food segments so as to
continue to develop high quality products and products which
can gain confidence of the market and consumers. We also strive
to bring returns to our shareholders and achieve the corporate
value and social value of DaChan. We never give up and always
work hard in this regard. | would like to express my gratitude to
all shareholders and parties who are supporting DaChan for their
support.

Han Jia-Hwan
April 2017

— NEF 3R Annual Report 2016
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—EB-RE —E-HEF ERA DL
2016 2015 % change
TEWA(ARETTT) Turnover (RMB'000) 8,124,053 8,899,047 8.7
EF(AREFT) Gross profit (RMB'000) 754,510 708,203 6.5
EFNE (%) Gross profit margin (%) 9.3 8.0
AN BRI ER SR (E51E) Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders
(AR®ET7T) of the Company (RMB'000) 53,899 (153,549) N/A
£ % R 1% B SR W 5 1) ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT AND STRATEGY
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

DIRECTION

In 2016, while the economic growth in China continued to slow
down, the weak growth in the market demand for the white
feather broilers showed a stabilising trend. As for the supply
side of the white-feather broilers, as affected by the consecutive
outbreak of highly pathogenic avian flu in the US and France in
2015, the import of poultry products from these two countries
was suspended, which caused a minimal amount of grandfather
generation breeder chickens over the last ten years in 2016. This
was an important factor in affecting the trend of the white-feather
broiler market. The expectation of supply shortage of day-old
chicks from the market supported the price of commercial day-old
chicks to remain at a high level of approximately RMB3 to RMB4
per bird for a rather long period of time in 2016. However, as
affected by a record high of imports of chicken meat over the last
five years, the growth in the domestic price of chicken meat was

weak.

From 2013 to 2015, the white feather meat chicken industry in
China in general met with losses which lead to the accelerated
elimination of small and medium enterprises and farmers so as
to increase the industry concentration. To cope with the changes
in the economic environment and competitive landscape, the
Group closed down factories with less competitiveness and
focused on investing superior resources in factories with strong

competitiveness so as to enhance its risk-resisting ability.
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The Group invariably adhered to the following operating strategies
in 2016:

(1)

Continuously increase its market shares and profits in the

feed market in Vietnam and Malaysia.

Focus on the sales of functional feeds of higher added value
in the feed market in the PRC.

Effectively react to the fluctuation in the market by
maintaining a proper scale of electrical slaughtering of
broilers and strengthening risk management and cost
control.

Strengthen the development of products and markets of the
food business so as to enable the Group to become a leader

in the professional catering business market.

Continuously optimize the structure of one-stop supply
chains and continue to increase the proportion of food

productisation.

Providing consumers with safe and traceable products is always

our solemn commitment. The Group will continue to improve its

operating efficiency by strengthening its internal management.

While reducing its operation risks, the Group enhances its

overall profitability by steadily increasing the proportion of food

productisation.

ZZE—XEFEFR Annual Report 2016
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, benefiting from the recovery of the industry cycle and
due to the effect which has gradually emerged from a series of
measures for lean development and efficiency enhancement,
the meat product segment achieved a gross profit margin of
approximately 2.7% after experiencing two years of loss-making.
Meanwhile, with the rapid growth of the feed market in Vietnam
and the stable development of the domestic food product
segment in China, the overall gross profit of the Group was less
affected by the decline in the results of the domestic feeds

segment.

Generally speaking, the strategic contraction of the business scale
of the meat product segment led to a decrease of approximately
8.7% in the Group's turnover as compared with the same period
of the last year, but the gross profit had achieved a growth of

approximately 6.5% as compared with the same period of the last

year.
BT MEAT PRODUCT
—E-RE —T-RF ERA DL
2016 2015 % change
LB A (AREFIT) Turnover (RMB’000) 2,172,759 3,324,272 -34.6%
EH(B)(ARETIT) Gross profit/(loss) (RMB’000) 59,650 (10,167) N/A
FEFNE (%) Gross profit margin (%) 2.7 (0.3)
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The meat product segment mainly sells chilled and frozen chicken
meat under the brand of “Sister’s Kitchen”, and sells lightly
processed tender chicken meat to fast food shops, internal and
external food processors and food processing service providers
and supplies feeds and day-old-chicks to contract farmers. The
production region of the segment covers Northeast China, North
China and East China while its sales network covers the entire
nation.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

As the number of self-bred day-old chicks had a relative low
proportion in the supply chain of the meat product segment, and
the cooperation agreements with external chicken farms were
largely based on the market price of day-old chicks, the meat
product segment did not make a high profit from the upward
trend in market of day-old chicks. The reasons for turning losses
into profits in the meat product segment were: the concentration
of resources on factories with more competitive advantages due
to the integration of productivity of the meat product segment;
the reduction of the breeding and rearing costs due to the
enhancement of breeding and rearing performance; the reduction
of the meat product processing costs due to the enhancement
of the productivity of electrical slaughter plants; the reduction
of indirect costs of meat products due to the reduction and
integration of supporting departments; and the enhancement of
meat product profitability due to the increase in sales of the valued
sales channels. With the above measures, the meat product
segment achieved a gross profit of approximately RMB59,650
thousand in 2016 as compared to a loss of approximately

RMB10,167 thousand of the same period of the last year.

FUTURE STRATEGIES

The operating strategy of “eliminating risk” adhered by the meat
product business will also continue to be implemented in the
future, including: (i) to adjust the terms of contracts between
the Group and external chicken farms pursuant to the market
price trend of day-old chicks and enter into supply contracts with
terms of adjusting procurement prices according to the market
fluctuations of the price of day-old chicks with minimum guarantee

when the price is low and profit sharing when the price is high;

— NEF 3R Annual Report 2016
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(ii) to encourage contract farmers to change the way of rearing
from netting to cage, to assist them to optimize their management
and to improve the feed-to-meat ratio and to raise the rearing
and breeding efficiency; (i) to continue to enhance the rate of
utilization of incubation capacity in order to improve cost control;
(iv) to continue to increase the ratio of sales through the valued
sales channels of chicken meat, including the “Safe and Fresh
Shops” franchised or directly operated by the Group at wet
markets as well as commercial supermarkets and converting the
Group’s chicken meat to prepared food and deeply processed
food products, etc; and (v) to flexibly adjust the electrical
slaughtering capacity in accordance with the market situation and
the structures of the distribution channels.

LIVESTOCK FEEDS (FROM EXTERNAL
CUSTOMERS)

—E-RE —ET-RF HEREEO
2016 2015 % change
KB A(ARBFT) Turnover (RMB’000)
— A — China 1,955,284 2,123,952 -7.9%
—imE - BRADR - Vietnam and Malaysia 2,716,985 2,369,494 14.7%
A&t Total 4,672,269 4,493,446 4.0%
EM(ARETIT) Gross profit (RMB'000)
— — China 157,657 239,160 -34.1%
—HiFg ~ BRPALs - Vietnam and Malaysia 285,053 249,839 14.1%
CEl Total 442,710 488,999 9.5%
EFE(%) Gross profit margin (%)
—HE - China 8.1 11.3
—#iE -~ Bk - Vietnam and Malaysia 10.5 10.5
CEl Total 9.5 10.9

KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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The operating income of the feeds segment was primarily derived
from the sales of piglet, sow, hog, broiler and egg chicken feeds
to external customers in China, Vietnam and Malaysia. Corn and
soybean are the primary raw materials of feeds sold by the Group.
The main product brands of this segment are “Dr Nupak”, “Green
Knight” and “SOS"”. The production and sales region of this
segment covered Vietnam, Malaysia and northeastern, northern,

central and southwestern China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, the feeds segment continued to expand its business
scale in Southeast Asia. Due to the proper establishment of sales
channels and precise positioning of products, the turnover and
gross profit had a substantial increase as compared with the last
year. With the fierce market competition in the domestic market
in China caused by the overcapacity of the feeds industry and
the change in the structure of sales channels brought by the
increase in breeding concentration, the homogenisation trend of
feed products was becoming more obvious. The combination of
all the above factors led to an obvious decline in the turnover and
gross profit in the domestic feeds segment in China. However, the
adjustment of marketing strategy optimized the sales structure
of the domestic feed segment. The sales of sow and piglet feeds
have increased to approximately 50% of the total sales of pig
feed from approximately 40% in the same period of the last year.
Generally speaking, the overall gross profit of the feeds segment
decreased by approximately 9.5% as compared with the same
period of the last year.

ZZE—XEFEFR Annual Report 2016
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FUTURE STRATEGIES

The domestic feeds segment will continue to pursue the
following strategies: (i) to actively consolidate the brand's
competitive position in northeastern China, to take advantage
of the fermentation technique for pre-digestion in intestines in
biotechnology, and to focus on marketing activities for sow and
piglet feeds products for developing the number one brand of
sow and piglet feeds in China; (ii) to select valued customers
and offer them products, technical and service support so as to
enhance their loyalty and level of contribution to the Group; (iii) to
focus our resources in developing the emission-free in pig rearing
and breeding and rearing organic cycle demonstration base at
our advanced research centre, and to provide customers with a
comprehensive pig breeding and rearing programme, in order to
realize a 100% sustainable and environmentally-friendly breeding
and rearing system.

m A PROCESSED FOOD
—E-RE —ZT—hHF ERESL
2016 2015 % change
EEA (AREFIT) Turnover (RMB’000)
— R E Aty — Mainland China 948,875 793,227 19.6%
—¢n — Export 330,150 288,102 14.6%
&5t Total 1,279,025 1,081,329 18.3%
EMARETT) Gross profit (RMB’000)
— FRE R, — Mainland China 188,214 181,826 3.5%
—HA - Export 63,936 47,545 34.5%
&t Total 252,150 229,371 9.9%
FEHE(%) Gross profit margin (%)
— B — Mainland China 19.8 22.9
— A — Export 19.4 16.5
A&t Total 19.7 21.2

KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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The processed food segment includes the production and sales
of prepared food under the “Sisters’ Kitchen” brand, as well as
centrifuged and marinated, stewed, pre-fried, steamed, grilled and
ready-to-eat consumer food items. The processed food products
of the Group were not only sold in the PRC market, but were also
exported to overseas markets like Japan. Customer groups of
the processed food segment include customers at end-consumer
markets and professional markets. The sales channels of the
processed food segment are mainly group catering, bakery, casual
catering, takeaways, international customers, key customers as
well as the retail consumption market. The sales areas of the
processed food segment cover Japan, Singapore, Hong Kong,
northeastern, northern, eastern and southern China and a few

inland regions in northwestern and southwestern China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, although a rise in the raw material price of chicken meat
partially offset the gross profits of food products, the significant
growth of the sales of hit products and through key channels
was achieved with the planned expansion of the sales team and
focus on the development of the food segment in key cities. The
domestic sales volume still achieved a growth of approximately
28% in a depressed market environment. As compared with
the same period of the last year, the export sales to Japan only
increased by approximately 6%. However, as affected by the
adjustment of export product structure and depreciation of RMB,
the gross profit in export increased by approximately 34.5% as

compared with the previous year.
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FUTURE STRATEGIES

Our brand'’s core values are assurance and traceability. The Group
has seized the opportunities that arise from Chinese nationals’
concerns over food safety and has developed the brand'’s unique
edge. The processed food segment will continue to follow the

following strategies:

Professional catering business market: to continue to concentrate
its resources on key products and focus its efforts on developing

the next star product.

Important customer markets: to enhance the quality of services,
and to continue to increase marketing efforts on Chinese fast food
customers so as to diversify from the systemic risk of an over

concentration on western fast food customers.

International markets: to continue to utilize its advantageous
research resources for Japanese-style products to continue the
development of customer base in Singapore and Hong Kong in
order to diversify from the risk of relying on a single Japanese

market.

Retail consumer markets: while cutting its production lines of
products, the Group will focus its resources on systematically
developing key products for major commercial supermarkets in

key cities in order to build up a competitive position for its brands.
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INTRODUCTION ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Company (together with its subsidiaries and its jointly-
controlled entities, the “Group”) is a leading fully integrated
animal protein product provider whose products range from
feeds, poultry and advanced nutritional formulas for aquatic
animals to processed foods. As a company integrating the entire
food production chain, we recognize the Group’s responsibility
in respect of environment, social and governance information
disclosure and the importance of environment, social and

governance aspects to the future of the Group.

The environment, social and governance report (the “Report”)
is prepared with reference to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "Guide"”) published by Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the “HKEx"). This Report
discloses the performance information in relation to environment,
social and governance aspects of the Group from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2016. This Report also serves as an
important communication channel between the Company and
its stakeholders. It is hoped that the Group can make continuous
improvement in the environment, social and governance works
by collecting feedbacks and recommendations from internal and

external stakeholders.

The Board of Directors and the Directors of the Company jointly
and severally accept full responsibility for the authenticity,
accuracy and completeness of the information contained in this
Report and confirm that there are no false records, misleading

statements or material omissions in this Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Procuring sustainable development is always the Group's
incumbent social responsibility. The Group commits to save
energy, reduce emissions and protect the environment and
establish a clean and low-carbon production process so as to
become an environmental friendly enterprise and achieve a win-
win situation between our development and protection of the

environment.

ZZE—XEFEFR Annual Report 2016
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EMISSIONS

The Group strictly complies with the Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC ( {##EARLFBIRIBIRFEE) ), the Emission
Standard of Atmosphere Pollutants from Boiler of the PRC ( {1
= NRHEMBIER RS2 HEIEZLE) ) and the relevant laws
and regulations, standards and other local regulations. In 2016,
the Group’s environmental facilities maintained stable operation
and there was no significant environmental pollution or excessive
emission incidents.

In order to reduce exhaust gas and greenhouse gas emissions, the
Group has started to replace coal-fired boilers with clean energy
boilers by phase since 2015. By implementing a series of measures
such as adjusting the industrial operation process with innovative
production technology, adding environmental protection facilities
and engaging qualified environmental protection institutions to
perform professional operation, the Group has achieved satisfactory
result in reduction of nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides, dust particles
and carbon dioxide emissions and its pollutant discharges were less
than the national and regional emission standards.

In 2016, the Group’s factory in Cangzhou completed the renovation
of biomass boilers, the factories in Sichuan and Yucheng completed
the renovation of gas boilers and the factories in Shenyang and
Dalian completed the upgrade of desulfuration equipment of gas
and coal-fired boilers. In 2016, the accumulated carbon dioxide
emission of the feed segment of the Group throughout the year
decreased by about 700 tons, sulphide emission decreased by over
7 tons and nitrogen oxide emission decreased by over 5 tons.

The Group invested in the purchase of the sewage treatment
installation or the construction of the sewage treatment station,
which effectively removed the main substance causing the water
pollution including SS, BOD, COD and ammonia nitrogen and
phosphorus. The treated waste water complied with the “Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standard” ( CSKERABERIZE) ). In
addition, the Group also utilized and promoted the microalgae
technology for treatment of breeding sewage, so as to minimize the
discharge of sewage and re-collect the microalgae (which absorbs the
organic nutrients in water) for producing animal nutrient products and
achieving the recycling of resources.
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The Group is much concerned about the issue of waste disposal.
The waste generated by the subsidiary enterprises for the year
2016 was properly disposed. For the waste such as slag and
sludge, the enterprises sold them to third party companies to
reuse as building materials and organic fertilizers, so as to achieve
resource recycling and reduce discharges to land. The hazardous
waste such as waste chicken oil was externally disposed by

companies with environmental management qualification.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group strictly implements the national, industrial and local energy
saving laws and regulations and the requirements of prohibition and
restriction on using backward skills, techniques and products. It also
actively promotes the use of new technology, materials, skills and
products to reduce consumption of energy, water and other raw
materials so as to enhance the resource-use efficiency, increase the

recycling of resources and reduce waste generation.

In respect of energy consumption, the Group actively
implemented the principle of saving energy and reducing
emissions. For instance, the food plant of Dachan Wanda (Tianjin)
Co., Ltd (RAk&E#E (K2) BRAF]), a wholly owned subsidiary,
replaced the coal-fired boilers with biomass boilers to effectively
increase the energy use efficiency with the use of clean energy

and reduce the emission of pollutants.

In respect of water resources, the Group strictly implements the
Water Resources Protection Law of the PRC ( {FZE AR FAFIEIK
EIRIREE) ), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution ( {HZEARLFEIKFRFEE) ) and the
relevant laws and regulations, standards and other local regulations.
The sewage disposal volume of the Group’'s enterprises also
meets the local requirements. Meanwhile, the Group educates its
employees on how to save water and encourages them to reuse

water for minimizing water consumption and sewage generation.

Various measures were implemented simultaneously for the
consumption of other raw materials such as the adoption of the
application system for office automation and the reduction of
consumption of office supplies, encouraging the creation of a
paperless office, and reusing paper.

— NEF 3R Annual Report 2016
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ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Environmental protection and sustainable development goals are
actively pursued by the Group, and we operate our business in
an environmentally responsible manner. Each Group enterprise
actively conducts technological reforms in respect of source
control, end terminal and technical innovation in order to achieve
the target of reducing, reusing, recycling and renewing resources
and reduce emission and wastes for continuously improving the
utilization efficiency of natural resources and minimizing the effect

of the operation to the environment.

Shenzhen Green Pac Bio Co (RINAEEEREIEBRAT),
a subsidiary of the Group, is a biotechnology company with
microalgae technology as its core advantage, and is principally
engaged in providing animal nutrition and ecological environment
solutions for companies in biological farming, food and other

related industries.

Green Pac links the animal husbandry industry, human community
and food processing industry together with microalgae technology
in order to optimize the agricultural resources as a whole and
achieve the resource recycling with an aim to reduce emissions,
create a green environment and enhance energy efficiency as well
as to further improve the advanced eco-friendly technology of the
bioengineering and microalgae system for sustainable development.
Green Pac’s microalgae technology is able to avoid secondary
pollutions and potential nutrient loss, which are the disadvantages
of the traditional sewage treatment method, and to further purify
sewage by effectively removing ammonia and phosphorus. This
technology is expected to establish a brand new foundation of
sustainable development for the animal husbandry and breeding and
rearing industry in China, where the use of manure and waste in

agricultural land is constrained.
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SOCIAL

EMPLOYMENT

The Employee Handbook is prepared and implemented by the Group.
[t contains human resources policies in relation to employment
and termination of employment, attendance, salary and benefits,
training and development, performance appraisal, employee code
( [FEat

21 ), reward and punishment management system, security and

of ethics, management code of ethics, “Sunshine Plan”

confidentiality as well as communication and interaction. The content
of the Employee Handbook complies with the relevant requirements
of the laws and regulations, including Labor Law of the PRC ( (s %=
AR FEFIE L)L) ) and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC ( P #E

RHFELEHERE) ). During 2016, the Group strictly complies
with the above laws and regulations and the Handbook and provides

guidance for employees.

The Group has been upholding the following principles when
choosing, training, using and retaining talents:

1. Recruit and select individuals who are suitable for the
Group's corporate culture and job position based on working
plans and key performance indicators of the position;

2. Design specific training courses and launch corresponding
training plans according to different positions and ranks
of employees to continuously enhance employee’s
management and professional skills and to provide a
reservoir of outstanding talents for the Group;

3. Design and implement different performance appraisal
systems and conduct suitable post adjustment and job
rotation based on different job nature, to place talents in
suitable position to optimize their performance;

4. Determine employee’s remuneration level based on their
experiences and performances as well as the market
salaries and implement performance bonus incentive
program for the employees in different positions and also
select important talents every year for appropriate reward.

— NEF 3R Annual Report 2016
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The Group insists on the transparency of job requirements
for talent selection and recruitment process. Each candidate
shall be recruited by the human resources center and relevant
departments through double interviews. Written tests are
designed for professional positions so as to ensure the fairness of
competitions and transparency of recruitment process. We invite
high caliber individuals of different nationalities, residency status,
ethnicities, religions and education background through overseas
recruitment websites and social platforms, so as to create a
favourable brand image of employers for the elites in the industry.
For remuneration and benefits, we are committed to establishing
a sound system for remuneration and benefits so as to provide a
market competitive remuneration package by arranging working
hours and leaves in accordance with the requirements of the state
for establishing a system for staff benefits protection regulated
by laws and create a transparent and open environment for
competition.

In 2016, the age group of the staff recruited by the Group and
the employment proportion of male and female had average
distribution. There was no incidence of significant non-compliance
of relevant laws and regulations that was relevant to personnel
recruitment and employment.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group recognizes the importance of health and safety of the
employees and strictly complies with the Production Safety Law
of the PRC ( (FZEAREFHLZ2EEEL) ) and Occupational
Disease Prevention Law of the PRC ( {##E AR L FIEBE2EREH
J&YA) ) and the relevant laws and regulations, standards and other
local regulations. It adheres to the principle of “safety is of utmost
importance with prevention as the key" in the production process
with an aim to create a heathy and safe working environment for

staff and to ensure safe and civilised production.
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The Group implements Code of Safe Operating Practices ( (%
2IRIERAESTAI) ) for its factories and engages safety personnel
to organize regular fire drills, production safety inspection
and production safety appraisal activities. Staff benefits cover
annual clinical examination expenses and regular annual clinical
examination, occupational medical examinations or health
certification. In addition, the Group has taken out employer's
liability insurance and commercial life insurance offered by China
Ping An and Cathay Life respectively to provide perfect insurance
coverage to our employees so that they can work in a comfortable

environment.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group is committed to providing an ideal life-occupation
for our employees. Hard working employees are not only
entitled to receive remunerations and other benefits, but also
given appropriate training and promotion opportunities. The
training system of the Group, which is based on the principle of
appropriateness and effectiveness, will help employees develop
their future career and enhance their skills and knowledge relating
to their works by offering trainings that are relevant to their

practical work.

In 2016, the Group has completed the employees’ skill
enhancement program by providing a series of online/offline and
internal/external trainings, e.g. upgrade of the E-Learning platform
for all our staff to complete general knowledge courses online;
establishing a professional learning platform of Dachan College
of Food and Animal Husbandry (KAKESRERT Kk EFHERr) for
our staff to complete online professional courses. Our Human
Resources Development Center produced over 200 learning
videos with a total of approximately 2,000 minutes in length for
more than 800 participants. The Company also provided over
20,000 man hours of inhouse training in relation to production, job
duties and business aspects. Each employee studied 2 lessons in

average with total training time of over 100 minutes.

ZZE—XEFEFR Annual Report 2016
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LABOR STANDARDS

The Group offers equal and open opportunities for employment.
It selects, trains, rewards, promotes and redesignates employees
regardless of race, color, religion, sex and background in
compliance with relevant laws, regulations and contract

requirements and strives to achieve these goals.

Child labour or forced labour in any position is strictly prohibited
in compliance with the Labour Law and the Group reviews its
employment practices from time to time in order to prevent child
labour and forced labour and other potential non-compliance
of relevant laws and regulations. The Group provides various
channels for employees to submit claims, and when employees
consider that their personal interests are violated or have different
views on our operation or discover any breach of regulations
and rules, they could make complaints or suggestions by mail,
telephone or ordinary post. During the year 2016, the Group had

no non-compliance of the above laws and regulations.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT AND
PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group manages the entire animal protein (including meat,
egg and milk) supply chain from farm to table, and combining and
using resources and technologies of the factories and internet, the
Group establishes a traceable network in order to create highest
value for consumers, employees, shareholders and suppliers.
"Provide reliable and safe food to consumers” is the strength and

also the mission of our Group.

The Group is highly emphasized on the selection procedure of
suppliers and ongoing management, and implements a green
procurement policy so as to actively select suppliers which value
environmental protection and corporate social responsibility
and ensure that the procurement policies of the suppliers are
consistent with that of the Group through onsite visits. The Group
will consider the addition of environmental protection clauses
into the procurement contracts in the future so as to discuss
and implement sustainable development in the operation with

suppliers.
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Each Group enterprise established a system for product quality
test and relevant procedures, and has started to establish and
introduce a food safety and real-name traceable system since
2014. The system comprises 4 strict and sound management
mechanisms for setting a unified standard management for
green farms, meat safety test, product batch management and
a tracing and recall mechanism for product circulation. In its
operation and management, the Group adheres to the principle
of “Five Unified”, namely unified chick supply, unified materials,
unified immunisation, unified medication and unified recycling
policies. Based on the principle of “Five Unified”, the Group has
implemented the supply chain management and the real-name
traceable system. The traceable and monitoring results of four
segments, namely feed, farm, meat and food, are recorded in a
safe and reliable backstage system and the real-time and dynamic
control of “4W" (i.e. who, when, where, what) is achieved in
order to ensure the comprehensiveness of the industry chain,

transparency of product sources and product quality and safety.

The Group and Intertek Group, a third party international
certification body, jointly launched a “safety traceability” strategic
cooperation program, under which Intertek has performed strict
system review and on-site verification on feed factories, farms,
slaughter houses and processing plants in the supply chain of the
Group. As at the end of 2016, 7 plants of the Group were certified

by Intertek and included in the further cooperation projects.

The Group provides various ways such as the WeChat Scan
Code for traceability enquiries of product by the customers, and
establishes customer services center for provision of after-sale
services and for customers’ enquiries and complaints. In 2016,
the Group had no material litigation or complaints due to product

quality.
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The Group is in strict compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations of the “Food Safety Law of The People’s Republic of
China" ( {(FEARLMHRMAZEE) ), the “Product Quality

Law of The People’s Republic of China” ( {fhZE AR FMEE

SEE) ), the "Advertisements Law of The People's Republic
of China" ( (FPEARZEMBEIESE) ) and the “Protection of

Consumer Rights and Interests of The People's Republic of
China” ( (REARLFBIEEE#EERESL) ).

2016, the Group had no violation of the above laws and regulations

). During the year

and material litigations or complaints due to food safety and

product quality.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

According to the requirements of the Group’'s Employee
Handbook and relevant laws and regulations, the Group
established Sunshine Plan as one of the basic policies of the
Group. Sunshine Plan requires all the employees to truthfully
declare their relatives/fellow relationships with other employees,
customers and suppliers, and gifts received for record so as to
prevent bribery, fraud, money laundering and extortion and create

a transparent and fair working environment.

According to the Code of ethics for employees ( ( B THiEE
SFAIY ), Code of ethics for senior officers ( (B TE A BB % :8/EST
( B&H&t
EIREMAME]) ) formulated and implemented by the Group, all

8) ) and Sunshine Plan and Implementing Measures

employees should consciously safeguard the legitimate interests
of the company as required by the Group and strictly comply with
the laws and regulations on unfair competition, anti-monopoly
and anti-corruption and bribery and observe the regulations and
procedures established by the company business contracts.
Employees are prohibited to offer gifts in any form to their direct
supervisor or other personnel who are supervising their duties or
managing them. In 2016, there was no major violations of laws
and regulations of the Group in respect of prevention of bribery,

fraud, money laundering and extortion.



il 4

EREALSEARNRREE  FEEEK
BB RARSIRRESR - MORYEER
ERFNEEREERILMEER - AEE
RIZB—REFE BEBILRESRESR
AR AT ARIK /KR R E /KR I T
EEm BT EE - R DA K/ R R a8 R R
ERIBENE - RITRIE RIHERAFEERD
BEEE  ULRBRERNE—ZTHE - X
BERENRERARARGH REFE ER
B R ZR e DASSA T P/ N ©

T—AFE AEEMSEEME AR
CEEMASRIBEI  UXH TR £
BMELMTINERRE ST RUARRE
ERIEAE -

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a conscientious and socially responsible food enterprise,
the Group has long been active in participating in public welfare
and environmental protection matters and is committed to
contributing to the economy and societal welfare of the countries
where the Group operates. During the year 2016, the Group
actively assisted Beijing You Will SEE Eco-Agri Co., Ltd (1t = #
EE2¥EAMR AT in the research and development of deep-
processing products with water-saving millet as the raw materials
and explored the possibility of using water-saving millet as
feedstock so as to bring business opportunities with sustainable
development for Alashan farmland and further utilize the natural
resources. The Group also bought millet and used the products in
the charitable activity as “free lunch”, with four primary schools in

Pang Kou Town, Tai'an City, Shandong.

During the year 2016, the Group made donation to charities
including SEE Alxa Ecological Fund (SEEfh =4 E
©%) for supporting environmental protection, labour
needs and health programs such as “Xiaoguang forest”

(“BEYAK”) of our concern.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

BFEXPFHRE L8 RER(ESG) AR RS

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Guidelines on Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting Index

GRE - dgRERMEESD
ESG Reporting Index

B BEAR

Page no. Content of Reporting

Al —MREEE
General Disclosure

A2 —R

General Disclosure

—RRIE

General Disclosure

BERSTER

Employment and Labour Practices

—RRIE

General Disclosure

B2 | —MEE
General Disclosure

B3 —Re R

General Disclosure

20 BERLY)

Emission

21 BIREA

Use of Resources

RIBMKAER
Environment and
Natural Resources

24 REREZE
Health and Safety

25 BTIHIEBERR
Employee Training and
Career Development

KB (Z23M) BPRA ) DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
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Operating Practices

B5 | —ARIRE 26 HERERRERAE
General Disclosure Supply Chain

Management and
Product Responsibility

B6 | —MRIXER 26 HEREEEREREE
General Disclosure Supply Chain

Management and
Product Responsibility

B7 | —MRIKkE 28 RES
General Disclosure Anti-corruption
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Community
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General Disclosure Community Investment
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DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Jia-Hwan (8% E), aged 61, has been the Chairman
and an executive director of the Company since 2007. He is
also a member of the remuneration committee and nomination
committee and the Chairman of the executive committee since
2007. He is responsible for formulating the overall corporate
strategies, planning and business development of the Company.
Mr. Han has over 30 years of experience in feeds and food
production business in the Asia Pacific region. In recognition of
his contributions to the agricultural industry, Mr. Han was elected
as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons (+A£EHEE) in
Taiwan in 1994.

Mr. Han received his bachelor’s degree in business administration
from National Cheng-chi University (B BAAKZ) and a
master’s degree in business administration from the University of
Chicago in 1977 and 1983 respectively. He is a younger brother of
Mr. Han Chia-Yau, Mr. Harn Jia-Chen and an older brother of Mr.
Han Chia-Yin and the father of Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han.

Mr. Han Chia-Yin (328X %), aged 56, has been appointed as
an executive director and a member of the executive committee
since 27 October 2011. He was the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company from 27 October 2011 to 1 April 2016.He also
serves as a director of Great Wall Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“Great
Wall Enterprise”), a company incorporated in Taiwan whose
shares are listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation (“Taiwan
Exchange”) and is the indirect controlling shareholder of the
Company. He was the general manager of the Great Wall Group
Food Service Division and held a number of positions in several
associations of the food industry in Taiwan.

Mr. Han graduated from Feng Chia University in Taiwan with a
bachelor’s degree in Information Engineering & Computer Science
and obtained a master’s degree in Computer Science from the
University of New Haven in USA. He is a younger brother of Mr.
Han Chia-Yau, Mr. Harn Jia-Chen and Mr. Han Jia-Hwan and an
uncle of Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chao Tien-Shin (88X £), aged 70, has been a non-executive
Director of the Company and the chairman and a director of Qiao
Tai Xing Investment Co. Ltd. since 2007. He is also the chairman
and director of both BERERKH BR AT and R L& 2 ERAEIF
&M ER AR and a vice president of The Red Cross Society
of the Republic of China (Taiwan) and a director of Great Wall
Enterprise.

Mr. Chao graduated from Tamkang University (4T AZ2) with a
bachelor’s degree in irrigation engineering with extensive business
management experience in both the information technology
industry and traditional industries, such as food and services.

Mr. Han Chia-Yau (323X F) , aged 67, has been a non-executive
director of the Company and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company since 2007. Mr. Han joined Great Wall
Enterprise in 1991 and he was the vice chairman of the board of
directors of Great Wall Enterprise from 1995 to 2001. Since 2001,
Mr. Han has been the chairman of Great Wall Enterprise. He is also
a director of TTET Union Corporation, whose shares are listed on
the Taiwan Exchange.

Mr. Han obtained a bachelor’s degree from Chung Yuan Christian
University (F[R¥E T 267 )and a master's degree in Computer
Science from the University of Connecticut in 1973 and 1978
respectively. He is an older brother of Mr. Han Jia-Hwan, Mr. Harn
Jia-Chen and Mr. Han Chia-Yin and an uncle of Mr. Jonathan Fang-
Tsu Han.

Mr. Harn Jia-Chen (33R/%), aged 62, has been a non-executive
director of the Company, a member of the nomination committee
of the Company and the vice chairman of the board of directors
of Great Wall Enterprise since 2007. From 1995 to March 2015,
he was the chairman of the board of directors of Great Wall Food
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (R B (K2 ) BRAF)), a subsidiary of Great
Wall Enterprise engaged in flour production. Since 2001, he has
been the chairman of the board of directors of Great Wall Yung
Huo Food (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Gt R ABCKFIRMAERAF]). Since
1999, he has been the chairman of the board of directors of Great
Wall Food (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (KK &:E (KF) BRAR]). From
1997 to 2006, he was a director of Great Wall Food (Shekou) Co.,
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

Ltd. CKEKE S (#80) AR 2 7])) . From 2006 to 2011, he was the
chairman of the board of directors of Great Wall Food (Shekou)
Co., Ltd. Since 2003, he has been the chairman of the board of
directors of DaChan Showa Food (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (KEKFEME
fh (K2E)BRAR). From May 2006 to April 2015, he was the
president of Taiwan Asset Enterprise Association of Tianjin (X
EHMAERRRERCEWE). Since May 2015, he has been the
honorary president of Taiwan Asset Enterprise Association of
Tianjin. From April 2007 to May 2010, he was elected as the vice-
chairman of the Association of Taiwan Investment Enterprises on
the Mainland (2Bl &2 EBIEEPEBTEE) . From May 2010 to
April 2015, he was the standing vice-president of the Association
of Taiwan Investment Enterprises on the Mainland. Since May
2015, he has been the consultant of the Association of Taiwan
Investment Enterprises on the Mainland.

Mr. Harn obtained his master’'s degree in business administration
from the University of New Haven in 1986. He is an older brother
of Mr. Han Jia-Hwan and Mr. Han Chia-Yin and a younger brother
of Mr. Han Chia-Yau and an uncle of Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Chih (Bf38), aged 63, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company, the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee of the Company since 2007.
Mr. Chen served as the president of GE Medical Systems China
since 1996 and was promoted to vice president of General Electric
Company since November 2001. He retired from General Electric
Company in 2009. Mr. Chen has also been the chairman of SKR
Healthcare Group Limited (it EER4E R EEBRR A F) since 2009
and China Nucleon Medical Technology Limited (#FB#Z T 28 /&
Rifr =@ AR A5 (now known as Advance Medical Systems
Limited (Z#ERIBEEEBRAE))) since 2012, and the vice-
president and CEO of TCL Healthcare since May 2014.

Mr. Chen received his Ph.D. degree in mechanical engineering
from Lehigh University in 1984.
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Mr. Way Yung-Do (F85kE), aged 71, joined the Company
in 2008, and is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, the chairman of the audit committee and a member
of the nomination committee and the remuneration committee.
Mr. Way has over 35 years of experience in financial advisory,
accounting and auditing and had served as a managing partner
and the CEO of an international accounting firm in Taiwan before
retiring in 2007. Since 2012, Mr. Way served as the responsible
officer of YCSY Co., LTD. CGkE)HEZEARAF). He is also a
director of the following companies whose shares are listed on the
Taiwan Exchange:

- Taiwan Cement Corporation

- Far Eastern Department Stores Co.Ltd

- Synnex Technology International Corporation

- Primax Electronics Ltd

- Wowprime Co.,Ltd

- MITAC Holdings Corporation

- Vanguard International Semiconductor Corporation
- IRON FORCE INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD.

and a representative of the legal person and monitor of the
following companies whose shares are listed on the Taiwan
Exchange:

- SERCOMM CORP.
Chilisin Electronics Corp.
- KAIMEI ELECTRONIC CORP.

Mr. Way graduated from Soochow University (Taiwan) with a
bachelor’s degree in accounting and obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from the University of Georgia. Mr. Way
has the public accountant qualifications in Taiwan and Georgia,
U.S.A. He is also a certified internal auditor of the Institute of
Internal Auditors.

Mr. Wei Anning (1% 2), aged 54, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company, the chairman of the
remuneration committee and member of the audit committee
and the nomination committee of the Company since 31 October
2014. Mr. Wei is the executive director and general manager of
Shanghai Guwang Investment Management Limited ( /86T
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BEEIEARAT), an independent director of Ningbo Tianbang
Joint Stock Limited (ZEAABIMHBPRAF]), whose shares
are listed on both of Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
002124), Orient Securities Company Limited (3R 75 &5 M5
fR/A@]), whose shares are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600958) and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (Stock Code: 3958),and Fortune SG Fund Management
Co., Ltd, and a director of Hangzhou United Bank (# /1B & $R17),
Ningxia Farming Group Company Ltd (ZEEZEREE AR A F])
and Xinjiang Tycoon Group Corporation Lmt. (#71553= & =Bk {H
ABR27]). He was an agricultural economist of the Department
of Agricultural and Natural Resources of the World Bank, a director
and a manager of food & agribusiness research of the Rabobank
Group (Northeast Division), and the CEO of Fortis Bank S.A./N.V.
in the China Region. He was also the executive vice president of
New Hope Group (3% 2%:[&), the president of Shandong Liuhe
Group (IUER/<FILE) and the chairman of board of directors
of Chinwhiz Agribusiness Co, Ltd. (U AT ZEL@EAR A
A1) . Mr. Wei has an in-depth understanding and rich experience
in the integration of finance and the agricultural and livestock
food industry, the development of agricultural and livestock
food industry, the operation and management of agricultural and
livestock food corporations.

Mr. Wei obtained his bachelor's degree in Economics in Nankai
University in 1982, his master’s degrees in Economics in Peking
University in 1986 and in Williams College in the United States
in 1991 and his doctorate degree in Agricultural Economics in
University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign in the United States in
1997.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Ou Chang-Jou (Bi&#}), aged 65, joined the Company in
1980 and has been the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and promoted as the executive vice-president since 1 April
2016. He is responsible for the supervision and regulation the
business operation on feed, meat and food business. Mr. Ou has
accumulated over 35 years of experience in global large scale
commodity procurement, trading business operation and futures
hedging in Taiwan and Mainland China and was responsible for
the processing business operation of soybeans, wheat, feed and
vertically integrated business of meat product and the operation of
agricultural food e-commerce business for many years.
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Mr. Ou obtained a bachelor's degree in business management
from the National Cheng-Kung University (B2 fX 31K 22 )in Taiwan
in 1974.

Mr. Lu Shih-Che (Ett#), aged 56, joined the Company in
2009. Since 19 February 2014, he was the chief operation officer
of the Feed and Animal Nutrition Group of the Company. Since
1 December 2016, Mr. Lu has been redesignated as the animal
nutrition senior consultant of the Company. He has over 25 years
of experience in the fields of animal nutrition and feed business in
Taiwan and the Mainland China. Mr. Lu has been responsible for
the R&D on feeds and sales and marketing in the China market
since 2009.

Mr. Lu obtained a master’s degree in Animal Nutrition from the
National Taiwan University (B3 &7&XE2) in 1986.

Mr. Ricky Wong (E$28), aged 61, joined the Company in
August 2015. He is the executive consultant of the Company and
is responsible for the management and operation of the global
food business of the Company. Mr. Wong has over 30 years of
experience in various food processing enterprises and chained
restaurants around the world, including Cathy Pacific Air Catering
in HK, Mars Group in Holland, CP Food Group in Thailand and
Yum! Brands, Inc. Before joining the Company, he was executive
president of KFC's Hong Kong & Taiwan markets under the
Jardine Restaurant Group, as well as chief operations officer and
an executive director of Hop Hing Food Group in the China region.

Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’'s degree in Food Science and
Technology from McGill University in Montreal, Canada.

Mr. Li Jing-Hui (Z%#8), aged 58, joined the Company on
24 October 2011 and was chief operation officer of the
Poultry&Value Meat Group, and the Chief Strategic Officer of the
Company. Since 15 September 2016, Mr. Li has been redesignated
as a consultant of the Company. Before joining the Company, Mr.
Li was the representative of the 11th Session of People’s Congress
of Qinhuangdao of Hebei Province and an executive director of
China Poultry Association. He also worked for several famous
international corporations such as OSI| Group (Weihai) Poultry
Development Co., Ltd. and CP Group. Mr. Li is the president of
China White Feather Broiler Alliance. He has nearly 30 years of
experience in the livestock breeding and rearing industry in China.
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

Mr. Li graduated from Agricultural University of Hebei Handan
branch (now known as Hebei University of Engineering) with a
bachelor’s degree in livestock in 1982.

Ms. Chen Li-Chin (ff#%2%), aged 59, joined the Company on
1 January 2009 and is the chief financial officer and the chief
administrative officer of the Company. She is a senior vice-
president of the Company. Ms. Chen is responsible for the
Company's overall financial management, capital planning
and allocation, human resources management, procurements
management, risk management and control, and leads the
Company's Law Affair Office and Information & Process
Innovation Center. Prior to joining the Company, she was the
vice-president of TSRC Corporation, a listed company in Taiwan.
Ms. Chen had over 20 years of experience in the fields of finance
and investor relations, and assumed the senior positions of many
large and renowned multinational corporations, including Intel
Microelectronic (AR B ARHEBRRAF]), Johnson & Johnson
Medical and Siemens Telecommunication System.

Ms. Chen obtained an EMBA degree from National Taiwan
University.

Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han (33518), aged 34, joined the
Company in 2012 and was consecutively responsible for finance,
strategic planning of the Group and operation management
of the feed business. He is promoted to vice president since
1 April 2017. He serves as the officer of the Feed and Animal
Nutrition Group and the special assistant to the Chief Executive
Officer. He is also responsible for the development and operation
management of Shenzhen Green Pac Bio Co ((EIII4EE4E AR
BFRAF]), a company which is responsible for the treatment of
breeding sewage. He is a member of the executive committee
of the Company. Mr. Han has extensive experience in operation
analysis and strategic management.

Mr. Han graduated from Simon Graduate School of Business
(ZEPIREP7) at the University of Rochester of the United States in
2012 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in Computer Science from
Northwestern University of the United States in 2003. He is the
son of Mr. Han Jia-Hwan and the nephew of Mr. Han Chia-Yau,
Mr. Harn Jia-Chen and Mr. Han Chia-Yin.
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INTRODUCTION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to
present the corporate governance report for the year ended 31
December 2016 as follows.

The board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) is committed
to enhancing the Group'’s corporate governance standards by
improving corporate transparency through effective channels of
information disclosure. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is beneficial for maintaining close and trustful
relations with its employees, business partners, shareholders and

investors.

The Company has adopted a corporate governance code prepared
based on the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the latest
revised code on corporate governance (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as
the guidelines for corporate governance of the Company, and has

taken steps to comply with the Code wherever appropriate.

Terms used in this report shall have the same meaning as those

defined in the Listing Rules unless the context otherwise requires.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
complied with the Code Provisions with the following exceptions:

UnpER CopE Provision E. 1.2, THE CHAIRPERSONS OF THE BOARD AND THE
AUDIT, REMUNERATION, NOMINATION COMMITTEES SHOULD BE AVAILABLE TO

ANSWER QUESTIONS AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING.
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

Mr. Han Jia-Hwan, the chairman of the Board, and Mr. Way Yung-
Do, the chairman of the audit committee, were not present at
the annual general meeting held on 24 June 2016 due to other
pre-arranged business commitments which must be attended to
and the partial suspension of flights from Taiwan to Hong Kong,

respectively.

UNDER CopE PROVISION A.6.7, INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
OTHER NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS SHOULD ATTEND GENERAL MEETINGS AND

DEVELOP A BALANCED UNDERSTANDING OF THE VIEWS OF THE SHAREHOLDERS.

Mr. Han Chia-Yau, Mr. Harn Jia-Chen and Mr. Chao Tien-Shin, our
non-executive Directors were unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2016 due to other pre-
arranged business commitments which must be attended by

them.

UNDER CopE ProvisionN F.1.1, THE COMPANY SECRETARY SHOULD BE AN
EMPLOYEE OF THE COMPANY AND HAVE THE DAY-TO-DAY KNOWLEDGE OF THE

COMPANY’S AFFAIRS.

Ms. Pang Siu-Yin, a former partner of the Company’s legal
advisers, Cheung Tong & Rosa Solicitors, had been the company
secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the Company since
February 2008 until her resignation from the position of the
Company Secretary with effect from 8 August 2016. Ms. Cho Yi
Ping, a partner of the Company’s legal advisers, Cheung Tong &
Rosa Solicitors, has been appointed as the Company Secretary
with effect from 8 August 2016.
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The Company has assigned a member of the senior management,
Ms. Feng Yuxia, the head of legal department of the Company
as the contact person with Ms. Pang/Ms. Cho. During the tenure
of Ms. Pang as the Company Secretary, the Board was confident
that having Ms. Pang as the Company Secretary was beneficial
to the Group’s compliance with the relevant board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations because (i) benefitted from
the long-term relationship with the Group, Ms. Pang was very
familiar with the operations of the Group and had an in depth
knowledge of the management of the Group; (i) information in
relation to the performance, financial position and other major
developments and affairs of the Group was speedily delivered
to Ms. Pang through the contact person assigned whenever
necessary. As for Ms. Cho, as she is a practicing solicitor of Hong
Kong with understanding of the Listing Rules, her qualifications
meet the requirements of the Listing Rules in terms of a company
secretary of a listed issuer. Further, whenever necessary,
the contact person assigned will promptly deliver information
regarding the performance, financial positions and other major
development and affairs of the Group to Ms. Cho. Having in
place a mechanism that enables Ms. Cho to get hold of the
Group's development promptly without material delay and with
her expertise and experience, the Board is confident that having
Ms. Cho as the Company Secretary is beneficial to the Group's
compliance with the relevant board procedures, applicable laws,

rules and regulations.
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

COMPLIANCE WITH DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

The Company has received a confirmation (the “Confirmation”)
from Great Wall Enterprise Co., Ltd ("GWE") signed by it on
24 February 2017 confirming that for the period from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2016 and up to the date of signing the
Confirmation by GWE, it has fully complied with the deed of non-
competition executed by GWE in favour of the Company dated 14
September 2007 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) (as varied by
two deeds of variation executed by GWE and the Company dated
25 June 2010 and 18 December 2012 respectively).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Confirmation and all of them are satisfied that the Deed of Non-
Competition has been complied with during the period under

review.

DIRECTORS

THE BoARD

The Board, led by the chairman, steers the Company's business
direction. It is responsible for formulating the Company’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals, assessing
results of management policies, monitoring the management’s
performance and ensuring effective implementation of risk

management measures on a regular basis.

The Directors meet regularly to review the Group's financial and
operational performance and to discuss and formulate future
development plans. Regular Board meetings are attended by a
majority of the Directors in person or through other electronic

means of communication.



6 ALK

BREeRES  2REABE  sUHIE
BREBERBENERMAARE  FHE
BRERRIEBEREMAPRASE - B
AIEEEHRATESRARR

HITES
BRELLE(LE)
BRENLE

FHITES
ER TR
BRRELE
HBRELLE

BAFRTES
BAKEELE
BRoaKE
RRERE

R KB ER D BN AR EEN ST
ZEAHEHAERQTI LB AEHEE - %
ZEIAEERSTBB Y IFNTES - 15
PAELESEANSHAESEESNNBE
AnEgse -

ARBRFERBEEERNARBEAT
B IFMITERS D ©

EENERFBRERAFRENAEER
SREBEAERE] & o

BoARD COMPOSITION

There are currently 8 Directors, all being industry veterans,
responsible to the shareholders for formulating the overall
business development targets and long-term company strategies,
assessing results of management policies and monitoring
performance of the management. The Board currently comprises

the following Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jia-Hwan (Chairman)
Mr. Han Chia-Yin

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Han Chia-Yau

Mr. Harn Jia-Chen

Mr. Chao Tien-Shin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Way Yung-Do

Mr. Chen Chih

Mr. Wei Anning

An updated list of the Directors by category identifying their
role and function is at all times available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The list specifies whether a
Director is an independent non-executive Director and expresses
the respective membership of each Director in each board
committee.

The Company identifies the independent non-executive Directors
in all corporate communications which disclose the names of

Directors.
Details of the biographies of the Directors are given under the

section headed “Director and Senior Management Profile” of this

annual report on page 32.
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management profile” of this annual report, there are no
relationships (including financial, business, family or other material

or relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.

The independent non-executive Directors play an important role
on the Board. Accounting for more than one third of the Board
members, they are experienced professionals in their respective
fields. They are responsible for ensuring that the Board maintains
high standards of financial and other mandatory reporting as well
as providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interest of shareholders of the Company and the Group as a
whole. Throughout the year of 2016, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications
on accounting or related financial management expertise. The
number of independent non-executive Directors has represented
at least one-third of the Board.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED/ELIGIBLE TO ATTEND IN 2016

During the year of 2016, the Board held 4 regular meetings at
about quarterly intervals with 1 additional meeting. As regards
general meetings, the Company held the annual general meeting
on 24 June 2016. A table of summary in regard to the Directors’
participation at the various board meetings and board committee

meeting and the Company’s general meeting(s) is set out below:



Regular  Additional
Board Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination Executive General
Meetings ~ Meetings) ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee  Meeting(s)
YREzees WEZeeE BNZEe  FMZEe  R4ZEe ynzeg kK&
#rEs Executive Directors

EREfE Mr. Han Jia-Hwan 44 i NER 1 11 1313 i
EREAE Mr. Han Chia-Yin 44 " el 0l ol 1313 o

FHNES Non-executive Directors
BRTRE Mr. Han Chia-Yau 44 i iyl 1 TR TER i
ERRAE Mr. Harn Jia-Chen 4 1 el 0l i ol o

Nicholas William Rosast % Mr. Nicholas William Rosa

(RZF—RF [resigned on 28 Apri 2016)

RAZTN\BEF) n oyl oyl oyl il oyl oyilii
BRESE Mr. Chao Tien-Shin 44 i Bl Byl Byl iyilii 01
BUkNTES Independent Non-executive

Directors
BKERE Mr. Way Yung-Do 44 i a4 i 1 NEE o
Riafk Mr. Chen Chi 44 i a4 11 11 AR 1
HRERE Mr. Wei Anning 44 o 44 i 1 NER 11
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AR RESARHEMSERIIAGHEE
12 WEHABRE

Notice of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meeting while reasonable notice is

generally given for other board meetings (if any).

Agenda and accompany board papers together with all
appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all
Directors in a timely manner, and at least 3 days before the
intended date of each Board or committee meeting, except
agreed otherwise among the members, to ensure that they
had sufficient time to review the board papers, be adequately
prepared for the meeting, keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to include any matter in the agenda and to make informed
decisions.
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The Board and each Director, upon reasonable request, have
access to independent professional advice to assist them in
performing their duties to the Company, at the Company's
expense. When needed and upon making request to the Board,
Directors may obtain independent professional advice at the

Company’s expense in carrying out their duties.

Minutes of all the meetings of the Board, the audit committee
(the "Audit Committee"”) of the Company, the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the Company
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”,
together with the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and other committee(s) of the Board, the “Board Committees”)
of the Company are kept by the Company Secretary. All of the
above minutes record the matters considered and the discussions
and decisions reached by the relevant members in sufficient
detail, including any concern raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed. Any Director may inspect the minutes at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice.

Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors or members of
the relevant committee for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is sent to all Directors or

committee members for their record.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the Board and the chief
executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) of the Company
to ensure a balance of power and authority, and has adopted a set
of consolidated memorandum of duties setting out its division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer on 23 March 2012. In the year 2016, the position of the
Chairman was held by Mr. Han Jia-Hwan throughout the whole
year, while the position of Chief Executive Officer was held by Mr.
Han Chia-Yin from 1 January 2016 until his resignation from such
post with effect from 1 April 2016 and was since then taken by Mr.
Ou Chang-Jou.

This ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s duty
to manage the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’'s duty to
oversee the overall internal operation of the Company.

The core duties of the Chairman include (among others):

o overseeing the development of the long-term strategies,
objectives and policies for the Company;
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ensuring, with the assistance of the management, that the
Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and are appropriate

briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings;

providing leadership for the Board;

ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities, and discuss all key and appropriate issues in
a timely manner, with good corporate governance practices

and procedures;

taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate

practices and procedures are in place;

ensuring, with (where appropriate) delegation to Company
Secretary or a designated Director, that the agenda for each
Board meeting are drawn up and approving the same, taking

into account matters proposed by other Directors;

encouraging all Directors to fully and actively contribute to
the Board's affairs and taking the lead to ensure that it acts

in the best interests of the Company;

encouraging Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion of issues and

ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;

promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating
the effective contribution of Directors, in particular, non-
executive Directors, and promoting the constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors;

holding meeting(s) at least annually with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the executive Directors present. The Board regarded
such meeting as opinion exchange gathering whereby a
broad range of strategic and performance matters were

openly discussed;
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° ensuring appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and that views of

shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

° attending the annual general meeting of the Company
and arranging for the chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
(as appropriate) or in the absence of the chairmen of such
committees, another member of same committee or
failing this his duly appointed delegate, to be available to
answer questions at the the annual general meeting of the

Company; and

° deciding whether a resolution at a general meeting of the
Company relating purely to a procedural or administrative
matter should be excluded from the requirement for voting
by poll.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Company has entered into service contracts with or issued
letters of appointment to its Directors setting out the key terms

and conditions of their appointments.

Under article 108 of the Company’s article of association, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation and every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years while those
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. Any Director
who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in the 3 years
preceding the annual general meeting shall retire by rotation at
such annual general meeting. Any further Directors so to retire
shall be those who have been longest in office since their last re-
election or appointment and so that as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be

determined by lot.
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In accordance with the said provision of the articles of association
of the Company and the Code Provision A.4.2, one-third of the
Directors (namely Mr. Chao Tien-Shin, Mr. Way Yung-Do and Mr.
Wei Anning) retired from office by rotation and were re-elected
as Directors at the last annual general meeting of the Company
(“AGM") held on 24 June 2016.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received a written confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director of his independence to the Company. The
Company has assessed the independence and considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent based on
the independence criteria in accordance with the requirements
in Listing Rules, their non-involvement in the daily operation and
management of the Group and the absence of any relationships
which will interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgment.

The Company confirms that as at the date of this annual report,
the years of service of all independent non-executive Directors are
less than 9 except Mr. Way Yung Do and Mr. Chen Chih. Should
the Board wish to seek for the further appointments of those
independent non-executive Directors serving more than 9 years
from the shareholders, separate resolutions will be proposed to
the shareholders and the reasons to justify their independency
despite of the length of their services will be contained in relevant
papers to the shareholders.

Non-executive Directors

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The current
term of appointment for the non-executive Directors (including

independent non-executive Directors) are as follows:



Name of Non-executive Director/

Independent Non-executive Directors

FPTES BUFPITESHE

Term of Appointment
£ 5R

Mr. Han Chia-Yau
ERFHRAE

Mr. Harn Jia-Chen
BRREE

Mr. Chao Tien-Shin
HRENRE

Mr. Way Yung-Do
BB LA

Mr. Chen Chih
BRIA S A

Mr. Wei Anning
MELE

W R A

EEECKIREEZEES  REEARER
REENTRARRERAFERRCSEER
EERMERIFVIZE - RRZBEEER

BFREERAE REENEEZEE -

FRREZEGZHBENTXIREEER

& /NEf o

From 25 June 2014 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2017
BE-Z—NMFEAA-_TRHABARE T+t FRBRAFREE

From 25 June 2014 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2017
B NFAA-+RAHRBRE Tt FRFBAFRSLER

From 24 June 2016 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2019
B RNFAA-THNHEE T NFRRBAFRSE

From 24 June 2016 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2019
B RNFARAZTHHERE T NFRRBAFRSER

From 26 June 2015 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2018
BE-ZE—RAFANAZTNARE T \FRRBFRSLH

From 24 June 2016 to the conclusion of the AGM of 2019
A R"FAAZTEARE_ZT-—NFRERBFASLE

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established the Nomination Committee to provide
a framework and set the standards for the appointment of high
quality Directors who should have the capacity and ability to lead
the Company towards achieving sustainable development. It
considers matters regarding the nomination and/or appointment or

re-appointment of director(s).

Details of the Nomination Committee are set out in the sub-

section headed “Nomination Committee” below.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The management of the Company works closely with the newly
appointed Director(s) (if any) both immediately before and after his
appointment to acquaint the newly appointed Director(s) with the
duties and responsibilities as a Director and the business operation
of the Company.

A package compiled and reviewed by the Company’s legal
advisors setting out such duties and responsibilities under the
Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of Laws
of Hong Kong) and other related law and relevant regulatory
requirements of Hong Kong is provided to each newly appointed
Director. The package also includes information relating to the
operations and business of the Group. The Directors are updated
with the latest developments in laws, rules and regulations
relating to the duties and responsibilities of directors from time
to time. Guidelines for directors issued by the Company Registry
of Hong Kong have been forwarded to each Director for his

information and ready reference.

The Board views that the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are well-aware of their
functions and have been actively performing their functions
including but not limited to exercising their independent judgment
at the Board meetings, taking the lead where potential conflicts
of interest arise, scrutinizing the Company’s performance and
providing constructive and informed advice on the business
strategy, policy, performance and management of the Company.
They regularly review the financial information, monitor the
operational performance of the Company and serve on the Audit

Committee, Remuneration and Nomination Committee.
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The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their
respective appointments, and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments. They have also
informed the Company of the identity of other public companies
or organisations they serve and the time involved in these public
companies or organisations.

All Directors have devoted their time and attention to the affairs of
the Company with their hands-on knowledge and expertise in the
areas and operation in which he is charged with. The contribution
made by the Directors to the affairs of the Company is measured
in terms of time as well as quality of the attention and the ability
of the Directors with reference to his necessary knowledge
and expertise. The attendance of Board meetings, general
meeting(s) and Board Committee meetings indicates the constant
participation of all Directors, including executive, independent
non-executive and other non-executive Directors and ensures the
better understanding of the views of shareholders by all Directors.
The extent of participation and contribution should be viewed both

quantitatively and qualitatively.

To fulfil their duties properly, where they consider it as necessary
to obtain additional information other than that is provided by
the management, the Directors made inquiries during the Board
meetings and Board Committee meetings. The queries raised by
Directors have received a prompt and full response.
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INpUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory

developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate

the discharge of their responsibilities through various Board

meetings, resolutions, memos and Board papers. According to

the records maintained by the Company, the Directors received

the following training with an emphasis on the roles, functions

and duties of a director of a listed company in compliance with the

requirement of the Code on continuous professional development

during the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016:

- B Directors Read materials
HITES Executive Directors
BRENRE v Mr. Han Jia-Hwan v
BREILLE v Mr. Han Chia-Yin v
FHITES Non-executive Directors
BRFRE v Mr. Han Chia-Yau v
BRREE v Mr. Harn Jia-Chen v
HWRESLE v Mr. Chao Tien-Shin v
BIYFHTES Independent

Non-executive Directors
BB LA v Mr. Way Yung-Do v
FRy8 5 4 v Mr. Chen Chih v
R & B A v Mr. Wei Anning v

KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS GUIDELINES

The Board has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transaction on terms no less exacting than the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors and they
have confirmed that throughout the year ended 31 December
2016, they complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

The Directors’ interests in shares of the Company as at 31
December 2016 are set out on pages 86 to 88 of this annual

report.

The Board has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for the relevant employee,
including any employee or a director or employee of a subsidiary
or holding company of the Company who, because of his office
or employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation
to the Company or its securities, in respect of their dealings in the

Company'’s securities.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board delegates its powers and authorities from time to
time to the Board Committees in order to ensure the operational
efficiency and specific issues are being handled by relevant
expertise. All Board Committees are provided with accurate and
sufficient information in timely manner so as to enable the Board
Committees to make informed decisions for the benefit of the
Company and sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the
management have been set out in the Director's Memorandum
In Discharging Director’s Duties (the “Director's Memorandum”)
adopted by the Board on 23 March 2012. The Board has
reviewed the said memorandum on periodically basis to ensure
that it remain appropriate. The policy for segregation of duties
and responsibilities between the Board and the permitted
delegates has been clearly defined and provided in the Director’s
Memorandum as internal guidelines of the company.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include

those relating to (among others):

o corporate and capital structure;

. corporate strategy;

o significant policies affecting the Company as a whole;

o material changes to policies adopted by the Board;

o business plan including major production and marketing
plans, budgets and publication of announcements;
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. key financial matters;

. change to the structure, size and composition of the Board,

° appointment, removal or reappointment of Board members,

senior management and auditors;

J remuneration of Directors and senior management; and

o communication with key stakeholders, including shareholders

and regulatory bodies.

Each Director has a copy of the Director’'s Memorandum and

clearly understood the above delegation policy of the Company.

For aspects of management and administration functions
delegated to the management, the Board has given clear
directions as to the management’s power, particularly as to where
management should report back and obtain prior Board approval
before making decisions or entering into any commitments on

behalf of the Company.

BoarD COMMITTEES

In 2016, the Board had 4 Board Committees including the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the Executive

Committee and Nomination Committee, all with specific terms of

reference, to oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs.
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RZZE—R"F EZZECHBENERES Attendance of the relevant members of the Board Committee at
ZEEEHRMNLFREIRTIOT the meetings of the committees in 2016 is as follows:
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Executive Committee Committee Committee
Committee Meetings Meeting(s) Meeting(s)

PTEEE ENZEEE8E FMWEEES2E 2 REZEEER

HITES Executive Directors

BRELE Mr. Han Jia-Hwan 13/13 TEA 17 1
BRELE Mr. Han Chia-Yin 13/13 TiERA TEA TEHA
EHITES Non-Executive Directors

BRFRAE Mr. Han Chia-Yau TEA TEA n TEA
BRRLE Mr. Harn Jia-Chen NERA NEm @A 1/1

Nicholas William Rosa Mr. Nicholas William Rosa
TE(R=ZZT—/"F (resigned on 28 April 2016)

MA=+N\BEHE) NE A NEA TNEA TNE A
HRELYE Mr. Chao Tien-Shin N N @A NEA
BIUFHTES Independent Non-executive

Directors
BUKELE Mr. Way Yung-Do B 4/4 11 1/1
BRSaTE Mr. Chen Chih TEH 44 17 1/1
NZBEEE Mr. Wei Anning T 4l4 1/1 11
BEHITE Chief Executive Officer
BE A A Mr. Ou Chang-Jou 13/13 A TERA TEA
B Chief Strategic Officer
TEERE Mr. Li Jing-Hui 9/9 B NEF TNE A
BFEEER Chief Operation Officer
EHHEE Mr. Lu Shih-Che 13/13 NEA TNEHA TEA
BEMBE Chief Financial Officer
e+ Ms. Chen Li-Chin 13/13 B NEFA TNE A
HITRARS Executive Consultant
EiRELA Mr. Ricky Wong 13/13 T A TEA T

KRELE M (Z2M) B PR F) DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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NoMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 14 September
2007. The majority of the members are independent non-
executive Directors. This Committee is chaired by Mr. Chen
Chih (an independent non-executive Director) with Mr. Han Jia-
Hwan (an executive Director), Mr. Harn Jia-Chen (a non-executive
Director) and Mr. Mr. Way Yung-Do and Mr. Wei Anning (each
an independent non-executive Director) as members. The
Committee held 1 meeting(s) during 2016.

The Nomination Committee is governed by its current terms of
reference adopted on 9 August 2013, which are closely aligned
with the relevant Code Provisions requirements and are available
at both the Company’'s website www.dfa3999.com and HKEx's

website www.hkex.com.hk.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following (among others):

° to review the structure, size and diversity of the Board
at least annually and to make recommendation to the
Board regarding any proposed changes to implement the

Company’s corporate strategy;

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and to select or to make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

o to assess the independence of the independent non-

executive Directors;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and succession planning of Directors; and

o to review the Board Diversity Policy (details of the Board

Diversity Policy are set out in the sub-section headed “Board
Diversity Policy” below).
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In 2016, 1 Nomination Committee meeting was held on 29 March
2016 during which the following tasks were performed by the
Committee:

o considered and approved the resignation of Mr. Han Chia-
Yin from the position of the Chief Executive Officer and the
appointment of Mr. Ou Chang-Jou as the Chief Executive
Officer in Mr. Han Chia-Yin's stead;

° reviewed the current Board structure, diversity and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience);

° assessed the independence of all independent non-
executive Directors;

° reviewed the diversity of the Board taking into account a
number of factors as set out in the Board Diversity Policy;
and

o reviewed the necessary time for the Directors to discharge
their duties and responsibilities.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) on 9 August 2013 which sets out its approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With
a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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The Board Diversity Policy provides measurable objectives
for selection of Board candidates from diversity perspectives
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service).

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the said Policy and
will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend

any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

Despite all the Directors being of the same gender, the
Nomination Committee considers that the current composition
of the Board is characterised by diversity after taking into
account the business model of the Group and specific industrial
characteristics, whether considered in terms of educational and

professional background and industry experience.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Wei Anning (an
independent non-executive Director) with other 4 members,
including Mr. Han Jia-Hwan (an executive Director), Mr. Han Chia-
Yau (a non-executive Director) and Mr. Way Yung-Do and Mr.
Chen Chih (each an independent non-executive Director), the

majority of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of
reference, which are revised by the Board on 23 March 2012. The
terms of reference are made available on the Company’s website
www.dfa3999.com and HKEx's website www.hkex.com.hk.

ZZE—XEFEF R Annual Report 2016

61



62

FMEZEEeR TR LFAATHAREL
THRAIE 325K - TRRITEH - Ust
ARRFAAESE RS MREEE N BERM
B ANRELHIRT I SH MR 2L TR &
RERENREFMAOESESRLEBRE -
FHERE NS EETE THBEARNDER
ERER A RAENRBRERN S
B WIRREREREETENNTESER
BREEENHMIER -

RoF—xE  FWERRR T <%=
AZthABRG-REH - &
AT -

~
AREEBRECABEBERZ R
Z8mE &

s EZEREFREFERBARFBRAZ
BRHIB D ERGERETEERD
BRBIBD  FEREREBEAT 2K
B o

EEEBRETBRXHREREHETMI R
MHMEEetE 2 i AW ERMERR

==

TE °

KRELE M (Z2M) B PR F) DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The Remuneration Committee was established on 14 September
2007 pursuant to Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. It meets from
time to time to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management, and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee also reviews and
approves the performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from
time to time, and determines, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and

senior management.

During 2016, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting was held on 29
March 2016 during which the following tasks were performed by

the Committee:

o reviewed a report prepared by the management regarding
the execution progress of employee incentive and workforce

optimization measures of the Company in 2016; and

o considered and proposed to the Board the grant of restricted
shares to certain employees pursuant to the Company's
current restricted share award scheme as an incentive to

retain elite talents.

The management provides administrative support and
implements the approved remuneration packages and other
human resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration

Committee.
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Emolument Policy and Long-Term Incentive Plan

To attract and retain talent and calibre, the Company provides
a competitive remuneration package to its executive Directors
and senior management. This comprises base monthly salary,
guaranteed cash benefits and allowances, special allowances,
variable pay, long-term incentive plan. The amount of variable
pay is set at a percentage of the fixed pay, and is paid half-yearly
or yearly relative to performance delivered through plans and
objectives which have pre-determined criteria and standards. The
Group’s emolument policy and the long-term incentive plan which
primarily consists of the share option scheme and the restricted
share award scheme are described in the section headed “Report

of the Directors” in this annual report.

The fees and any other reimbursement or emolument payable to
the Directors by band and senior management are set out in note

8 to the financial statements.

AupiT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 independent non-
executive Directors as members, namely Mr. Way Yung-Do,
Mr. Chen Chih and Mr. Wei Anning. Mr. Way Yung-Do is the
chairman of the Audit Committee and has accumulated substantial
experience in financial advisory, accounting and auditing. Details
of Mr. Way's biography are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management Profile” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee usually meets 4 times a year to review the
Company’s quarterly, interim and annual results and the integrity
of the Group's financial statements. The Audit Committee is
accountable to the Board and assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities in ensuring an effective and adequate system
is in place for internal controls and for meeting its external
financial reporting obligations and compliance with other legal
and regulatory requirements. The Audit Committee also reviews
and monitors the scope and effectiveness of the work of external
auditors.
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The Audit Committee is governed by its terms of reference The
terms of reference are made available on the Company's website
www.dfa3999.com and HKEx's website www.hkex.com.hk.

The Audit Committee meetings are normally attended by the
Company’s chief financial officer. When meetings concern
the routine finance control, the head of the internal control
department of the Company also attends the meeting to report
on the problems identified during the internal control audits and
recommendation of methods to alleviate and solve the problems
identified. The external auditor is often present on discussion of

the audit of financial results and audit planning.

In 2016, the Audit Committee held 4 meetings during which

the following matters were reviewed and considered by the

Committee:

o the auditing work performed by external auditor in 2015;

o the internal control reports submitted by the internal audit
department of the Company and the effectiveness of the
systems of internal control and risk management of the
Group;

o the proposal from the management for improving taxation;

° the completeness and accuracy of the 2015 annual and 2016

quarterly and interim financial statements;

o the Company’s compliance with statutory and regulatory

requirements;

° the developments in accounting standards (if any) and the

effect on the Company;

o the management letter prepared by the external auditor;
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o the audit fees payable to external auditor, the scope and
timetable of the audit for year 2016;

o recommendations to the Board, for the approval by
shareholders, for the reappointment of Messrs. KPMG as

the external auditor, which the Board agreed and accepted;

o the aggregate value, pricing policy and other terms of
the continuing connected transactions carries out by the
Company in the year of 2015; and

° the effectiveness and execution progress of the tax
optimisation measures employed by the Group.

The Audit Committee has been advised that it may seek
independent professional advice at the expense of the Company
wherever necessary. The Audit Committee is also supported by

the staff of internal audit department and the external auditor.

ExecuTivE COMMITTEE

Executive Committee

The Board established the Executive Committee on 14 September
2007 with specific written terms of reference. The Board has
delegated responsibilities to the Executive Committee for making
certain decisions for the management of the Company.

The Executive Committee is bound by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 12 March 2010 and
further revised pursuant to the Board's resolution passed on 16
December 2016. The English version of the terms of reference is
available on the Company’s website at www.dfa3999.com.
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR F) DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

In accordance with its terms of reference, members of the
Executive Committee shall be appointed by the Board from
amongst the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company only. The Executive Committee shall consist of no
more than 7 members, which include the executive Directors,
the chief operation officer or the chief financial officer of the
Company and other senior management of the Company. The
Executive Committee currently comprises the following members

as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jia-Hwan (Chairman)
Mr. Han Chia-Yin

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Ou Chang-Jou

Special Assistant to Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Jonathan Fang-Tsu Han

Chief Operation Officer
Mr. Lu Shih-Che

Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Chen Li-Chin

Executive Consultant
Mr. Ricky Wong

The work completed by the Executive Committee during 2016

included consideration of the following matters:

o approving any routine matters or matters concerning day-to-

day operation of the Group;

° formulating for the Board's review the Group’s overall

corporate governance policy and investor relation policy;
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o implementing the annual business plan, operating and
capital expenditure budgets of the Company as approved by
the Board; and

° implementing the strategic plans and long-term objectives

as approved by the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had net assets of
approximately RMB1,761,395,000 and the Company recorded a
profit attributable to equity holders of the parent of approximately
RMB53,899,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in annual and interim reports, inside information
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the

Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for the
preparation of the accounts for each financial period which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the

results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company regarding
its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on page
99.
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR F) DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and hence decide that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements set out on pages
108 to 263 on a going concern basis. The Board is not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a

going concern.

The bases on which the Company generates or preserves value
over the longer term and the strategy for delivering its objectives
are explained in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set
out in pages 10 to 18 in this annual report.

The management provides the Board with sufficient explanation
and information, such as the Group’s major business activities and
key financial information, to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and other information of

the Company put before the Board for approval.

The management also provides all Directors with monthly updates
giving them a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules.
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Risk MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and oversees the said
system and is responsible for reviewing their effectiveness. The
Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and
corporate governance roles in the Group s financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and internal controls, and the

resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

In addition to the Board's oversight responsibilities, the Company
has also developed a risk management process to identify,
evaluate and manage significant risks and to resolve material

internal control defects (if any).

The management establishes a specified management system
for the risks of the Company. Members of the internal audit
department of the Company report to the management on a
regular basis to review and assess risks and discuss solutions to
address material internal control defects (if any), including any
improvement relevant to a given year. Results of such reports
and discussions are organized with ratings of each risk and
written response plans. The risk assessment is reviewed by the
management and presented to the Audit Committee or the Board

for their review.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are
adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting
standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks
that may impact on the Group’s performance are appropriately
identified and managed. The systems and internal controls can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business

objectives.
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR F) DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The management is responsible for supervising enterprise risk
management works and reviewing significant aspects of risk
management of the Group. The operating units of the Group,
as risk bearer, identify, evaluate, mitigate and monitor their
own risks, and report such risk management activities to Risk
Management and Compliance department on a quarterly basis.
The Risk Management and Compliance department assesses and
presents regular reports to the management at each regularly

scheduled meeting.

The internal audit department of the Group reports to the Audit
Committee or the Board at the annual meeting of the Audit
Committee or Board, the results of their works during the
preceding period pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness
of internal controls, including but not limited to, indicating any
failures in implementing any internal control systems or material
weaknesses in those systems. The Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems and the effectiveness
of such systems for the year 2016 and considers such systems

effective and adequate.

For the procedures relating to the handling and publishment
of inside information, the management of the Company is
responsible for assessing the potential impact of any significant
urgent situations on the share price of the Company and its
transaction volume, and reports to the Board so that the Board
determines whether such information is considered as inside
information and is required to disclose as soon as practicable in

accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company has employed its own internal auditors to perform
regular and systematic reviews of the Group's internal control
system. The reviews provide reasonable assurance that the
internal control system continues to operate satisfactorily and
effectively within the Group and the Company.
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Each year, the Audit Committee reviews the findings made by
the external auditor in respect of issues encountered by it in
preparation of the audit report, which often cover issues relating
to internal control. The Audit Committee also reviews the risk
management and internal control report submitted by the
Company'’s internal audit department. The Audit Committee will
then review the actions performed or the plans to be carried out by
the management in addressing the issues. The issues identified
and the corresponding remedial plans and recommendations are

then submitted to the Board for consideration.

For the year of 2016, no critical internal control issues have been
identified.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company is committed to ensuring compliance with
regulatory requirements under the Listing Rules, applicable laws
and regulations in handling connected transactions. Accordingly,
the Company implemented various internal control mechanisms
to identify and monitor connected transactions to ensure that
connected transactions are conducted under normal commercial
terms or on terms that are fair and reasonable and properly
disclosed and (if necessary) approved by the independent
shareholders in accordance with Listing Rules. The connected
persons will be required to abstain from voting in the general
meetings. Details of the connected transactions of the Company
during the year are set out in the section headed “Report of the

Directors” of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year under review, the remuneration paid for services

ARISFAZ OB & KRBT - provided by the Company's external auditor is roughly as follows:

| Amount

(AR®BFIT) (RMB’000)

EZRE 4,474 Audit services 4,474
IEFZRTE Non-audit services

o TGRS 228 e Tax services 228

e ESGF RS 110 e ESG consultation services 110
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR F) DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

COMPANY SECRETARY

The position of Company Secretary is held by Ms. Cho Yi Ping,
a practising solicitor of Hong Kong who is not an employee of
the Company. The Company Secretary can contact the Company
through the head of legal department of the Company, Ms. Feng
Yuxia. The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board and
reports to the Board Chairman from time to time. All Directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

Being the Company Secretary, Ms. Cho Yi Ping has to take no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year 2016. She has fulfiled the requirement during the year under

review.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company endeavours to uphold a high level of corporate
transparency. Keeping shareholders, investors, analysts, bankers
and other stakeholders informed of our corporate strategies and
business operations has been one of the key objectives of our

investor relations team.

The general meetings of the Company provide the best
opportunity for communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Company complied with the required notice
periods for general meetings under the Code Provisions, the

applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Also, separate resolutions for each substantially separate issue
were proposed at the AGM held on 24 June 2016.

The chairpersons of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees and, where applicable,
the independent Board committee, are available to answer

questions at the general meetings of the Company.
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KRELE M (Z2H) BFR2 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The representatives of the external auditor of the Company,
Messrs. KPMG also attended the AGM held on 24 June 2016 to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and

auditor independence.

VortING BY PoLL

The Company expresses in each relevant corporate
communication that the shareholders shall vote by poll so as to
allow the shareholders to have one vote for every share of the
Company held. The chairman of the meeting would explain the
voting procedure and answer any questions from the shareholders
regarding voting by poll in the general meetings. The poll voting
results of the general meetings were published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively on the same

day after the general meetings were held.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS To CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL

MEETING

Under Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, at least one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. The
relevant extraordinary general meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING

FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Based on the requirement of the revised Corporate Governance
Code, a Shareholders Communication Policy was formulated and
adopted on 23 March 2012 in order to ensure the shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company. The Board has
taken appropriate steps to provide effective communication with

shareholders.

All published information, including all the statutory
announcements, press releases and event calendars, is promptly
posted on the Group’s website at www.dfa3999.com Investors
can also submit enquiries to the Board or senior management
by sending emails to investment@dachan.com.cn or directly
by raising questions or proposals at the general meeting of the
Company. The Company’s dedicated investor relations team takes
a proactive approach to communicate with existing and potential
investors in a timely manner by making regular face-to-face

meetings and conference calls with investors.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, no amendment to the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company has
been made.

CONCLUSION

Going forward, the Company will continue to work diligently to

maintain the highest level of corporate transparency possible.

— NEF 3R Annual Report 2016

75



76

EXEeREAE_ZT-RF+-A=1t—H
LRz FERERBERITBRE -

B S 3)

ARBNEBEBKARELR  BBEHNEBEA
ARESEEAN—ISRER 2R
ECBANIREEMTIRSR -

S5 1ol i e e BL

BIACHE SR B R Bl B BL

BERAASBEEHENRTER(BHEERMS
R RBEFETON) AR AT BER AR A
ERBANENBENAFRIMBHE] T
BRE I R ITERENmENT | &0 -

4 2 e e A e e

BRMEERAEEEEBENSEZRR -
At AEE-HEIRTOAPRTEEN
B RREST100-1=089E5 » A&EAR
EHBRRLEEWHEELEEAREEN
BEAETE -

BEE R B 7 2 AR S (B 7R TE A% B ) T 05 R

@ o Rt AREDERARERERE &
FRERREE BB IMELE M T K ERK

SR R B

REFER  AEBEWRABERMEREH
BEAFEZAMERIERZITR

LN iy

BE-Z—AFt+t-A=+—HES5 E=
SUARBRITMEAERENTEZERSE
% -

KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The Board submits the annual report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding, and operation of a highly vertically integrated business
encompassing feeds production, chicken meat processing and
supply of processed foods through its subsidiaries.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

REVIEW OF THE GROUP’S BUSINESS AND PERFORMANCE

Details of the fair review (including an analysis using key financial
performance indicators) and the possible future development
trend of the Group's business are set out in the sections
headed "Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and
“"Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Food safety is the most important risk faced by the Group's
business. In this regard, the Group has always been focusing on
building a traceable platform and adhering to the principle of 100-
1=0 so as to avoid the potential adverse impact of food safety
incidents that may occur in the operation of the Group.

Exchange rate fluctuation is also a market risk which the Group
seeks to actively handle. The Group has adjusted the currency of
borrowings as and when appropriate to minimise unnecessary
loss arising from change of currency.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group was not aware of any violation of the
relevant laws and regulations which may have significant impact
on it.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Since 31 December 2016, the Board was not aware of any
significant event affecting the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

Promoting the sustainable development is a social responsibility
incumbent upon the Group. The Group has always been committed to
the reservation of resources and emission reduction and has replaced
coal-fired boilers with clean energy boilers by batches since 2015.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

"Integrity, Modesty and Foresight” are the core values of the
Group. The Group maintains a good cooperation relationship and
establishes a prospective cooperation model with its suppliers and
customers by persistently acting with integrity and with a humble
attitude.

The employees of the Group are principally engaged in feed
and animal nutrition segment, poultry and value meat segment,
global food segment and various supporting segments and are
responsible for relevant duties respectively in sales and marketing
management, product manufacturing, product planning and
marketing, administrative and human resources, financial and
operation analysis, audit and legal risk management and control,
material procurement and logistics management, information
technology technical support, product research and development,
quality and safety management and so on.

The Group has been upholding the following principles when
choosing, training, using and retaining talents:

1. Recruit and select individuals who are suitable for the
Company’s corporate culture and job position based on
working plans and key performance indicators of the
position;

2. Design specific training courses and launch corresponding
training plans according to different positions and ranks
of employees to continuously enhance employee’s
management and professional skills and to provide a
reservoir of outstanding talents for the Group;

3. Design and implement different performance appraisal
systems and conduct suitable post adjustment and job
rotation based on different job natures, to place talents in
suitable position and optimise their performance;
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4., Determine employee’s remuneration level based on their
experiences and performances as well as the market
salaries and implement performance bonus incentive
program to employees in different positions and also select
important talents every year for appropriate reward.

There is no significant dispute between the Group and its
employees. The Group commits to build an effective and efficient
team and enable our employees to share the results of our
operation.

SUBSIDIARIES

A list of subsidiaries together with their places of operations
and incorporation and particulars of their issued share capital/
registered capital are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 108 to 263.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB53,899 thousand (2015: loss approximately RMB153,549
thousand) have been transferred to reserves. Other movements
in reserves of the Group and of the Company are set out on page
230 of the annual report and note 26(d) to the financial statements.

To reserve the resources for the Group's business development,
the Board decides not to distribute any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: no dividend).
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had no reserve available
for distribution to its Shareholders (as at 31 December 2015: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 26(c) to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which

would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to the existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMB111,000.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFT

Particulars of bank loans and overdrafts of the Group as at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

LISTING OF SHARES

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 4 October 2007.
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H DIRECTORS

RERARBEARERS  ARRESH([E The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year

ESDYo and up to the date of this report were:

PATED EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

BREBRE(FE) Mr. Han Jia-Hwan (Chairman)

BRELE Mr. Han Chia-Yin

FEBATE G NonN-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

WRESLE Mr. Chao Tien-Shin

BRFILE Mr. Han Chia-Yau

BRELEE Mr. Harn Jia-Chen

Nicholas William Rosa &4 (2 SF1F 17 Mr. Nicholas William Rosa (resigned with effect
B =F—NF A=+ HELERK) from 28 April 2016)

B JEsfr INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

BRIG S Mr. Chen Chih

BAXELEAE Mr. Way Yung-Do

&=kt Mr. Wei Anning

KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors have entered into a service
contract with the Company with no fixed term of appointment,
whereas each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors have entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company.

However, the term of appointment of each Director is subject to
the articles of association (the “Articles”) of the Company and/or
the Listing Rules and/or the laws of the Cayman Islands and may
be terminated by the Company or the Director pursuant to the
service contract or the letter of appointment.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles, at each annual
general meeting, not less than one-third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation and, under code
provision A.4.2 of the corporate governance code of the Company,
every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. All
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Han-Chia Yau, Mr. Harn-Jia Chen, Mr. Chen
Chih shall retire from office by rotation at the conclusion of the
forthcoming AGM.

All of the abovenamed Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out in pages 32 to 38 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND THE FIVE HIGHEST-
PAID INDIVIDUALS

The emoluments of Directors, senior management and the five
highest-paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those disclosed in “Connected Transaction” of this
section and "Related Party Transactions” in Note 28 to the
Financial Statement, none of the Directors or their connected
entity or their associates had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 8.10(2)

As confirmed by each of our Directors, during the year ended 31
December 2016, none of them was engaged in or had any interest
in any business that competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business as required to
be disclosed under Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Restricted Share Award Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme, the details of which are disclosed below and
Notes 24(a) and 24(b) to the Financial Statements, no equity-
linked agreement was entered into by the Company during 2016
or subsisted at the end of 2016.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Restricted Share Award Scheme (the “RSAS") was adopted
by the Board on 23 December 2008 (the “Adoption Date”). Unless
terminated earlier by the Board, the RSAS shall be valid and
effective for a term of ten years commencing from the Adoption
Date. On 23 October 2009, 910,000 shares were granted by
the Company to a number of Directors and senior management,
and all of those shares were vested on 15 December 2011. On
27 October 2011, 390,000 shares were granted to a member of
the senior management, and all of those shares were vested on
15 December 2013. On 26 March 2012, 2,025,000 shares were
granted to a number of Directors, senior management staff and
certain employees, 1,887,000 of which were vested by 15 May
2014, the other 138,000 of which were cancelled due to four
employees’ resignation. On 16 January 2015, 3,727,500 shares
were granted to a member of the senior management and certain
employees, 1,242,500 of which were vested on 10 June 2015,
1,212,500 of which were vested by 10 June 2016. On 30 March
2016, 1,970,000 shares were granted to certain employees,
985,000 of which were vested on 10 June 2016.

The purpose of the RSAS is to recognize the contribution by
certain employees (including without limitation employees who
are also Directors) of the Group and to reward them in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the
Group and to attract suitable personnel for further development of
the Group.
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Pursuant to the terms of the RSAS, the Board may, from time
to time, at its absolute discretion and subject to such terms and
conditions as it may think fit (including the basis of eligibility of
each employee determined by the Board from time to time), select
an employee for participation in the RSAS and determine the
number of shares to be awarded. The Board shall not grant any
award of shares which would result in the total number of shares
being granted by the Board under the RSAS (but not counting
those which have lapsed or have been forfeited) to exceed 2% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants, including but not limited to the employees
and directors of the members of the Group who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. In accordance with the Option
Scheme, the Company may grant up to 100,000,000 share options
within 10 years from its effective date (i.e. 4 October 2007),
representing approximately 9.84% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

No participant may be granted option(s) which would result in the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted to him (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12 months period up to and including
the date of such grant exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the
time being unless such grant has been approved by shareholders
of the Company in general meeting with such grantee and his
associate(s) abstaining from voting.

The grant of option shall lapse automatically unless the grantees
confirm their acceptance together with a remittance in favour of
the Company of HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant within 21
business days following the date of the relevant grant letters.

There is no minimum period required under the Option Scheme
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised save
as otherwise determined by the Board and stated in the relevant
grant letter.
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The subscription price for an option shall be no less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares at the date of the
grant of such option which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares for 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of such option; or (iii) the nominal
value of the Share on the date of the grant of such option. The
following share options were granted and outstanding under the
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2016:
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SRERZIT -f-B ERRE ERRR EARN EREH =1-8 ik (BREERR) () YmB(n)  YmE(ER)
Weighted
Closing prices of average of
the Company’s  closing prices of
shares  the Company's
immediately share
before the dates ~ immediately
Name or As at Granted ~ Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Asat Exercise period of  Exercise price  of the grant of  before exercise
Category of 1 January during during during during 31 December Date of share options per  shareoptions  dates of share
Participant 216 the year the year the year the year 216 grant (hoth dates inclusive) ~ Share (HKS) (HKS) ~ options (HKS)
EEAs 16,480,000 - - 900,000 - 155000 ZF-RF-F 5-nERATAE 0908 090 -
Employees in 178 “I-N\ERATH
Aggregate 16-Jan-15 10:Jun-15 10 10-Jun-18
ait 16,480,000 - - 900,000 - 15,580,000
Total
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JBE By B i J WO BE 2% B R INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

EZZE—R"FF+ZA=+—8 AR AES As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
RE&EmITIRABRA QRIS EBEEZRE (FE Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
EREFLPEGRN(TEHLEEER]) 2 debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
XVE) Bk H B RESF S 8#E the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
mRAE AN TRRIEESRAEGIE (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by

352 G ETF 2B METHE - SiRE LR 8 the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
s +ATEl LB T AZERETERRIN notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
ST ([MR2ESFR ) BAE AR KR Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
FrevtEsm foRE T ¢ Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model

Code"”), were as follows:

(A) AARAGZHER -] : (o)  INTEREST IN THE COMPANY — LONG PosITIONS:
BERA fEARAH
PTEIAREZ BRTRE
EEHE FEEEREE HEROEE @t ZBHES
AR HitiEz
Number of Approximate
underlying % of issued
shares held share capital
Number of under equity of the
Name of Directors ordinary shares held derivatives Total Company
Personal Other
interest interest
HITEE
Executive Directors:
BRE 344,000 - - 344,000 0.034%
Han Jia-Hwan
BREME1) 382,000 200,000 - 582,000 0.057%

Han Chia-Yin (Note 1)

HHTEE :

Non-executive Directors:

HRE (Mit2) - 3,834,000 - 3,834,000 0.377%
Chao Tien-Shin (Note 2)

Ba 300,000 - - 300,000 0.030%
Chen Chih

HKE 300,000 - - 300,000 0.030%
Way Yung-Do

KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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Capital Group Limited ki & 2 &)
Hannibal International Limited Fr#%4&
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Notes:

1. Mr. Han Chia-Yin is deemed to be interested in 200,000 shares held by

his spouse.

2. Mr. Chao Tien-Shin is deemed to be interested in (i) 300,000 shares
jointly held by Mr. Chao and his spouse and (ii) 3,534,000 shares held
by Hannibal International Limited, a subsidiary of CTS Capital Group

Limited which is controlled by Mr. Chao and his spouse.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION OF THE COMPANY — LONG

PosITIONS:

EHERE AR

- UNE BRTRAK

2 £ REHE R R BB

Approximate % of

the relevant associated

Name of Name of associated Nature Interests in corporation’s issued

Directors corporations of interest shares held share capital

BET AR ERHBRAR (H5E1) EnfEn 55,499 0.0075%
Han Chia-Yau Great Wall Enterprise Co. Ltd. (Note 1) Beneficial owner

BRR AR ERHBRAR Engn 59,612 0.0081%
Harn Jia-Chen Great Wall Enterprise Co. Ltd. Beneficial owner

BRE (W72) AR ERHBRAT RIERIRE] 10,242,123 1.3908%

Chao Tien-Shin
(Note 2)

Great Wall Enterprise Co. Ltd.

P £

Interest of controlled

corporation
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Notes:

1. Great Wall Enterprise Co. Ltd. (“Great Wall Enterprise”), a company
incorporated in Taiwan and listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange

Corporation, is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

2. Mr. Chao Tien-Shin was deemed to be interested in the 10,242,123
shares held by Qiao Tai Xing Investment Co. Ltd. controlled by Mr.

Chao and his spouse.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors and chief executive and their associates had any an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as those disclosed in the paragraphs “Restricted Share
Award Scheme"” and “Share Option Scheme” in this section and
in the Notes 24(a) and 24(b) to the Financial Statements, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2016 was the Company or
any of its parent companies, subsidiary undertakings or its parent
companies’ subsidiary undertakings a party to any arrangement
whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions held
by the persons, other than a director or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company:

21 REtE RIDEE BB
Nature of Number of Approximate
Name interests shares %
Waverley Star Limited EniEn 375,899,946 36.99%
Beneficial interests
SMNEERMAR Enlkn 152,924,906 15.05%
Asia Nutrition Technologies Beneficial interests
Corporation
ARKEIR (ZR) BRAR REHID A2 e 528,824,852 52.04%
Great Wall International (Holdings) Ltd. Interests of controlled corporation
ARFHCERHBRAF REHID A2 Ba 528,824,852 52.04%
Great Wall Enterprise Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled corporation
Continental Enterprises Ltd. EanEn 60,000,029 5.90%
Beneficial interests
Contigroup Companies Ltd. REGI AT 2w 60,000,029 5.90%
Interests of controlled corporation
Fribourg Grandchildren Family L.P. REGI AT 2w 60,000,029 5.90%
Interests of controlled corporation
Fribourg Enterprises, LLC REGI AT 2w 60,000,029 5.90%
Interests of controlled corporation
IA Robert Fribourg & RERIAR 2 60,000,029 5.90%
R AN—NAILE
ARA=1+—-RAfERE
Declaration of Trust dated Interests of controlled corporation
May 31, 1957, for the
benefit of Robert Fribourg
JA Paul Jules Fribourg RERIAR 2 s 60,000,029 5.90%

RBEAN-NILEF
TRA=1+—-AfEEE

Declaration of Trust dated
May 31, 1957, for the
benefit of Paul Jules
Fribourg

Interests of controlled corporation
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Nature of Number of Approximate

Name interests shares %

1A Nadine Louise Fribourg & Ly NS £ 60,000,029 5.90%
RRAN-NELE
AA=T—RERE

Declaration of Trust dated
May 31, 1957, for the
benefit of Nadine Louise
Fribourg

LA Charles Arthur Fribourg &
R AR —ntF
AA=T—BERE

Declaration of Trust dated
May 31, 1957, for the
benefit of Charles Arthur
Fribourg

LA Caroline Renee Fribourg &
ZuAN—NA=F
AT BERRE

Trust Agreement Dated
September 16, 1963,
for the benefit of Caroline
Renee Fribourg

Fribourg Charles Arthur
Sosland Morton Irvin
Fribourg Paul Jules

KE=R
Sun Hui Ying

B EXHIBEEN  BE_T—XRF+A
=+—HAL  BARQ ﬂi%&?%ﬁﬂ}\
B (HENREsN EX [EERERTHRA
BEREG  BEARDREFNERRAE ]
SN BEEMALTHMEERARR B
RARBRMD AR D P HEBRIEZES K
HAE 0I5 336 (R BB LR SAR -

Interests of controlled corporation

et NGIPA: 3o 60,000,029 5.90%

Interests of controlled corporation

REH DAz B 60,000,029 5.90%

Interests of controlled corporation

ZA 60,000,029 5.90%
Trustee
ZEA 60,000,029 5.90%
Trustee
A 60,000,029 5.90%
Trustee
Bagn 52,522,000 5.17%

Beneficial interests

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(2)  Marubeni Corporation ([ f14L ] * &RA
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(R ED)ARDA(HALRED (BR
A2 MBAR) RAAH B2 B R
(ERAAHBEA) -

The following Directors are directors/employees of a company

which had an interest or short position in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed

to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO:

Mr. Han Chia-Yin is a director of Great Wall Enterprise Co.,
Ltd. (“Great Wall Enterprise”);

Mr. Han Chia-Yau is a director and the chairman of the board
of the directors of Great Wall Enterprise;

Mr. Harn Jia-Chen is a director of Great Wall Enterprise;

Mr. Chao Tien-Shin is a director of Great Wall Enterprise;

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group carried out a number of connected

transactions with the following connected persons (as defined in

the Listing Rules), namely:

(1)

Great Wall Enterprise (being the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company) and its subsidiaries (being
associates of Great Wall Enterprise) excluding the Group
(the "Excluded Group”); and

Marubeni Corporation (“Marubeni”, being a substantial
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and }L4L (R ED) BBRZAF] (“Marubeni PRC”) (a
subsidiary of Marubeni) and subsidiaries of Marubeni PRC
(all being associates of Marubeni).
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR 5 DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The Group conducted the following continuing connected
transactions (other than those exempted from the annual
reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules)
during the year ended 31 December 2016:

(@)  On 7 May 2015, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of other members of the Group) and Great Wall
Enterprise (for itself and on behalf of other members of
the Excluded Group) entered into the master purchase
(renewal) agreement (“GWE Master Purchase (Renewal)
Agreement”) for a fixed duration of 3 years starting from
1 January 2016. The GWE Master Purchase (Renewal)
Agreement stipulates, in summary terms, that (among
others) (i) the Group shall purchase and the Excluded Group
shall sell products on a non-exclusive basis in accordance
with written quotations or orders to be agreed between
the relevant member of the Group (as the buyer) and that
of the Excluded Group (as the supplier) from time to time
during the said duration; (ii) such written quotations and
orders shall be governed by the terms and conditions of the
GWE Master Purchase (Renewal) Agreement; (iii) prices
of the products shall be agreed on an arms’ length basis
and on normal commercial terms or better and within the
range of fair price prevailing on the market of the same or
similar products in the PRC; and (iv) prices for the products
shall be settled by the relevant member of the Group within
60 days after receiving the relevant invoice(s). Products
which may be purchased by the Group under GWE Master
Purchase (Renewal) Agreement include flour, coated flour
and fermented soybean meal. In addition to the pricing
terms provided in the GWE Master Purchase (Renewal)
Agreement, the Group also adopted a set of internal
policies to determine the prices and terms of the purchases
contemplated thereunder, the details of which, together
with other information regarding the GWE Master Purchase
(Renewal) Agreement, are set out in the Company's
announcement and circular dated 7 May 2015 and 11 June
2015 respectively.
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During the year under review, the total value of products
purchased by the Group from the Excluded Group under the
GWE Master Purchase (Renewal) Agreement amounts to
approximately 22,634 thousand. The Directors confirm that
the Group has followed the said pricing terms and policies
when determining the price and terms of those purchases.

On 7 May 2015, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
other members of the Group) and Great Wall Enterprise
(for itself and on behalf of other members of the Excluded
Group) entered into the master supply (renewal) agreement
("GWE Master Supply (Renewal) Agreement”) for a fixed
duration of 3 years starting from 1 January 2016. The GWE
Master Supply (Renewal) Agreement stipulates, in summary
terms, that (among others) (i) the Group shall supply and
the Excluded Group shall purchase products on a non-
exclusive basis in accordance with written quotations or
orders to be agreed between the relevant member of the
Group (as the supplier) and that of the Excluded Group (as
the buyer) from time to time during the said duration; (ii)
such written quotations and orders shall be governed by the
terms and conditions of the GWE Master Supply (Renewal)
Agreement; (iii) prices of the products shall be agreed by
reference to the cost of production for such products and
using the same price determination basis adopted by the
relevant member of the Group from time to time for sale
of same or similar products to its other customers who are
independent third parties; and (iv) prices for the products
shall be settled by the relevant member of the Excluded
Group within 60 days after receiving the relevant invoice(s).
Products which may be supplied by the Group under the
GWE Master Supply (Renewal) Agreement include aquatic
animal feed products and fresh meat products. In addition
to the pricing terms provided in the GWE Master Supply
(Renewal) Agreement, the Group also adopted a set of
internal policies to determine the prices and terms of
the sales contemplated thereunder, the details of which,
together with other information regarding the GWE Master
Supply (Renewal) Agreement, are set out in the Company's
announcement and circular dated 7 May 2015 and 11 June
2015 respectively.
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During the year under review, the total value of products sold
by the Group to the Excluded Group under the GWE Master
Supply (Renewal) Agreement amounts to approximately
94,445 thousand. The Directors confirm that the Group has
followed the said pricing terms and policies when determining
the price and terms of those sales.

On 7 May 2015, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
other members of the Group) and Marubeni PRC (together
with its subsidiaries the “Marubeni PRC Group”) (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into the master
purchase (renewal 2015) agreement (X8 (ZZE—H
FLERA) $:%) (“Marubeni Master Purchase (Renewal)
Agreement”) for a fixed duration of 3 years starting from 1
January 2016. The Marubeni Master Purchase (Renewal)
Agreement stipulates, in summary terms, that (among
others) (i) the Group agrees to purchase and the Marubeni
PRC Group agrees to sell products (such as soybean
powder, mixed powder, oil, and condiment) on a non-
exclusive basis in accordance with contracts to be made
between the relevant member of the Group (as the buyer)
and that of the Marubeni PRC Group (as the supplier) from
time to time during the said duration under the Marubeni
Master Purchase (Renewal) Agreement; (ii) prices of the
products shall be agreed on an arms’ length basis and on
normal commercial terms or better and within the range
of fair price prevailing on the market of the same or similar
products in the PRC; and (iv) prices for the products shall
be paid by relevant member of the Group after the delivery
of the products by the relevant member of the Marubeni
PRC Group in accordance with the relevant contract
made in respect of such purchases. In addition to the
pricing terms provided in the Marubeni Master Purchase
(Renewal) Agreement, the Group also adopted a set of
internal policies to determine the prices and terms of the
purchases contemplated thereunder, the details of which,
together with other information regarding the Marubeni
Master Purchase (Renewal) Agreement, are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 7 May 2015.
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During the year under review, the total value of products
purchased by the Group from the Marubeni PRC Group
under the Marubeni Master Purchase (Renewal) Agreement
amounts to approximately 1,505 thousand. The Directors
confirm that the Group has followed the said pricing terms
and policies when determining the price and terms of those
purchases.

On 7 May 2015, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
other members of the Group) and Marubeni entered into
the master supply (renewal 2015) agreement (“Marubeni
Master Supply (Renewal) Agreement”) for a fixed duration
of 3 years starting from 1 January 2016. The Marubeni
Master Supply (Renewal) Agreement stipulates, in summary
terms, that (among others) (i) the Group agrees to supply
to Marubeni food related products under written purchase
orders placed pursuant to Marubeni Master Supply
(Renewal) Agreement by Marubeni from time to time during
the said duration; (ii) prices of the products shall be agreed
by reference to the cost of production for such products and
using the same price determination basis as that adopted
by the relevant member of the Group from time to time for
sale of same or similar products to its other customers who
are independent third parties; and (iii) prices of the products
shall be paid by Marubeni, upon acceptance of the products
tendered in conformity with the purchase order placed by
Marubeni, within the period and manner as laid down in the
said purchase order. In addition to the pricing terms provided
in the Marubeni Master Supply (Renewal) Agreement, the
Group also adopted a set of internal policies to determine the
prices and terms of the sales contemplated thereunder, the
details of which, together with other information regarding
the Marubeni Master Supply (Renewal) Agreement, are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 7 May 2015.

During the year under review, the total value of products
sold by the Group to Marubeni under the Marubeni Master
Supply (Renewal) Agreement amounts to approximately
154,387 thousand. The Directors confirm that the Group
has followed the said pricing terms and policies when
determining the price and terms of those sales.
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KRELE M (Z2M) B PR F) DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

Save as disclosed above, there are no other connected
transactions which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules during the year.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
confirmed that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions were entered into: (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of the Group's business; (ii) either on normal commercial terms or
on terms no less favourable to the Group than those available to
or from independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the
terms of the respective agreements governing such transactions
on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has reviewed the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions pursuant to rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules and advised the Board in writing with a copy
provided to the Stock Exchange that nothing has come to its
attention that causes it to believe that such transactions: (i) have
not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing polices of the Group
where the transactions involve the provisions of goods in services
by the Group; (iii) were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the cap set by the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers in 2016 and 2015 accounted for approximately 3.3%
and 3.4% of the total sales of the Group respectively. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of total purchases for both
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company'’s issued shares) had any interest in the five largest
customers or suppliers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the Group is set up by its human
resources department and seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence
of the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of
the Company will be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to factors including the Group’s operating results,
responsibilities required of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market information.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this annual
report (i.e. 21 April 2017), the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than service contracts with directors or full-time
employees of the Company, by which a person undertakes the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of any business of the Company was entered into or in force
during 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company's articles of association, every director
of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices except such (if any) as
they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty.
Such provisions were in force during 2016 and remained in force
as of the date of this report.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out in page 268 of the
annual report.

AUDITORS

KPMG as the Company’s auditors, will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Han Jia-Hwan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of DaChan
Food (Asia) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of DaChan
Food (Asia) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 108 to 263, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued by International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code"”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and

equipment

Refer to note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 187.

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2016,
the Group held property,
plant and equipment
with a carrying value
of RMB1,364,905,000
which was used in the
Group's chicken meat
and feed producing

operations.

The Group has sustained
losses in recent years and
recognised impairment
of property, plant and
equipment as at 31
December 2015.

As the Group's net assets
exceeded the Group's
market capitalisation as
at 31 December 2016,
management considered
that indicators of potential
impairment of property,
plant and equipment
existed and performed an
assessment to determine
the recoverable amounts
of the related property,
plant and equipment as at
that date.

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment included the

following:

° evaluating management's
processes and procedures for
the identification of indicators
of potential impairment
of property, plant and
equipment;

o evaluating management’s
identification of CGUs and
the allocation of assets to
each CGU and management's
methodology adopted in the
preparation of the discounted
cash flow forecasts with
reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting
standards;

° comparing key financial data
in the discounted cash flow
forecasts with the relevant
data, including revenue, cost
of sales and other operating
expenses, in the financial
budgets which were approved
by the directors;

ZZ—XEFIR Annual Report 2016
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BAEETEE RPN E O ERE The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in
ZEE our audit
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cash flow forecasts for
the separately identifiable
cash-generating units
(“CGUs") to which
the property, plant and
equipment had been
allocated and comparing
the net present value
with the carrying values
of property, plant and
equipment to determine
the whether impairment
recognised in prior years
should be reversed
or whether additional

impairment was required.

The preparation of
discounted cash flow
forecasts involves the
exercise of significant
management judgement,
in particular in forecasting
revenue growth rates
and in determining
appropriate discount
rates.

to assess the accuracy of
the prior year's forecasts
and making enquiries of
management as to the
reasons for any significant
variations identified and
whether these had been
considered in current year's

forecasts;

comparing the key assumptions
adopted in the discounted
cash flow forecasts, including
forecast long-term growth
rates and profit margin
ratios, for each of the CGUs
with those of comparable
companies in similar
industries and external market
data;

engaging our internal valuation
specialists to assess whether
the discount rates applied
in the discounted cash flow
forecasts were within the
range adopted by other
companies in the same

industry;
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RRETEE P9 69 25 5t 20 4] B2 22 The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in
ZEE our audit

HKPMEETEY o HMRBESRER We identified assessing performing sensitivity analyses
¥ BERRED Al (B ERAE K potential impairment of the key assumptions
BERBEARBR KRNI R) AR of property, plant and adopted in the discounted cash
EiEE VAR A EBRERET equipment as a key flow forecasts, including the
FERAARRBRERE BURE DT - LAET audit matter because of revenue growth rates and the
(45 B 2 5t BT FE 3% HEEEREESE the inherent uncertainty discount rates, to evaluate the
B U A = X % Bh BAURBRETE involved in forecasting impact on the headroom for
WE)PRAER A R 51 E = 2 RE future cash flows, in each CGU and assessing the
wEMN AT K TS 4R particular in respect of impact of changes in the key
EEREMTE - P)’TFEJKEI’J%% revenue growth rates assumptions to the conclusions
;:TEEETEJEF% and the discount rates reached and whether there are
ﬁﬁﬁ%i@@ﬁﬁﬁ: applied, which could any indicators of management

& be subject to potential bias; and

management bias.

o KBEZAIGFAE considering the disclosures
BIFRTE - ERER in the consolidated financial
EUBREBEES statements in respect of the
BRETGE(BERE impairment assessment,

ETBHRE) -

including key sensitivities, with
reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting

process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

ZZ—XEFIR Annual Report 2016
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. \We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yu Wai Sum.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2017
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BE_Z—7"F+_A=+t—HALFEBZEERAN  RARETITEN)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

BsE —E-RE —T-hF
Note 2016 2015
I Turnover 4 8,124,053 8,899,047
SHEMRA Cost of sales (7,369,543) (8,190,844)
EA Gross profit 754,510 708,203
EMEERRBER Change in fair value of biological
FERHERA assets less costs to sell (512) (9,915)
BAREEVSEREER Fair value of agricultural produce
on initial recognition 16(d) 14,113 28,032
FHERRERED Reversal of fair value of agricultural
MR AR EE produce due to sales and disposals 16(d) (14,016) (28,610)
HipgElA Other operating income 5 31,561 6,605
HibFas,(BK) Other net gains/(losses) 5 72,520 (132,065)
DA Distribution costs (384,471) (371,048)
TR Administrative expenses (280,735) (250,328)
TEER, (B8) Profit/(loss) from operations 192,970 (49,126)
A% Finance costs 6(a) (44,852) (25,620)
RS AR AR &R Share of losses of equity-accounted
investees (2,196) (2,855)
BB AIER, (B518) Profit/(loss) before taxation 6 145,922 (77,601)
st Income tax 7 (28,573) (33,488)
FERERN(FBE) Profit/(loss) for the year 117,349 (111,089)
THALRER Attributable to:
RRABRE Equity shareholders of the Company 53,899 (153,549)
R iER Non-controlling interests 63,450 42,460
ERERN, (FE) Profit/(loss) for the year 117,349 (111,089)
EREFN,(FE) Earnings/(loss) per share
—EX - Basic N RMB 0.0532 RMB (0.1519)
—HEH - Diluted I RMB 0.0531 RMB (0.1519)

F116 B R F263E MM AR BHmFMNAE The notes on pages 116 to 263 form part of these financial

BED o statements.

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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BE_Z 7" F+-A=+t—HLFEGBSEERAN  UARETITES])

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

BiteE —E-RE —T-RF
Note 2016 2015
FERER (FE) Profit/(loss) for the year 117,349 (111,089)
FREMEEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year
HigrEHmn Items that may be reclassified
ZEm2ER ¢ subsequently to profit or loss:
BHEENZ% Exchange differences on translation 10 (16,404) 6,956
FREMEERE Other comprehensive income
for the year (16,404) 6,956
FREEKRREE Total comprehensive income
for the year 100,945 (104,133)
THALRER : Attributable to:
RATIRER Equity shareholders of the Company 31,315 (151,098)
JEIERRRE S Non-controlling interests 69,630 46,965
FREAKRRESE Total comprehensive income
for the year 100,945 (104,133)

FV6HEFE263AMME AR BHREA0HE

statements.

The notes on pages 116 to 263 form part of these financial
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RZFB-—RF+-A=t—HBEZEERAN  RARBTTE)

At 31 December 2016 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

FoaE —E—RE —T—hF
Note 2016 2015
FREERE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets 13
— W - BRE KRR - Property, plant and equipment 1,175,531 1,221,483
—TEEERIE — Lease prepayments 189,374 171,095
RIEZABRZ2R A RMELZ  Interests in equity-accounted investees 15 85,169 116,018
HinIEReEmEE Other non-current financial assets 1,948 1,948
RERIBE E Deferred tax assets 25(c) 29,551 24,251
AJ U B R AR T Long-term tax recoverable 18 91,508 73,391
HibIEmEEE Other non-current assets 13,053 10,718
1,586,134 1,618,904
RENVEE Current assets
FE Inventories 16 939,174 825,963
EMEE Biological assets 5,797 4,241
FEWE 5 8RR Trade receivables 17 385,222 322,296
Hh fE IR Other receivables 18 416,269 423,021
Be MREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 19 327,539 530,151
2,074,001 2,105,672
RENAE Current liabilities
FERTE SR Trade payables 20 601,357 516,427
HAb e FRIE Other payables 21 462,926 418,991
B Provisions 22 6,776 12,452
FTEER Interest-bearing borrowings 23 560,147 319,947
FERTAR S Dividend payables 14,221 33,590
FERETISEE Income tax payable 25(a) 9,355 10,402
1,654,782 1,311,809
RENVEEFE Net current assets 419,219 793,863
EEABERRBAE Total assets less current liabilities 2,005,353 2,412,767

F16EEFE263AM K ERAMBIHRERNE

FCERD ©

statements.

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The notes on pages 116 to 263 form part of these financial
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RZT—RFTZA=+—H(BRBEEHEN  UARETFT25)
At 31 December 2016 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Bt s —E-RE —E—RF
Note 2016 2015
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
STEER Interest-bearing borrowings 23 243,636 707,932
BEBIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 25(c) 322 314
243,958 708,246
EEFE Net assets 1,761,395 1,704,521
ERR S Capital and reserves
&4 Share capital 26(c) 97,920 97,502
i Reserves 26(d) 901,466 929,096
R A Retained profit 489,729 428,933
AATRREGEZ 2 EZME  Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 1,489,115 1,455,531
FEPEAR M A Non-controlling interests 272,280 248,990
ERAE Total equity 1,761,395 1,704,521

KhEEeN _ZT—+F=A-_+=Hit#E Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23

RIS RET)E o March 2017.
BXRE BXRE
Han Jia-Hwan Han Chia-Yin
*E HITEFE
Chairman Executive director

F116BEF263E MM AR SHFMNA The notes on pages 116 to 263 form part of these financial

ERD © statements.
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BE_Z—7"F+_A=+t—HALFEBZEERAN  RARETITEN)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

KOARREG
Attributabl to equity shareholders of the Company
HRBARR
O
Share- HElER
BE RFGE BERRE SHER EREE EXBE  baed 8REF Non- ERHE

Share  Share Redemption  Merger Statutory Translation payment Retained  Aif controlling  Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve reserves reseve reserve  profits  Total inferests equity
(W6 (hdo6 (W6 (Wo6  (hos  (WEo6 (A&

k3 ] 1 1 7 1) )

Note (note ~ (note  (note  (note  (note  (note [note
260l 26(eil) 260Gl 26(eil) 26(ail) 26(elivl]  26(e)iv)

RE-NE-A-B9E5  Balanceat 1 Janvary 2016 97502 585,045 420 396064 92083 (147363 2877 428933 1455531 248990 1,704,521
Epgil Profitfor the year - - - - - - - 53899 53899 63450 117349
Afp2ENE Other comprehensive income 10 - - - - - (25 - - (2584 6180 (16404)
EprElREE Total comprehensive income

oo -l - RS NI SN
ERENDE Equity reclassification a8 215 (5223 - - - 64 6897 - - -
IEREENRARARS  Eouity-setted sharebased

nayment fransactions U - (586) 1949 - - - 906 -0 - 2269
HikER A Capital contribution from

non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - 46%  46%
FEAERRENRR Dividends approved in respect

of the previous year 26b) - - - - - - - - - (51,035) (51,035
e g Balance at 31 December 2016 97920 582303  (2854) 396,064 92,053 (169.947) 3847 489,720 1489115 272,280 1,761,395
=T-AhES

F116 B EF263E MM s AR IEHEMNA The notes on pages 116 to 263 form part of these financial

& D ° statements.
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FeEEnx
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZ—R"E+_A=T—BLFE(BRIEERI UARETTZE)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

FhAREER
Attrbutable to equity shereholders of the Company
HRAEER
e
Share AR
BE o ROEE EERE ARRE ITHE  EMBE  beed  EA No  E&2E

St Shae Recemption  Merger  Statutey Tenston payment  Rewmed A contolng  Towl
cpiel premiumreseneresene  reseves resene resene pofis  Totel  interests equity
i U /N 7 B 1

Hit A ) ) ) N ) ) A 1)}

Nots Mot ot ot Mot Mot e [note
Ao B 1 1) 11

HZB-RE-F-ANER  Balanoeat 1 January 2015 936 54130 50 3064 91499 (149814) 35 583036 160315 261172 1864307
(R /& (LossJoroft or the year - - - - - - - (5349 (1G3BAG) 42460 [111,089)
EtAENG Other comprehensive income 1 - - - - - - - MB 4R 6%
FmrElmnaE Toud comprehensie ncome for e year - - - - - - - (153509 (151098 4695 (104133
WEREENRAEARS  Fouitsetted sharediased

nayment transactions U 106 906 (100) - - - 15 - -3
g Appropriations - - - - W - - = - -
FiRERE Capialcontibution from

non-zontrling inerests - - - - - - - = - bR B30
HEAEERENRS Dividends approve nrespect

ofthe previous year 260! - - - - - - - - S L R
NF-1E+27 Balance at 31 December 201 97502 585040 Q0 3606k Q08 (47363 281 489% 1450831 248900 1704521

S-AhEs

F116EZF263B MM AU EHREAE The notes on pages 116 to 263 form part of these financial

& D ° statements.
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BE_Z—7"F+_A=+t—HALFEBZEERAN  RARETITEN)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Pt —E-R"E ZT-hEF
Note 2016 2015
ReEE Operating activities
BEATERN, () Profit/(loss) before taxation 145,922 (77,601)
BATSIHFE - Adjustments for:
—4SWEERAABEN - Change in fair value of biological
FEYRHERA assets less costs to sell 512 9,915
—RAREEVNIEREED — Fair value of agricultural produce
on initial recognition 16(d) (14,113) (28,032)
-REERLERER — Reversal of fair value of agricultural
MR AR EE produce due to sales and disposals 16(d) 14,016 28,610
—EEERAR2RAFER — Share of losses of
equity-accounted investees 15 2,196 2,855
—EREHE - Depreciation and amortisation 13 144,889 147,898
- HEBATEEBBFE - Net loss on disposal of fixed assets 5 3,681 5,345
-BETEEREBE),EE — Impairment (reversed)/loss
on fixed assets 5 (34,316) 79,354
—EWE ZETRERE - Net impairment loss/(reversed)

(Bm)FE on trade receivables 17(b) 11,099 (3,912)
—TF &M — Write-down of inventories 16(b) 3,550 213
— B EFEMR - Reversal of write-down of inventories 16(b) (1,948) (13,752)
—FEHA — Interest income 5 (3,535) (5,411)
—FIBFX - Interest expense 6(a) 44,852 25,620
—UEREENRNHZHRS - Equity-settled share-based

payment transactions 6(b) 2,269 3,416
—[EREEFE - Net foreign exchange loss (28,403) 1,155
BEESEBALERERE Operating cash flows before
changes in working capital 290,671 175,673
FEEN/ i) (Increase)/decrease in inventories (105,240) 176,678
B EE I, R (Increase)/decrease in biological assets (2,068) 2,190
e E 5 BRI H A FE L (Increase)/decrease in trade

A, (R) and other receivables (85,390) 22,764
JERE SRR R H AR Increase/(decrease) in trade

A, (Ri) and other payables 125,075 (200,448)
RETHMERE Cash generated from operations 223,048 176,857

BRAEH Income tax paid 25(a) (35,128) (31,148)
RETHEREFHE Net cash generated from

operating activities 187,920 145,709

I
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statements.

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

The notes on pages 116 to 263 form part of these financial
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

B —E-R"E ZT-hEF
Note 2016 2015
RETE Investing activities
BUFIE Interest received 3,535 5,411
BEETEERIE Payment for purchases of
fixed assets (128,229) (170,197)
HERTEEEMSHIE Proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets 41,912 4,433
HEERAKRSRARMEHIE Proceeds from disposal of
equity-accounted investees 36,976 -
RERAR2RARNIRE Investment in equity-accounted
investees (8,323) -
RIEAFEHILE Investment in equity securities - (1,948)
RETEMARSTE Net cash used in investing
activites (54,129) _______ (162,301)
Al SEE Financing activities
BRFLE Interest paid (46,573) (23,750)
BfRE Dividends paid (70,404) (20,207)
L ERPTERIE Proceeds from new borrowings 735,783 616,477
EEBER Repayment of borrowings (959,879) (482,561)
RIRAE AR 881 T Proceeds from shares issued under
AR 1D B FT1S 3RIE share option scheme - 58
REES (FTA),Frig Net cash (used)/generated from
REFH financing activites (341,073) 90,017
ReRBLEEY (D), Net (decrease)/increase in cash
EINFEEE and cash equivalents (207,282) 73,425
RENZEERRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 530,151 459,443
ERSENTE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes 4,670 (2,717)
RERZESRRSZEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year 19 327,539 530,151

F16EEF263ARNERAMBIHRERNE

FXERSD ©

statements.

The notes on pages 116 to 263 form part of these financial

ZZ—XEFIR Annual Report 2016




A 353 RO eE

(BRSEHEBAI - UARKTFTZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

— BB

RERm(EMN BRAR(TARA])
BREFEHE - NA—FEIREIQ
AE(RGEEREF FNREN_FF
tERA AT N\BEREHSEMKL
REHRRBERRA - ARERENE
DA (AT 4HE [N E ] - B85 A FH
RIAEEER]) TZREBEFR
RBARKEARIN IR ROEIER

o

g
mt

ARARBROR -_ZEELFTATAR
EEBMARIMARARIRAME
& o

3L HE

(a) RHIEW

AP BHER IR BEER G5 ER
ZBEe((EREHEAZRESR])
78 4 0 B B B 75 5 E R (L AR
HEEERETERZEGRM
P A % M8 8 A A9 B BR B 75 4R
SEAD  CER R
) A KRB BCR BMEDI ) H B EE
HRERE - ZFHBWKRITET
(BEABMEXRZMBRRABES
EHHRAD (TEHRA ) WER
BEAE - ARERAZERE
BRI EEIINT

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

GENERAL INFORMATION

DaChan Food (Asia) Limited (the “"Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18 May 2007 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” and
individually as the “Group entity”) primarily is involved in the
manufacturing and trading of livestock feeds, poultry and
chilled meat and processed food.

The Company publicly offered shares on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 4 October
2007.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards
("IASs") and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.



2 RIEHE ()

(a)

(b)

B (5)

BERErEAZ 8 e B M TH
THE REERT 2 B B 8 &
ER - RAKBRARAAE
FHERME B R PSR R R IR R R
o Ve R FHTR] B RT
H & B B 15 2E R AT 5 BUE A
MAE S IR E M S5 BER
EHONEARAARKR - BH
BREINHIFE2(e) ©

B R R e 2 R

HE-Z—R"E+-A=+—H
LHFEGEMBERRBIEARR
Ko ELFT R A B DA Je AN £ B A B

ATRABATIERS -

BTIREES  mEM BRI
R EEERE LKAV

- (TEEMIANQAREE
HE R

- EPEENRREBERE
ERAFTE

MR

(B SEEBI - UAREFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 2(e) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries and the Group's interest in associates
and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost except that

the following items:

- derivative financial instruments are measured at
fair value; and

- biological assets are measured at fair value less
costs to sell.

ZZ—XEFIR Annual Report 2016
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(©

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
that best reflects the economic substance of the
underlying events and circumstances relevant to
that entity (“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") (“presentation currency”), which is different
from the functional currency of the Company. The
Company's functional currency is United Stated dollars
("USD"). As its principal subsidiaries are located in
People’'s Republic of China (“PRC"), the directors
of the Company consider that it is appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in
RMB. All financial information presented in RMB has
been rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(@

(e)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are disclosed in note 30.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the group. None of these developments have
had a material effect on how the group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented.

The group has not applied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Except for the changes explained in Note 2(e), the Group

has consistently applied the following accounting policies

to all periods presented in these consolidated financial

statements.

()

Basis of consolidation

@

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Group (see note 3(a)(ii). The
consideration transferred in the acquisition is
generally measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill
that arises is tested annually for impairment.
Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised
in income statement immediately. Transaction
costs are expensed as incurred, except if related

to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include
amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally

recognised in income statement.

Any contingent consideration payable is
measured at fair value at the acquisition date.
If the contingent consideration is classified as
equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement
is accounted for within equity. Otherwise,
subsequent changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration are recognised in
income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (continued)

@

(i)

Business combinations (continued)

If share-based payment awards (replacement
awards) are required to be exchanged for awards
held by the acquiree’s employees (acquiree’s
awards), then all or a portion of the amount of
the acquirer’s replacement awards is included
in measuring the consideration transferred in
the business combination. This determination
is based on the market-based measure of the
replacement awards compared with the market-
based measure of the acquiree’s awards and the
extent to which the replacement awards relate to
pre-combination service.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the

Group and other parties) are considered.

— REFFH Annual Report 2016
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KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non- controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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3 FEGFHEOR (8) 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)  BAArRdE () (a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i) Mg 2 7 2 FF FE IR HE (i)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

()
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(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 3(j) or (k) depending on
the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

(i)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset (see ntoe
3(a)(iv)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture (see note 3(a)(iii)).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 3(e)(ii)), unless
the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as

held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iii)  Associates and joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby
the Group or Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of

the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless
it is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee's identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group's share of
the investee's net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 3(e)
(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iii)  Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group's interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iii)  Associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa,
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under

the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of

a financial asset (see note 3(a)(iv)).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
3(e)(ii)), unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

— REFFH Annual Report 2016
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KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iv)  Other investments in equity securities

The Group's and the Company's policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless it is determined that the fair value
at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs,
except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss
as incurred. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
does not include any dividends earned on these
investments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iv)  Other investments in equity securities (continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall
into any of the above categories are classified
as available-for-sale securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in
equity securities that do not have a quoted price
in an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses
(see note 3(e)(ii)).

When the investments are derecognised or
impaired (see note 3(el(ii)), the cumulative gain
or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see note 3(e)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-

constructed assets includes the following:

the cost of materials and direct labour;

- any other costs directly attributable to bringing
the assets to a working condition for their

intended use;

- when the Group has an obligation to remove
the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located; and

capitalised borrowing costs (see note 3(t)).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the
carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit and
loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated

with the expenditure will flow to the Group.
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 2-25 years
Plant and machinery 10-12 years
Furniture, fittings and equipment 5-6 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents office buildings,
various infrastructure projects under construction
and equipment pending installation, and is measured
at cost less impairment losses (see note 3(e)). Cost
comprises direct costs of construction and the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located during the periods of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and
the construction in progress is transferred to fixed
assets when the asset is substantially ready for its
intended use, notwithstanding any delays in the issue
of the relevant commissioning certificates by the
relevant authorities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

(©

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction
in progress until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

Lease

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

(i)  The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(©

(@

Lease (continued)

(i) The Group as leasee

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the purchase costs of
land use rights and are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of land use rights. Land use rights
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses (see note 3(e)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Impairment of assets

@

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment

that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

@

Impairment of trade and other receivables

(continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)

@

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in income statement.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:
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3 EEEEBOR () 3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) WA (%) (¢) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) HAh B I (A (i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- WE - BEKRERE - property, plant and equipment;
- BNHEERE - lease prepayments;
- RHBARKIKRE - investments in subsidiaries; and
P54
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If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

ZZ—NEFIR Annual Report 2016




A 35 8 R P e

(B SHEHEBIN - UARKEFITZ)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3 BEEHEOR (8)

(e) WA (40
(i) B (4
- WHERFEESE

HEEXEMBERES
EHRETNREER
BEAWE SRR
A FME 28 R T FERRORL
EEE - gHRESED
BILHERABERER
ETUNE - R
WA ZEM(HZE
RIAARI) A HE & B
MAREE  HERXEE
MEEEETERER
REMERI A EER
EHERA(MEER
B) A ERBEE (6
EE) -

-  BEREEBRE

s R E 6 XE AT W B &
B HE LR
i - AlGBERE
B -

P = B0 R (B S 1R {2
RANMRRBEFEIL
RHEERIRE B 1R R
EEETMNEERE
18 o FTEEE &Y R (B &
BERRRONERE
FHAEE ©

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
income statement if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in

use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

®

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 3(e)(i) and
(if).

Biological assets and agricultural produce

Biological assets are stated at fair value less costs
to sell, with any resultant gain or loss recognised
in income statement. Costs to sell are incremental
costs directly attributable to the disposal of an
asset excluding financial cost, income tax and costs
necessary to get the assets to market. The fair value
of livestock is determined based on the current market
price of livestock of similar age, breed and genetic
merit.

Agricultural produce, which comprises broiler breeder
eggs is initially measured at its fair value less costs
to sell at the point of lay. The fair value of agricultural
produce is determined based on market prices in the
local area, any resultant gain or loss recognised in
income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(6]

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Agricultural produce is included under inventories
at its fair value less costs to sell at the point of lay
in accordance with note 3(f), subsequently included
under inventory and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

@

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 3(e)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

@

(k)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in income
statement over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost, except
where the payables are interest-free loans from related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Financial instruments

@

Non-derivative financial assets and financial

liabilities — recognition and derecognition

The Group initially recognises loans and
receivables and debt securities issued on
the date when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised on the trade date.

The Group's financial assets include cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
and amounts due from related parties. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised
in income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

U]

Financial instruments (continued)

@

(ii)

Non-derivative financial assets and financial
liabilities — recognition and derecognition

(continued)

Financial liabilities of the Group include interest-
bearing borrowings, trade and other payables,
and amounts due to related parties. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is

recognised in income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value on trade date. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in income
statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Share capital

()

Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are recognised

as a deduction from equity.

Redemption and reissue of ordinary shares

When shares recognised as equity are repurchased,
the amount of the consideration paid, which includes
directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is
recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased
shares are classified as treasury shares and are
presented in the redemption reserve. \When treasury
shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount
received is recognised as an increase in equity, and
the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is
presented within share premium.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m)

Employee benefits (continued)

@

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans (continued)

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to
the relevant labour rules and regulations are

recognised as an expense when they are due.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in share-based
payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that

the options will vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iti)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based payment reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(0)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.



3 BEEGHEOR (8)

(0)

P BL ()

BETOIOMERSN - WA REH R
KERBSENEEREESA
A1l i B AR AT T IR BB AR AE Y
REEDSWER - e 5 AR
Fi T 00 B B 2 R AT AR AT A
REEMARRERTEFBER
BRORGFRANEEEZEMNE
ERNERE BEFERLALER
—HBEHERF - ERREER
B YEHEAREREEEER
FEFHE @R — B SGRE HIR
BEMEEHBBRAMREX
AR AEN R AL - R
ERFERAVEREZEREE X
FrRER B R A B RE B ABIR
HeEENETCHAEER 75
SRAE—ER AZEEZRE
HE-HEHEANE - ERRNE
BEM YRBEEERREE
B BRI —HEEE - Alg
WERE °

MR RMEE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they

will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognised.
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3 BEAHHBOR (8) 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(o) Bt (%) (0) Income tax (continued)

EMTIBEERREERIBESR K Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and

HEgeBEesEsAERETT movements therein, are presented separately from

o WMARRKANEBBEE each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are

TN RIS EREE 8 offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax

HIEAE  WEFEUTHAGK assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company

- BIZERIIAE Er] K iH 2 H or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off

MIEAE REERIBEBZEENE current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

HIEERRIEAE ¢ following additional conditions are met:

- MREHANREEENA - in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
& ARRIAAEEEE the Company or the Group intends either to
REREHE SRR ER settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
ZEEMBEZAE K settle the liability simultaneously; or

- MAECEMEEEMNEA - in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
B MUEEEEMEER if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
B — B s A B 3 DA TR H AR taxation authority on either:

—ERBWB TSI ERE

— RE—ERTEE: X —  the same taxable entity; or

- TENERHTEER - - different taxable entities, which, in each
W EEREERE future period in which significant amounts
BETRA KR of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
MEABBETELGE expected to be settled or recovered, intend
FARFBRRIERIBEE to realise the current tax assets and settle
A LAY [B] 9 AR - 4% the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
FREHEHRIEE realise and settle simultaneously.
EMEEZHHIES

EMBEZAE -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at
the present value of the lower of the expected cost
terminating the contract and the expected net cost
of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is
established, the Group recognises any impairment loss
on the assets associated with that contrat (see note
3(e)(ii)).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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3 BEAHHBOR (8) 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(q) BARER (@) Revenue recognition
WA THZE Wk MR ERN AR Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
BEGNE  RELEMNZAE TR consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
MAREE - ik A KA (10 probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
BR)EAEFTER AT Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
BT AEB SR ER be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the

income statement as follows:

i) HEEG (i)  Sale of goods
EERNEERFZY Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
¥ ERFEMNELRESR at the customers’ premises which is taken to
2 #H 78 B B % [E] ¥ B be the point in time when the customer has
WA KRR - KA accepted the goods and the related risks and
BIEEET ([EEB]) X rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
HaEED - WEHNKE added tax (“VAT") or other sales taxes and is
I ZEHM - after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) FLEYA (ii)  Interest income
MEWARGIREHEAE Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
PR P ERER o the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()}

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)  Government grants

(v)

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in the income statement
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in the income statement over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced

depreciation expense.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the income statement
in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in

the accounting period in which they are earned.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(q) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)  Management fees

Management fees income is recognised when
the related services are rendered.

(r) Foreign currencies

@

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value
was determined. Foreign currency differences
are generally recognised in income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are not
translated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Foreign currencies (continued)

@

(i)

Foreign currency transactions (continued)

However, foreign currency differences arising
from the translation of the following items are

recognised in other comprehensive income:

- available-for-sale equity investments
(except on impairment, in which case
foreign currency differences that have
been recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to profit or loss);

- a financial liability designated as a hedge of
the net investment in a foreign operation to

the extent that the hedge is effective; or

- qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent
that the hedges are effective.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into RMB
at exchange rates at the reporting date. The
income and expenses of foreign operations,
excluding foreign operations in hyperinflationary
economies, are translated into RMB at the

exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Foreign currencies (continued)

(i)

Foreign operations (continued)

Foreign currency differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income, and accumulated
in the translation reserve, except to the extent
that the translation difference is allocated to non-

controlling interests.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its
entirety or partially such that control, significant
influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative
amount in the translation reserve related to
that foreign operation is reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
If the Group disposes of part of its interest
in a subsidiary that retains control, then the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
reattributed to non-controlling interests. When
the Group disposes of only part of an associate or
joint venture while retaining significant influence
or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or
loss.

If the settlement of a monetary item receivable
from a foreign operation is neither planned nor
likely to occur in the foreseeable future, such
receivables is deemed as a net investment
in that foreign operation. Foreign currency
differences arising from such item are
recognised as “translation reserve” in other

comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

®

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise all
costs that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the
nature of the Company’'s or the Group’s research
and development activities, no development costs
satisfy the criteria for the recognition of such costs
as an asset. Both research and development costs
are therefore recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or completed.
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3 FEGFHEOR (8 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w)y BEAL (u) Related parties

() fWEFAL(EHZBALZ (i
M) A ATHRE - A
RESEEREZ AL

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

—  AERISRARESIE -

has control or joint control over the Group;

ETS
- has significant influence over the Group; or
— AIHEETEERY
2h % - is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's
- SBEREEHAFIZ parent.
FE2EHEEKSE -

(i) HEBRFASTUATEME (i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

B AR AEREREH following conditions applies:

78

- ZERHASEBR —  The entity and the Group are members of
—EEEKE (&R the same group (which means that each
A MBRARKREZR parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
WEBARSBEEE related to the others);
BE)
—HEBARS—HE One entity is an associate or joint venture
BIEENANEE of the other entity (or an associate or joint
AR (HEEKE R venture of a member of a group of which
A ERNRIRAE the other entity is a member);
DR ERS—MEE
BAZEEZKER
al)
MEEEE AR —F Both entities are joint ventures of the same
=HMAEE QT third party;
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3 BEEHEOR (8)

(u) BIEA L (5)

(i) HMERFTETATEMKE
AR SEEEEH
= (&)

- —HEEBRE=FZE
B2 AR T3
—MERBREE=FE

b YNC]

- ZEBAKEIHEE
BEREEZEER
M 2 B B 12 18 A &

£l

- REBIEROMAE
A THEH SRR
i) o

- ROARENALY
ZERBBEAFED
IRZEE(HZE
BEQR)ZEEE
BEKE -

- ER —HEEZ
ERKERR(RE
Bz —&5n) mAS%
EREGARRMET
EEEABR -

EAATE B A £ B3 #3562
ZERETRZRHEYRA
EFEZENAL HX
ZENALTEZENREK

=1l
N\

o

\
’

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w)

Related parties (continued)

(ii)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

- One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

- The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;

- The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

- A person identified in (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

- The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the group or to the

group'’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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HEAEHBOR (8)

)

(W)

B A

AEBERDTEBRESRERR
EERNBE - BREREFT)
REFARARLEBESHEA
I BRER A FAD HTEBK
B fn e iniE 8 - WA
ZEAERMDAE - SREEAT
TRBRHBEANREBERTA
ANEEBRERBETEINZ EBK
BB iniE 8 - WA
ZEERMDAE A AEEHS
ERENERE  HPefrnE
BRhEAE

Vg 55

BBRREBNEENHBRED
HMEEBRNRRIEERES
BEEBRMRIFEZFER
KK B M EBARREEE
HITEIRHAOMEER TR

ERIEXREENHBTIEEH - 1
7> BB 2R A 7 s A S T 2
RRBME  £EBREE &
FEZER - BIEDHEMNK
RERE 2 TEAREERE T
B EARBGARIERSN o fid I FF @
RERHLE D BHTEARED U
FEA - AREFLEDBALS

TAGH -
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(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

(W)

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per
share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings
per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year, adjusted for own shares
held. Diluted earnings per share is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares
held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares, which comprise share options granted to

employees.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the CEO of the Company for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

ZZ—NEFIR Annual Report 2016
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4 BBEBRA 4 TURNOVER
AEENTEXREREEREES The principal activities of the Group include manufacturing
B RBERAEA - ARINIE and trading of livestock feeds, poultry and chilled meats and
me AEEERANSETELERALE processed food. The amount of each significant category of
RIREEELT ¢ turnover recognised during the year is as follows:
—E-REF —ZE-hF
2016 2015
HEBH Sales of chicken meats 2,172,759 3,324,272
HEREHFR Sales of livestock feeds 4,672,269 4,493,446
SHEMTR® Sales of processed food 1,279,025 1,081,329
8,124,053 8,899,047
AEENFFPERZT  ERUTE The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes
FHARGBAREBLLWA10% no customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10
WEPF ZBEPEEMNETZFEERR percent of the Group's turnover. Details of concentrations of
B ERKIFE29(a) © credit risk arising from the Group's customers are set out in
note 29(a).
BRASEFZER TN EMTRE Further details regarding the Group's principal activities are
BRI GRERME12 o disclosed in note 12 to these financial statements.

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

HpgBKEALKEMBFE®R 5 OTHEROPERATING INCOME AND

%, () OTHER NET GAIN/(LOSS)
—E-RE —T—h%F
2016 2015
Hobag g A Other operating income
REMI WA Consigned processing income 24,835 -
FEWA Interest income 3,535 5,411
BT 88N Government grants 1,871 421
AU A Rental income 1,320 773
31,561 6,605
HibR W (EiE) Other net gain/(loss)
SNE Wz (518 JF1E () Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) (i) 32,274 (37,758)
HEBRTEEZ BIEFE Net loss on disposal of fixed assets (3,681) (5,345)
EiE A OB ERE (k) Reversal/(charge) for provison of
(Biat22) onerous contract (note 22) 5,676 (12,452)
AmITEE K 2 B8R K= Realised gain on commodity
derivative contracts 1,370 123
BEEE(BERR)BTEE Impairment loss of fixed assets
RAEEIE (f1:213) reversed/(recognised) (note 13) 34,316 (79,354)
Hh Others 2,565 2,721
72,520 (132,065)
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5 30 fb & B BN Kb 3 WK
i,/ (ki) ()

(i)

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

B-F-TFE ARFARE
FRP BT KB ([ R
B 22 ) f it S A 2 A
EX - REARRBEERAET
(%713 - AT E - FH
18 21 70 46 55 B 9 28 A R
s A BMERRER A B E
AR -

R-ZF-—AFtTA=1A &2
REEHEEEANRARRENRSE
AR R F B E R AR E
FEE - MEEARRRERAE
B EFEE ST ERNA B
RELE -

RZE—R"FE+ZA=+—8"
HoEERARHEEREBEAR
#54,802,000 LE A EIR A R #§
TFERTHERIEEFE - R
BAFEEEMEEKERRE
B BnEBRARRERNE
REBRNE CEFHESR
Bm - ©28BAAKM1,138,000
7T (MiEE10) °

RZE—R"FE+=ZA=+—8"
SENRARBERNREFELR
& # A AR ¥ 668,033,000 7T °
TERALE =% A R % 56,576,000
T(ZZE—HF: AR
15,015,000 7)) EARIRMIFE (3(r))
e g BERATERGEEE
W RmsA [RERE] -

5

OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND
OTHER NET GAIN/(LOSS) (continued)

(i)

The Company lent inter-group loans to certain of the
Company's subsidiaries established in the PRC (the
"PRC subsidiaries"”) since 2010. The inter-group loans
were denominated in U.S.dollar (“USD") and non-
interest bearing. The PRC subsidiaries translated the
inter-group loans to their functional currencies of RMB

at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

On 30 October 2015, the directors of the Company
approved the inter-group loans form a part of the
Company'’s net investment in the PRC subsidiaries,
and the settlement of the inter-group loans is neither
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2016, part of the inter-group loans
with amount of RMB54,802,000 was planned to be
settled in the foreseeable future and did not form
net investment anymore. The cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that part of
inter-group loans recognised in other comprehensive
income in previous years was reclassified to profit or
loss with amount of RMB1,138,000 (note 10).

The principal amount of the net investment inter-
group loans was approximately RMB668,033,000 as
at 31 December 2016. Related exchange difference
of RMB56,576,000 (2015: RMB15,015,000) was
recorded as “translation reserve” in the Group's
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, in

accordance with the accounting policy in note (3(r)).
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(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

BB wT R A, O ) 6 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
BRELATE R, (EE) Tk (5 Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/
AN ATEEBEmMEE : (crediting):

=T~ —FT1F

2016 2015
(a) BFFEBEX (a) Finance costs
AR AFERNTBHER Interest on bank borrowings wholly
RERTTEEFE repayable within five years 44,852 25,620
(b) BIA (b) Staff costs
e I8 8 Salaries, wages, bonuses and
R H A8 A other benefits 600,179 583,731
RRTEFFTEIE K Contributions to retirement schemes 80,882 73,339
LARE = 45 E AR (D Equity-settled share-based
SR (HE24) payment expenses (note 24) 2,269 3,416
683,330 660,486
RNEFNBE2ERE A REMEH The Group is required to participate in pension schemes
(T4 E ) B BT T2 e R K organised by the respective municipal governments of
S AREEMREEERNEA the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") whereby the
IREETREMREMETERETE Group is required to pay annual contributions for PRC based
BEEY . BI8%E20% (=& employees at rates ranging from 18 to 20 percent (2015:
—FE 18% E22%) WL 18 to 22 percent) of the standard wages determined by the
NEFRRKRSMEZ - B it relevant authorities in the PRC during the year. The Group
SN REFW EgEh BES B has no other material obligation for payment of retirement
BFEEEMERST - benefits to the PRC based employees beyond the annual

contributions described above.
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6

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

BRBE WA, Ol 4 (A1)

(b)

BT ()

BIEES®HMEAE S EIE
Bl - REE T AIRBEBERBE
Bl FT & 88 2 8 Bk sa 1 A TR
etE([RE2TE D -8
DI ERBBLEIATENTE
BEFCRIRGTE - BRIRATE ST
2 AEEERESHEBARAD
6% (=ZF—FF :6%) 5
i E (g 8 AZE 1% E B MR WA 8
5% (ZZF—FH%EF :5%) Mt &
R HRE T A ERE WA
30,0008 TARAR(ZF—HF :
30,000/ 7T) ° MRES T &I
TR EBES -

EH 26,0005 (%] %
LATE - mMERARHEES A
SFRTEERTIIBRIESERER
£MWI13%(ZFE—AHF 1 13%)
ATE . BEHSA5000F% M E
B ARG EREBH £12%
(ZZ—HF : 12%):tE -

AEENEHEAEERETR
BEEMERERBRRE - #
R OlEREFMOH21% (=ZF
—RE22%) -

Bk LatETEI5) - AL ML
N ESRASN R KRB AR SR E A
BEXREAME-
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
(continued)

(b)

Staff costs (continued)

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the Group is required to make contributions
to the scheme at 6 percent (2015: 6 percent) of the
employees’ relevant income and its employees are
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5
percent (2015: 5 percent) of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") 30,000 (2015: HKD30,000).

Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Contribution made to Malaysia’s Employees Provident
Fund is based on 13 percent (2015: 13 percent) of
the eligible employees’ salaries when the salaries is
Malaysia Ringgit (“MYR") 5,000 or below, or based
on 12 percent (2015: 12 percent) of the eligible
employees’ salaries when the salaries is above
MYR5,000.

The Group also made contribution on the statutory
social security and health insurance in Vietnam at 21
percent (2015: 22 percent) of the eligible employees’
salaries.

Save for the above schemes, the Group has no other
material obligation for payment of retirement benefits
beyond the contributions.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

BB e A, O 9 ) (%) 6 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
(continued)
(c) HAb¥H (¢) Other items

2016 2015
TZ SR & Auditors’ remuneration
— % BRTS — audit services 4,474 4,443
— SRS - tax services 228 158
4,702 4,601
AR E TR Amortisation of lease prepayments
(et 13) (note 13) 5,157 4,714
M - WE & Depreciation of property,
RABYTE (H13L13) plant and equipment (note 13) 139,732 143,184
JEUE S EEFCREEIEMER,(#E) Impairment loss of trade receivables
(Hiz£ 17(b) recognised/(reversed) (note 17(b)) 11,099 (3,912)
GFEMRTER (BR)FE Net recognise/(reversal) of
(K15t 16(b)) write-down of inventory (note 16(b))
wEHEEA Operating lease charges 1,602 (13,539)
— B Kifkas - plant and machinery 17,623 18,370
—Hh - others 9,552 11,283
[T EIN Research and development costs 1,894 908
TFERZ* (f151 16(b)) Cost of inventories * (note 16(b)) 6,997,102 7,806,112
* FRAABIE AR A475,136,0007T(= o Cost of inventories includes RMB475,136,000 (2015:
T0%F : ARW494,139,0007T) B RMB494,139,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
BMEIRA  WERBHERY  AHe amortisation expenses, which amount is also included in the
BIE AR LM 6(b) BB R R respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note
ZEERHIRXNERAEEN - 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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7 EAEHERAZE 7

(a) SEEHBRNZBE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents:
—E—RF —T—hF
2016 2015
EHIFE Current tax
FREE Provision for the year 33,428 32,396
BEHERET R (BEEEM)  Under/(over)-provision in respect
of prior years 437 (1,228)
33,865 31,168
IEFER IR Deferred tax
TREEENESE Origination and reversal of temporary
B[Ol (BTt 25) differences (note 25) (5,292) 2,320
28,573 33,488
(i) BEHSHESRERBEX (i)  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
BE(RBEXHEE RN Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands
BAIKRAG - AEBEEA (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income
RASHEREBEZH tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

ESHMEMRPAEH

(il ARARRBELEED
WABKEEBHIERB
i FI 4 16.5% B BB 1
ESEET

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

(i) The Company carries on business in Hong Kong
and is subject to Hong Kong corporate tax at 16.5
percent in respect of its non-exempt Hong Kong
sourced profits.



7 BEHERNZNAE (8)

(a) SEHBRRNZBIE : (8)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

BIEPBECEMBRHER
REHR RER - A%E
ETEFREBERFEE25%
(ZZ—HF :25%) F
KNP B EREH
K2 KRR IE & ¥ L AR
BEHRBRARRBRIN KRR
RECRIED) - HEBRESR
MEIBR(ZFE—RF
25% ) @B - TTHREER
T NFES & R
REEE -

BIRE KA R TISHIER

MAER BEZZT—REF
TZA=t+—RHLEE"
HoRFA R M B A B R IR
ME24%(ZT—AHF:
25%) A S R B AT E
B o

BERARIEEEERRN
ZEE=FNAZ=Z+=8
FEHNEKETHREDR
No0.1219,/GPDC1-BKH-
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EERRMmM(BEME)]) AR
15% (ZZE—HF : 15%)
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC, the Group entities incorporated in
the PRC are liable to PRC Corporate Income Tax
at a rate of 25 percent during the year (2015:
25 percent), except for Tianjin DaChan Prospect
Research and Development Co., Ltd. (“"TDPR"),
which is subject to a preferential tax rate of 15
percent (2015: 25 percent), as it has obtained
the new high-tech enterprise qualification during
2016.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations
of Malaysia, the subsidiary in Malaysia was liable
to Malaysian income tax rate of 24 percent for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 25

percent).

Pursuant to the Amended Investment License
No. 1219/GPDC1-BKH-KCN-DN dated 23
September 2003, issued by Dong Nai Industrial
Zone Authority, Asia Nutrition Technologies (VN)
Co., Ltd. ("ANTC-VN") is subject to Corporate
Income Tax of Vietnam at a preferential rate
of 15 percent (2015: 15 percent). The above
tax reduction is not applicable to other income
which is taxed at a rate of 20 percent (2015: 22
percent).

— REFFH Annual Report 2016
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7 EBEHERNZAB (8) 7

(a) SEEHBRRNZBEH : (8)

(vi) EEMEBERREMCTR)ER
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W) EEHEEEFRE
B 15 F R 10% B R BN
MEREMEH  HEF
EHR22% B o wkoh - R
BEGEBRBERN T
NE+—A-t+mBARY
MESLE DNEER
e OAIA) B H & EEFF
E-_TTRFRMNEHT
B2HBBHREES  H
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10%) o Ll =g et

ERAREMBKA(Z20%
MEHH) (T —FF
22%) o

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents: (continued)

(vi)

Asia Nutrition Technologies (HN) Co., Ltd.
("ANTC-HN") is subject to Corporate Income
Tax of Vietnam at the rate of 10 percent for the
first fiftteen years commencing from its first year
of operation and 22 percent for the succeeding
years. Moreover, ANTC-HN is entitled to a
full tax exemption for four years starting from
2005, its first profit-making year pursuant to the
Minutes of Inspection by Tax Department of Hai
Duong Province dated 24 November 2006 and
a 50 percent reduction in tax rate for the next
four years. Therefore, the applicable tax rate of
ANTC-HN is 10 percent for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: 10 percent). The above
tax reduction is not applicable to other income
which is taxed at a rate of 20 pencent (2015: 22
percent).



7 BEHERNZNAE (8)

(a) SEHBRRNZBIE : (8)

(vii)

(viii)

DMNEERM(ELR)BR
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Z)))MEBHREXESF
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents: (continued)

(vii)

(vii)

Asia Nutrition Technologies (LA) Co., Ltd.
("ANTC-LA") is subject to Corporate Income
Tax of Vietnam at the rate of 20 percent for the
first ten years commencing from its first year
of operation and 22 percent for the succeeding
years. ANTC-LA is entitled to a full tax exemption
for two years starting from 2008, its first profit-
making year, and a 50 percent reduction in tax
rate for the next three years. The applicable tax
rate is further reduced to 17 percent for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 20 percent).
The above tax reduction is not applicable to other
income which is taxed at a rate of 20 percent
(2015: 22 percent).

Pursuant to the Amended Investment License
No. 43/2010/ND-CP dated 26 September 2012,
issued by Binh Dinh Province Economic Zone
Authority, Asia Nutrition Technologies (MV)
Co., Ltd. ("ANTC-MV") is subject to Vietnam
Corporate Income Tax of 20 percent for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 22 percent).
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7 EAHERENZAB (4) 7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(b) HEBABEFSEMBLIE S A (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss
BB at applicable tax rates:
ZE-RE —T—hF
2016 2015
BRAADEF] (EE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 145,922 (77,601)
RP B EMSHBIE25% Income tax calculated at PRC's
(Z=2—F%F :25%) Corporate Income Tax rate of 25%
FTE R FTEH (2015: 25%) * 36,481 (19,400)
PRSI E Effect of different tax rates of
WEATMTR subsidiaries operating in
HERNTE different tax jurisdictions (15,755) (14,068)
AR B = & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 3,081 1,794
BERBRIMANT G E Tax effect of non-taxable income (9,286) (23,355)
REERIEEEEE & Tax effect of the movement of
TR g e tax losses and temperary
difference not recognised 12,513 89,745
MR B EIRIET IR 2R Effect on deferred tax balances
0)-Z resulting from a change in tax rate 1,102 -
BEFEEETR Under/(over) provision in respect of
(FBZERE) prior years 437 (1,228)
ERBIEMRS Actual tax expense 28,573 33,488
o 25% (ZZF—FRF : 256% ) TSR R @ The income tax rate of 25 percent (2015: 25 percent) represents the
NEB T ELERT AR RIS M domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operations of the Group
Ko are substantially based.

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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W 4 8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

RIEEE R FHEHIZE383(1) & & A A Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
(BEBEEFMEER) RO 2 AT of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
BRE2ESHSWT : Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

ZE-RF
2016
e 2R
ENER BRI
Salaries, BEE
12 allowances HEf4  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme @35t
fees in kind bonuses contribution Total
£ Chairman
B5E Han Jia-Hwan - 1,470 153 21 1,650
HiTES Executive director
BERE Han Chia-Yin - 393 3 7 473
BUFHTES Independent
Non-executive directors
oA Chen Chih m - - - m
KE Way Yung-Do m - - - m
FIRE Wei Anning m - - - m
FHTES Non-executive directors
BRR Harn Jia-Chen 128 - - - 128
HRT Han Chia-Yau 128 - - - 128
Nicholas W. Rosa Nicholas W.Rosa 43 - - - 43
(RZB—RE (Resigned on 28 April 2016)
MAZ+\REHE)
HRE Chao Tien-Shin 128 - - - 128
9%0 1,863 226 34 3,063
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8 HEFMA(E) 8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
—Z-1f
2015
e RAR
BT RIK
Salaries, FE 58
EZWE  dlowances IETA  Retirement
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme @it
fees in kind bonuses  contribution Total
£33 Chairman
BEE Han Jia-Hwan - 636 - 26 662
HWTES Executive director
BERE Han Chia-Yin - 856 - 26 882
BUFHTES Independent
Non-executive directors
A Chen Chih 166 - - - 166
HKE Way Yung-Do 166 - = = 166
FHZE Wei Anning 166 = = = 166
(R=Z—mF (Appointed on 31 October 2014)
TA=T—BEZf)
FHTES Non-executive directors
B Harn Jia-Chen 125 - - - 125
BRT Han Chia-Yau 125 - - = 125
Nicholas W. Rosa Nicholas W.Rosa 125 - - - 125
HRE Chao Tien-Shin 125 - - - 125
998 1,492 - 52 2,542

KB (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2015: two) is director whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other four (2015: three) individuals are as follows:

—E-AE —T-RF

2016 2015

e Mo EoAth = B Salaries and other emoluments 5,094 3,241
B1EFEAL Discretionary bonuses 806 =
RORET B Retirement scheme contributions 72 51
5,972 3,292

i (ZF—h%F: =) &oHHMA
THOBS N F T HIAR

The emoluments of the four (2015: three) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

ZE-REF —T—h%F

2016 2015

AE A

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

1,000,001 ,87C£ 1,500,000  HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 3 2
1,500,001 ,87C£ 2,000,000  HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 - 1
2,500,001 8702 3,000,000  HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 1 -

FA- AEEBERZEA LMK
B - ARSI EMARKESLAESINA
AEBH R - KIERMERA M

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office during the year.

ZZ—XEFIR Annual Report 2016
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10 ol 2 i W 3% 10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ZE-RE —T-TfF
2016 2015
BEASE BERSE BBHLE BRRSE

Before-tax B2 Net-of-tax Beforetax  HiH52  Netof-tax

amount Tax effect  amount amount  Tax effect amount

BWEATEEMESZE ©  Exchange differences
on translation of:
—BNNBARBBHRE - financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries 25,157
—HBEARRTEEAR - inter-group loans
REFENEENAT classified as net

25,157 21,971 = 21,971

RER (o) investment in PRC

subsidiaries (note 5(i)) (42,699) - (42,699) (15,015 - (15,015)

EREERSBEN Reclassification adjustments

BIAERE for amounts transferred to

profit or loss:
- HEREFE — disposal of net

(WiF50)) investment (note 5(i)) 1,138 - 1,138 = = =
Hib2EME Other comprehensive income  (16,404) - (16,404) 6,956 = 6,956

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

11 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

B AR A () (a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share
BHE-_Z—R"F+=-A=+— The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share for
BIEFE  SREXEN (F the year ended 31 December 2016 is based on the
B)DBDREBEFRAARAEBR profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
EmisAE AEGRF AR of the Company of RMB53,899,000 (2015: loss of
53,899,000 (= —AHF : 5 RMB153,549,000) and the weighted average of
B AR 153,5649,0007T) R FA 1,012,461,692 ordinary shares (2015: 1,010,649,805)
B BT mARAR (D B INAE 192K in issue during the year, calculated as follows:
1,012,461,692 (—ZF — R & :
1,010,649,805 %) 51 & o
MR A hn e AR B Weighted average number of ordinary shares
ZE-RE —T-hE
2016 2015
R—R—HEETHTER Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1,011,233,500 1,009,911,000
BITRERENZZ Effect of shares options exercised - 44,367
R EFE (B7£ 26(c)(iv)) Effect of shares granted (note 26(c)(iv)) 1,228,192 694,438
R+ZRA=+—HEBRY Weighted average number of
IR IR ordinary shares at 31 December 1,012,461,692 1,010,649,805

ZZ—NEFIR Annual Report 2016
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11 SREAROB#E) (E) 11 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)
(b) HEREERAOER) (b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

ERBERATDBREBEARAQF Y The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
MR EDFEAEARBERENA based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
R #53,899,000t( =& — A shareholders of the Company of RMB53,899,000
F: 1B AR 153,549,000 (2015: loss of RMB153,549,000) and the weighted
T0) ME B AR AR 10 &9 AN 5 & average of 1,014,763,359 ordinary shares (2015:
1,014,763,359 | (= — R F : 1,010,649,805), calculated as follows:

1,010,649,805 ) & T -

LA hnE TS B (HEE) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
ZE-RF —T-AF
2016 2015

R+ZRA=+—BE@aRk Weighted average number of

CopIE=SE ordinary shares at 31 December 1,012,461,692 1,010,649,805
BRIk REET B R Effect of restricted share award

(HfzE24(b)) scheme (note 24(b)) 2,301,667 =
R+=—A=+—HLER Weighted average number of ordinary

H T8 () shares (diluted) at 31 December 1,014,763,359  1,010,649,805

KB (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

12  SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are

organised by a mixture of both business lines (products

and services) and geography. In a manner consistent with

the way in which information is reported internally to the

Company's CEO for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment, the Group has presented

the following three reportable segments. No operating

segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments.

Chicken meat:

Livestock feeds:

Processed food:

The chicken meat segment carries on
business of breeding and hatching of
broiler breeder eggs, contract farming,
processing and marketing of chilled and
frozen chicken meat marketed under
the brand of “DaChan”.

The livestock feeds segment manufactures
and distributes complete feed, base
mix and pre-mix for swine, layer, broiler,
dairy, duck, and breeder poultry under
the brands of “Dr. Nupak”, “DaChan”,
“SOS"” and “Green Knight”.

The processed food segment produces
and distributes pickled, pre-fried, and
roasted food, and further processed
chilled and frozen chicken meat marketed
under the brand of “Sisters’ Kitchen”.

— REFFH Annual Report 2016
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12 2% (4) 12  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(a) ks BEKAMN (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

RGO EERSDIENE For the purposes of assessing segment performance

BABEmE - Efiﬂﬁ%?hz‘ltﬁll and allocating resources among segments, the CEO

EEEREERDHEGE 2% monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable

& - QE&E{E : to each reportable segment on the following bases:

PHEEREMBEENEERR Segment assets include all tangible assets and

BEE - HREHRIBEENREM current assets with the exception of deferred tax

RNABERIN - D BEABEBES assets and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
87 5 P e BYAE K 8H 4 E TS R AL include trade creditors, accruals attributable to the

RERTERR - B EST B A UK manufacturing and sales activities of the individual

Ao EEEREMNRITEER - segments and bank borrowings managed directly by

the segments.

"LEWRARRAZ I EZ DM Turnover and expenses are allocated to the reportable
EXRHEHET  URED AR segments with reference to sales generated by

SRR EEES S ELEE those segments and the expenses incurred by
RTEBEmMEENRZ MY those segments or which otherwise arise from the
BERETEHRIE - depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to

those segments.

WEDBRMAA I ERERN The measure used for reporting segment profit is
& o gross profit.

REEBEBEENN D FERIN - In addition to receiving segment information
HERNTE MEREEBLEENR concerning gross profit, the CEO is provided with
A(BREIPELERA) - TE segment information concerning turnover (including
R#HENHHER - DEEEE inter segment sales), depreciation and amortisation.
BRTI2ZENBATELETE Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices
ELRERMETE ° charged to external parties for similar orders.

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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12 43R () 12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) AR L - B KA (E) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
HEBEE_ZT-—REFR-T—LF
+—A=1+—BLEENERS
ERFEDBRAAGENTE
RUEBHAAEBRES L 2ER

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the CEO for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 December 2016

E2 P ENE and 2015 is set out below:
BAR LEE NIRR g
Chicken meat Livestock feeds Processed food Total
23 E-RE ERE ZE-RE ZE-nE ZE-RE CE-RE CT-RE
216 2015 216 015 2016 15 2016 215
REFEPHERIA Tunover from exteral
customers 2172759 3304270 4672269 4493446 1219025 1081329 8124053  8899,047
AEARHA Inter-segment tumover 40398 M3834 523342 869303 - - 03375 1283187
Aif Total 2583182 3738106 5195611 5362799 1219025 1081329 9,057,788 10,182,234
Az Segment result 59,650 (10167 442710 488999 252150 229371 754510 708203
FAREERARES Unallocated operating
income and expenses - - - - - - (5615400 (757329
T/ (5R) Proftfoss) from operations - - - - - - 1090 @912)
B Finance costs - - - - - - (wMgB2) (25600
ElEEAESRATER Share of losses of equity-acoounted
investegs - - - - - - 2,19) (2859)
i Incore tax - - - - - - (85I (33489
R/ E) Proftloss forthe yeer - - - - - - e (111,089
FRTEREE Deprecition and amortsation
for the year 63,691 05,863 43mn 48933 380 B2 144889 14789
REABEE Reportable segment assets 1009075 1164256 1387403 1264166 GI6901 422310 2973379 2840732
B L Additons to non-curtent segment
assets during the year 4 %338 109379 55,724 11,360 19153 120779 170215
#EAEE Reportable segment liabilties 101620 211445 936936  7B74H 141282 79163 1179838 1,029,353
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12 43R () 12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) WESIMBBBA - HaE - B (b) Reconciliations of reportable segment turnover, profit or
B 4 it o loss, assets and liabilities
ZB-RF —Z-n%
2016 2015
KEWA Turnover
BEDELEWRA Reportable segment turnover 9,057,788 10,182,234
DEREEE WA Elimination of inter-segment turnover (933,735) (1,283,187)
IRBEBIA (B5t4) Consolidated turnover (note 4) 8,124,053 8,899,047
vl Profit
s EEF Reportable segment profit 754,510 708,203
EYEELDREE Change in fair value of biological assets
HERHEEMA less costs to sell (512) (9,915)
MREREREDMAREBE Fair value of agricultural produce on
initial recognition 14,113 28,032
EHEREEBER Reversal of fair value of agricultural
MEBKN DA, EE produce due to sales and disposals (14,016) (28,610)
PN Other operating income 31,561 6,605
HihE s/ (B18) Other net gain/(loss) 72,520 (132,065)
DA Distribution costs (384,471) (371,048)
1THRZ Administrative expenses (280,735) (250,328)
Y Finance costs (44,852) (25,620)
[EihERAR2RARER Share of losses of equity-accounted investees (2,196) (2,855)
RABRBATER, (B8) Consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation 145,922 (77,601)
&E Assets
BEDHEE Reportable segment assets 2,973,379 2,840,732
EXETREEE Deferred tax assets 29,551 24,251
RekReEED Cash and cash equivalents 327,539 530,151
APBRBHRAREE Unallocated head office and corporate assets 329,666 329,442
RABERE Consolidated total assets 3,660,135 3,724,576
8 Liabilities
BEDHas Reportable segment liabilities 1,179,838 1,029,353
FEFT TSR Income tax payable 9,355 10,402
BEHBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 322 314
FEER Interest-bearing borrowings 619,549 885,617
APEBHERAREE Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities 89,676 94,369
mAEBERE Consolidated total liabilities 1,898,740 2,020,055

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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12  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(©

REMBEFHELRA

external customers

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's turnover
from external customers and (i) the Group’s tangible
assets and interests in equity-accounted investees
("specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which
the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset,
in the case of property, plant and equipment and
the location of operations, in the case of interests in
equity-accounted investees.

BRI REEE
Turnover from Specified

non-current assets

ZE-RF —T-hEF —E-RE “T-hF

2016 2015 2016 2015

H The PRC 5,043,124 6,210,639 1,222,862 1,340,254
i Vietnam 2,738,645 2,389,359 231,437 170,305
AR Japan 299,399 257,669 - -
Hih AR Rest of Asia Pacific 42,885 41,380 8,828 8,755
8,124,053 8,899,047 1,463,127 1,519,314
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13 B R 13 FIXED ASSETS
B %8
BER Rt ff
fEIR BE  Fumiture, HE iR
Construction £%  Plantand fittings and Motor st Lease &t
inprogress  Buildings  machinery equipment  vehicles  Sub-total prepayments Total
A Cost:
NZE-7"E-A-AR At 1 January 2016 43,705 166929 1,988,469 167,105 40203 2,406,431 208519 2,614,950
B Additions 33319 1,756 39433 8,621 2013 91,262 29517 120,779
#)\ Transfers (44,703) 7030 31393 147 133 - - -
i Disposals - (2278)  (59367)  (12,098) (4561)  (78,304) (8897 (87.201)
EiZR Exchange differences 670 3,8% 5,526 39 193 11,263 1,590 12,853
RE-rNE+-A=1-A At 31 December 2016 33,051 183332 2,011,454 164,154 38661 2,430,652 230729 2,661,381
ZitE  BERAE: Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and
impairment:

W=F—F-f-A At 1 January 2016 - 78,126 981,027 106,563 19232 1184948 37424 122312
I Charge for the year - 5333 118,309 12,503 3587 139,732 5,157 144,889
HEFEED Impaiment loss reversal - - (2m) (1.490) (75)  (34,316) - (34319)
e Disposals - (755) (25,422) (9,906) (4,103) 40,186) (1422) (41,608)
EiZR Exchange differences - 1,266 3,088 254 335 4943 196 5,139
iy g ey At 31 December 2016 - 83970 1,044,251 107,924 18976 1,255,121 41,355 1296476
FEE: Canrying values:
R-E-rE+-A=1-A At 31 December 2016 33,051 99,362 967,203 56,230 19,685 1,175,531 189,374 1,364,905
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13 A5 % () 13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)
Fil %2
HER Fitfe B
kIR B2 Funiure, e ipy
Construction BF  Plantand fitings and Motor ) Lease i
inprogress  Buildings  machinery  equipment  vehicles  Sub-total prepayments Total
A Cost:
R=%-1%-A-R At 1 January 2015 59,545 154,293 186729 157,663 36,301 2,264,098 20697 2470,0%%
HE Additions 38,406 6,3% 104,9% 12123 5906 167,826 2,389 170215
B\ Transfers (54,508) 4,149 48402 1,086 871 - - -
iHE Disposals = (%6 (23428 (3,795) (2143 (29422) = (29422)
EREE Exchange differences 262 2188 1203 (12 288 3929 17 4102
RZE-RF+A=1-H At 31 December 2015 43705 166,929 1,988469 167,106 40223 2406431 208519 2,614,950
ZitTE  BHRAE: Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and
impairment:

R=Z-15-5-A At 1 January 2015 - 42001 829814 9210 16,486 980411 32726 1013137
Efyni Charge for the year - 7733 117,048 14,280 4123 143,184 4714 14789
HEEE Impairment loss - 27,746 48166 3203 29 79,354 - 79,354
it Disposals = (70) (14,873 (2,981) (1,720 (19,644) = (19,644)
EiZR Exchange differences - 716 872 49) 104 1,643 (16) 1621
RZE-RF+A=1-H At 31 December 2015 - 78,126 981,027 106,563 19232 1,184948 31424 122372
KEE: Carrying values:
RZE-RETA=1-H At 31 December 2015 43705 88803 1,007,442 60,542 20991 1221483 0% 1392578
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13
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13

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Certain buildings and lease prepayments are pledged to
banks for banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed
in note 23(c).

As at 31 December 2016, there are certain buildings, plant
and machinery and lease prepayments with net book value
of RMB14,000,000 which was seized by court for property
preservation because of a litigation of a subsidiary of the
Group with its employees. After consulting with the legal
adviser of the Group, a provision of RMB6,052,000 was
made based on the best estimation of the Group which
was recorded as “staff costs” in Note 6(b). Directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the aforesaid matter would
not have significant impact on the Group's financial position
as at 31 December 2016.

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease prepayments are

situated in the following locations:

—E-RE —T—hf%F

2016 2015

= The PRC 141,856 152,548
iR Vietnam 46,151 17,178
BRAD Malaysia 1,367 1,369
189,374 171,095
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Impairment loss

As at 31 December 2015, the Group considered certain of
its property, plant and equipment would become idle in the
foreseeable future. The Group assessed the recoverable
amounts of those assets and as a result the carrying amount
of those assets was written down to their recoverable
amount of nil. An impairment loss of RMB79,354,000 was
recognised in “other net gains/(losses)”, in 2015.

During 2016, certain fixed assets previously impaired
with net book value of RMB7,475,000 were disposed
to a third party with a consideration of RMB43,000,000
leading to a reversal of impairment loss with amount of
RMB32,031,000.

Given the fact that the carrying amount of the Group’s net
assets exceeded the Group's market capitalisation as at 31
December 2016, in accordance with IAS 36, Impairment
of assets, management has undertaken a review on the
carrying amount of the Group's fixed assets.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
were estimated based on the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the cash-
generating units, using a pre-tax discount rate of 7.73%.
The recoverable amount of those cash- generating units
were estimated to be higher than its carrying amount and
no additional impairment was required as at 31 December
2016.

ZZ—XEFIR Annual Report 2016




A 35 8 R P e

(B SHEHEBI - UARKEFTZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 WS A "8 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

TRINNHARERE  BEXAE
BRIEXENMBIRNEN - 7

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of

FRH AL EE : the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary:
A, BRITR
HUREERERAH BRRRE/
Place and date of TMER
incorporation/ Issued and fully Ptk e
AR ERE establishment  paid up/registered Attributable TEEHK
Name of company and operation capital equity interest Principal activities
B B3
Direct Indirect
% %
Great Wall Dalian Investment EBRRHEE 24,500,0005 7T - 59 RAER
Co., Ltd. ("GWDL") BVI USD24,500,000 Investment holding
—-hWNRE-A=+=R
23 February 1995
AHKBR (KE) BB R 26,600,000 7T - 59 HEEREEIWEAL
(TRERR ) (HE (1) %(3) PRC USD26,600,000 BEREERERK
Great Wall Food (Dalian) Co., Limited ~ —AAREF+=A<E E NIREERER
("GWF-DL") (notes (1) and (3)) 6 December 1995 REMRRMMNT
Manufacturing and
trading of animal
feeds, husbandry and
trading of poultry and
livestock, processing
and trading of meat
and meat products and
foods processing
BEAKENEEERAR FE 19,080,003 7T - 100 HEEREEDWEL -
(MEEARMK]) PRC USD19,080,000 BEEREERB LK
(Bt (1)~ 20 Rk (3) —WNEELATNE Z NIREENSE
Liaoning Great Wall Agri-Industrial 19 July 1990 RAER

Co., Ltd. ("LGW")
(notes (1), (2) and (3))

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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T W& 2 v B (4 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
ML BRTR
HIREEMER B BHERE/
Place and date of HMER
incorporation/ Issued and fully (LR AE
ARER establishment  paid up/registered Attributable FTEER
Name of company and operation capital equity interest Principal activities
HE 84
Direct Indirect
% %

AR EH (BB BRATA H 1,562,000%7C - 100  AEREESHEH
([REIARK]) PRC USD1,562,000 Manufacturing and
(M)~ 2) R (3) —ZThF trading of animal feeds

Great Wall Agri (Heilongjiang) RA-+HAH
Co., Ltd. (“GWAHLJ") 25 May 2005
(notes (1), (2) and (3))

KRB (ER) BRAR HE 14,500,000% 7 - 100  HEREZESMEL -
(T&RXK]) PRC USD14,500,000 NIREERE
(Bist(1) - (20 R(3) —-ANtFRA—A RRER

Great Wall Agri (Yingkou) Co., Ltd. 1 April 1997 Manufacturing and
("GWAYK") (notes (1), (2) and (3)) trading of animal feeds,

processing and trading
of meat and meat
products

RBEA (H8) BRAR i 14,089,379% 7T - 100 4EREESMME -
(T#8ARK]) PRC USD14,089,379 BEREERERK
(Bizt(1) - 20 R(3) —NWAEERATAHR B NIREERE

Great Wall Agri (Tieling) Co., Ltd. 16 May 1997 RAER
("GWATL") (notes (1), (2) and (3)) Manufacturing and

trading of animal
feeds, husbandry and
trading of poultry and
livestock, processing
and trading of meat and
meat products
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(B SHEHEBI - UARKEFTZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 WS A w8 (48) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
A, BRITR
RUREEHERAH BHRRA/
Place and date of fEAR
incorporation/ Issued and fully Ptk
AR LR establishment  paid up/registered Attributable TEER
Name of company and operation capital equity interest Principal activities
HE i
Direct Indirect
% %

R (RE)BRAR FE 1,093,0005 7T - 100 A£EREEDWEH
([R&EXK]) PRC USD1,093,000 Manufacturing and
(HiEE(1) - 2R (3) “ZTAENAZT\R trading of animal feeds

Dongbei Agri (Changchun) Co., Ltd. 28 August 2006
(“DBC-CC") (notes (1), (2) and (3))

MARKRE AR R FE 2,200,00037T - 100 4£EREEDWEH
(I#EAK]) PRC USD2,200,000 Manufacturing and
(HiEE(1) - 2R (3) —ITRETANR trading of animal feeds

Hunan Greatwall Technologies & 8 October 2006
Feeds Co., Ltd. ("DHFT")

(notes (1), (2) and (3))

AREE(RE)BRAR B AR447,200,0007 - 100 4EREBZVEE
(TR=2=AK]) PRC RMB447,200,000 EEREERBRR
(Bizt(1) - 2) R (3) —WNZF+AZT<B B MIREERER

DaChan Wanda (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 26 October 1992 AER

(“TWD") (notes (1), (2) and (3))

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

Manufacturing and
trading of animal
feeds, husbandry and
trading of poultry and
livestock, processing
and trading of meat and
meat products



14

e B e 2 il v B (48)

ARER
Name of company

AKER (H8)BRAR
(I BRI
(Bist(1) - (20 R(3)
Greatwall Gourmet (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. ("GWGS")
(notes (1), (2) and (3))

Asia Nutrition Technologies (HN)
Co., Ltd. ("ANTC-HN")

Asia Nutrition Technologies (VN)
Co., Ltd. ("ANTC-VN")

Asia Nutrition Technologies (LA)
Co., Ltd. ("ANTC-LA")

P 365 46 R P

(B SEEBI - UAREFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

13 April 2007

(continued)
A, BRITR
RUREEHER AS BHERE/
Place and date of HMER
incorporation/ Issued and fully
establishment  paid up/registered
and operation capital
B 6,940,000 7T
PRC USD6,940,000
—WAAFNARRA
5 September 1996
M@ 89,600,000,000%m &
Vietnam Vietnamese Dong
e = P ("VND")
22 January 2003 89,600,000,000
ME 190,836,204 /E
Vietnam VND
—WNAFRAZTNA 190,836,294,000
29 April 1995
#E  80,393,000,000 &
Vietnam VND
“ETLENAT=H 80,393,000,000

FE{ERRAE
Attributable TEEK
equity interest Principal activities
HE Gk
Direct Indirect
% %
- 100 4y R

Foods processing

65.51 EERERS M
Manufacturing and
trading of animal feeds

65.51 FEREEDWEL
Manufacturing and
trading of animal feeds

65.51 HEREEFHRIEHE
NN KESARE - BR
BROKEEY)

Manufacturing and

trading of feed meal

and related additives,

aquatic products,

veterinary and aquatic
medicine
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(B SHEHEBI - UARKEFTZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 WS A w8 (48) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
ML BETR
HIREEMER BH BRRRE/
Place and date of HfER
incorporation/ Issued and fully (LR AE
AR LR establishment  paid up/registered Attributable FTEEH
Name of company and operation capital equity interest Principal activities
HE L
Direct Indirect
% %
Asia Nutrition Technologies (MV) i 3,000,000 7T - 6551 FEREEDWEL
Co., Ltd. ("ANTC-MV") Vietnam USD3,000,000 Manufacturing and
S -2y 1= ey =] trading of animal feeds
26 September 2012
Great Wall Nutrition Technologies SRAD 4,373, 7705 - 100 EEREEDER
Sdn. Bhd. ("GWNT") Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit Manufacturing and
—WNEENAZHA ("MYR") sales of animal feeds
3 August 1990 4,373,770
P RR BRI BR AR H AR 20,000,007 - 100 AEREESMEHL
(TmJIIRB ) PRC RMB20,000,000 1ERRIAl - BEWE
(W) -2 R3) —ZZ\FNAAZTEH R
DaChan Agricultural Technologies 25 August 2008 Manufacturing and
(Sichuan) Co., Ltd. ("DAS") trading of animal
(notes (1),(2) and (3)) feeds and related
additives, research
and consultation on
husbandry
AREm (i) ERAR H 54,080,000 70 - 100 4EREEDWEAL -
(DAL AR ) PRC USD54,080,000 MIREERE
(W) -2 R3) “ZZ\FZA=T/\H RRER
DaChan Food (Hebei) Co., Ltd. 28 February 2008 Manufacturing and

("DFH") (notes (1), (2) and (3))

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

trading of animal feeds,
processing and trading
of meat and meat
products



P 365 46 R P

(B SEEBI - UAREFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

T W& 2 v B (4 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
ML BRTR
HIREEMER B BHERE/
Place and date of HMER
incorporation/ Issued and fully (LR AE
ARER establishment  paid up/registered Attributable FTEER
Name of company and operation capital equity interest Principal activities
HE 84
Direct Indirect
% %
ENEHRSRRERAR H AR%50,000,0007 - 100 EEHMEL BER
(MR ERE]) PRC RMB50,000,000 BEZRBLZE T
(Bist(1) - (20 R(3) T N\F=A=1H REENERAER
Yanzhou S&F Farm Co., Ltd. ("YDF") 20 March 2008 Trading of animal
(notes (1), (2) and (3)) feeds, husbandry and
trading of poultry and
livestock, processing
and trading of meat and
meat products
HERKRMERAT H AR#%70,000,0007 - 100 EEHMEL  BEK
([EEAKRmR]) PRC RMB70,000,000 BEZRBRZE NI
(Bist(1) - 20 R(3) “TT\F+=A=H REERBERAER
Bengbu DaChan Food Co., Ltd. (“BDF") 3 December 2008 Trading of animal
(notes (1), (2) and (3)) feeds, husbandry and
trading of poultry and
livestock, processing
and trading of meat and
meat products
AREERR (KE) BRATA i 9,880,000% 7T - 100 RmMT
(=300 PRC USD9,880,000 Foods processing
(Bizt(1) - 20 R(3) —AAAFRAZTH
Miyasun - Great Wall Foods (Dalian) 20 May 1995

Co., Ltd. (“Miyasun Foods")
(notes (1), (2) and (3))

ZZ—XEFIR Annual Report 2016




A 35 8 R P e
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 WS A w8 (48) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
ML BRITR
RIREBHER AL B#IRRA/
Place and date of T EAR
incorporation/ Issued and fully (L RRAE
AR LR establishment  paid up/registered Attributable TEER
Name of company and operation capital equity interest Principal activities
HE it
Direct Indirect
% %

ARBRHESERAT HE 3,800,000 7T - 100  HEREZRFWEL
(TR EHHAES]) PRC USD3,800,000 Manufacturing and
(Bizt(1) - (20 R(3) “ETNELA+=H trading of animal feeds

Great Wall Agritech Huludao Co., Ltd. 13 July 2009
("GWAHLD") notes (1), (2)
and (3))

RERKAEEDHBEHEERRA e AR #100,0007T - 100 i
(TRZARATE]) PRC RMB100,000 Research and
(Wit (1) - (21 R(3) “ZTNET—ANA development

Tianjin DaChan Prospect Research 9 November 2009
And Development Co., Ltd.

(“TDPR") (notes (1), (2) and (3))

AEAREMERER AR RBRTRS 3,900,000%7T - 6154 REER
([TDFHJ) BVI USD3,900,000 Investment holding

Taixu & DaChan Foods Holdings —Z--%=H=H
Co., Limited (“TDFH") 3 March 2012

REARRmBRAF ([TDF]) EE 6,000,000%7T - 65 REER

Taixu & DaChan Foods Co., Limited Hong Kong USD6,000,000 Investment holding
("TDF") ZE-ZHt+-AZThAH

29 November 2012

AEAMEM (KE) ARAA H AR%35,500,0007C 65 HENERRAER
([TDF-DLJ) PRC RMB35,500,000 Trading of meat and
(Fizt(1) - 2) R (3) —T-—£RA=-1AA meat products

Taixu & DaChan Foods (Dalian) 25 May 2012

Co., Limited (“TDF-DL")
{notes (1), (2) and (3))

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited



14 JRHIE 2 v i E (8

NREH

Name of company

R A AR BB A
(TSDB))
(Bist(1) - (20 R(3)

Shandong DaChan Biotechnology
Co., Limited (“SDB")
(notes (1), (2) and (3))

ENERBAFAKERRZERAF

P 365 46 R P

(B SEEBI - UAREFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

ML BRTR

HIREEMER B BHERE/

Place and date of HMER

incorporation/ Issued and fully

establishment  paid up/registered

and operation capital

H 3,000,000 7T

PRC USD3,000,000
I =
12 January 2012

HE AE#1,000,0007T

([oLDCh(Hrst(1) % 2)) PRC RMB1,000,000
DaChan Livestock Development ZE-ZFR ATHA

Co., Ltd. ("DLDC") 14 June 2012

(notes (1) and (2))
B3 - Notes:
(1) ZERAMNEBEUARIREEEERT (1)

REETBHEGERERSE -

FEAL R
Attributable FTEER
equity interest Principal activities
HE ik
Direct Indirect
% %
- 100  HEREEZNHEM
Manufacturing and
trading of animal feeds
- 40 ZFEERESERREE
Poultry farms

construction & lease

The English translation of the company names is for reference only.

The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

2 ZERPEEAKZNERYRINGE (2)  These entities established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned
B enterprises.

(3) HERFBIRANZIMERBHYAERE (3)  These entities established in the PRC are limited liability companies.
(/NI
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 JAWE A A 8 () 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
TREHEAREENWE R E (K& The following table lists out the information relating to the
EHEEARERER)HER - TX subsidiaries of the Group which has material non-controlling
FrE25) BB ERME RN A HEEHE interests. The summarised financial information presented
Al &% o below represents the amounts before any inter-company
elimination.
“E-5E 25-1F
2016 2015
ARET ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
ANTIC-VN ~ GWDL TDF  TDFH  DLDC ANTICVN  GWODL TDF TDFH DLDC
JEEREREAL  Non-controling interests percentage 3449%  41.00%  35.00%  3846%  60.00% 3449%  4100%  35.00%  3846%  60.00%
FREAE Non-current assets 256,710 155,898 3 2 14021 188067 169409 7 4 73457
TEEE Current assets 628176 329925 50609 32842 4976 058372 237205 42559 27626 2,219
EIEIE Non-current liabiltes - - - - - (16,740) = = = =
iiE=i Current liabiities (550,978) (181,816) (12,065  (7925) (71,101) (537,100) (109,695 (7613 (027  (71.217)
BERE Net assets 333908 304007 38547 24919 7896 292599 296919 349883 22603 4519
SHEREREAE  Canyingamount of non-controling
nterests 115,165 124,643 13491 9,584 4738 100917 121737 12,234 8,693 2,
WA Revenue 2658127 1266296 81604 53,043 - 2320458 1278549 54982 35738 -
#H/(BB)R  Profitfloss) and total comprehensive
Eilenad income 136670 36474 3451 2,230 3318 113159 1232 2,136 1,354 3,062
PEEFIRER  Profiloss) allocated to
ZEH/(BE)  noncontrolling interests 41137 1495 1208 88 2001 39,009 505 1] BRI 18%7
RIERERER  Dividend paid to
%) noncontrolling interests (37.396)  (13,639) - - - 53797 = = o -
AREHIRREE  Bxchage resenve allocated to
HER G Non-controlling interests 4507 159 49 33 - 6M 178 4 30 -
WEEAE 78S Cash flow from operating activities 56,213 51591  (15161) (15161) 3741 196050 78046 (1194 (1194 26,804
REEBHERE  Cash flow from investing activities 60035  (8,058) 1 B (3849) 123869 (19462 (15681 (15681  (31,070)
REEBHESES  Cash flow from financing activities (205,989)  (20,234) - - - (35426 (13100 15500 15500 =

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

ANTIC-VNZ B E K 2F|ANTIC-
VN + ANTC-HN - ANTC-VN - ANTC-LA
RANTC-MVZ4RA %4 - GWDLZ
BEER 2% GWDL & GWF-DL 247
AEE -TDF2HBERZNTDF X
TDF-DLZ#REZME - TDFH 25 E
£2%|TDFH  TDF X TDF-DL 244
& (TBIETDF 2 IR L) ©

The financial information for ANTIC-VN shows the
consolidated results of ANTIC-VN, ANTC-HN, ANTC-VN,
ANTC-LA and ANTC-MV. The financial information for GWDL
shows the consolidated results of GWDL and GWF-DL. The
financial information for TDF shows the consolidated results
of TDF and TDF-DL. The financial information for TDFH
shows the consolidated results of TDFH, TDF and TDF-DL
excluding non-controlling interests of TDF.
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(BRSEHEBI - UAREFTZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 JAHERE AR 2 B A ] b 2 15 INTERESTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED
INVESTEES
—B-RE —Z-h%F
2016 2015
NN s Interests in associates (a) 85,169 116,018
(a) BEAA (a) Associates
TRINFAEEBE QR 2E The following list contains the particulars of the
o EBERRBARLETE Group's associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
BAR - WEMERE : entities whose quoted market price is not available:
Rt
Proportion of ownership interest

BERE AR

HRRLR AEED SRAFRE

SEERER F ks EREE  ANELR Held by
BELNREE Form of Place of HHER Group's e equity- TEEH
Name of business incorporation Registered effective Heldby  accounted Principal
associates structure and operation capital interest  subsidiaries investees activity
ERPHRARERAT EaliAv i ARE 28% 30% - EEFNEH
(&M ]) Incorporated PRC  160,000,0007 RHEA
Jilin CSD Food Co., Ltd. RMB160,000,000 Manufactory
("Jilin CSD") of animal
feeds and pork
REEH AR EHERAT EaliAv mE  RZE-EEN 30% 30% - EHRHE
(Th&EH)) Incorporated PRC  closedin 2016 FER
Dalian Huadu DaChan R
Agricutture Co., Ltd. Poultry
("HUADU-DL") breeding &
sales and
technology
consultancy

ZZ—XEFIR Annual Report 2016
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 RERARSBEAAMHHEELR 15 INTERESTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED

(&) INVESTEES (continued)
(a) BEBEAY ) (a) Associates (continued)
Rt
Proportion of ownership interest

1IN

ERALR EEEH SRATEE

PEARER Tend EREE  ANBAR Held by
BENRER Form of Place of HMER  Group's ] equity- TEEH
Name of business incorporation Registered effective Heldby  accounted Principal
associates structure and operation capital interest subsidiaries investees activity
DaChan (Asia-Pacific) Lid. AR # 12,000,000 4% 6.7% - EERBE
("DAPL")* Incorporated Vigmam ~ USD12,000,000 KERR
Manufactory &
trading of
aquatic feeds
DaChan (VN) Company Limited Fiijjo g # 11,800,000 4% - 100%  4EREE
(“DVN")* Incorporated Vigmam ~ USD11,800,000 KERR
Manufactory &
trading of
aquatic feeds
REBEREERE A mE AR 355,500,000 10% 10% - BHERE
FEARAR Incorporated PRC  RMB355,500,000 RS
([R2EREE]) Real estate
Advent Prosperity Real Estate development &
Development Co., Ltd. related
("APRD")* services

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited




MR

(BREHEAI - AAREFITE)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 RERARSBEAAHHEER 15 INTERESTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED

(%) INVESTEES (continued)
(a) BEBEAY ) (a)  Associates (continued)
i s
Proportion of ownership interest
mER AR
LR REEH SRATEE
PEARER L EREE  AMELR Held by
BELNRZE Form of Place of FHER Group's BE equity- TEEH
Name of business incorporation Registered effective Heldby  accounted Principal
associates structure and operation capital interest  subsidiaries  investees activity
SEERERERAA Al EBEZES  3000000%T 26% 40% - BREARR
(ImeJ) Incorporated BVl USD 3,000,000 Swine breeder
Taiwan International farmer
Gene Co., Ltd. ("TIG")
MZT—7SF  DAPLIERRIRER In 2016, the controlling shareholder of DAPL increased
BRERTEENEEZ - B its interest in the way of a unilateral capital injection,
AEBEHBARRER10% S which caused the ownership interest held by the
£6.7% ° subsidiary of the Group diluted from 10% t0 6.7%.
RIZTE—RNF - REBEKEED In 2016, the registered capital of APRD reduced by half
B AREH B R - by capital reduction.
* HRERREF2RARES @ The Group has determined that it has significant influence
e KREBERAEEESEARY because it has representation on the board of the investee, so
27 A RFEREE - APRD, DAPL and DVN are classified as associates.
DAPL % DVN %5 8 R Bt & A 7]
LA ARERAEREA All of the above associates are accounted for using
BRERE W3R - the equity method in the consolidated financial

statements.

— REFFH Annual Report 2016
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 RERARSBEAAMHHEELR 15 INTERESTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED
(&) INVESTEES (continued)
(@) BEAA () (a)

Associates (continued)

TREBMLERRZHBER
¥ EEEAMBRRAZREE

Summarised financial information of associates,
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated

HEITHER - financial statements, are disclosed below:
“E-5E
2016
REEREE DAPL  KEEH EMPHA TIG @it
APRD DAPL HUADU-DL  Jilin CSD TIG Total
BENTNLE Gross amounts of
the associates
T Non-current assets 709 67,930 - 12842 20811 217,8M
TEAE Current assets 1437967 149475 - 11,158 - 1,598,600
EiE)- Non-current liabilities - - - - - _
Bk Current liabilities (1,114,622)  (132,811) - (10,247) - (1,257,680
i Equity 324,054 84,594 - 129,332 20,811 558,791
e Revenue - 31475 - - - 314755
R (B1)/#H R [Loss)/profit and total
PENREE comprehensive
income for the year (14,534) 7433 (1,073) (3,055) - (11,229)
EAREREE AR Reconciled to the group’s
Rz HE interest in the associates
BENTAEFE LR Gross amounts of net assets
of the associate 324,054 84,594 - 129332 20,811 558,791
WEAREE Held by subsidiaries 10% 6.7% 30% 30% 40%
AEEEEREAT Group's share of net
LEERE assets of the associates 32,405 5,640 - 38,800 8,324 85,169
GAMBERMIEEE Carrying amount in the
consolidated financial
statements 32,405 5,640 - 38,800 8324 85,169

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

15 RERARSBEAAHHEER 15 INTERESTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED

AEENEREESRAT
it 2 3R

= =E
RARE -

(%) INVESTEES (continued)
(@) BEAA (H) (a) Associates (continued)
—E-1f
2015
REEREE DAPL REES  HNRHN @it
APRD DAPL  HUADU-DL Jiin CSD Total
BENTHLE Gross amounts of the associates
FTRHEE Non-current assets 761 22,530 251 129,530 153,072
THAE Current assets 1,092,378 90,005 6,783 10,630 1,199,701
FTHERE Non-current liabilities (164,883) - - - (164,883)
el Current liabilties (234,168) 64,718) - (7.674) (306,560)
Ex Equity 694,088 47817 7,039 132,386 881,330
W Revenue - 285,967 13,068 - 299,035
REE (B8)/ BHE [Loss)profit and total
PEYREE comprehensive income

for the year (8613) 2,4% (3,507) (3,972) (13,597)

Reconciled to the Group's
interest in the

equity-associated investees

BELTEEFE EE Gross amounts of net

assets of the associates 694,088 47817 7,039 132,386 831,330
WBLREE Held by subsidiaries 10% 10% 30% 30%
REBEEBEAT Group's share of net

LEEFE assets of the associates 69,409 4,781 2,112 39,716 116,018

GAMBERMIEEE Carrying amount in

the consolidated

financial statements 69,409 4,781 2112 39,716 116,018

DAPL 7 Bf & & 2% DAPL & DVN 2 The financial information for DAPL shows the consolidated

results of DAPL and DVN.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

16 H#E& 16 INVENTORIES

(a) HEWMBERRERPHLAREE (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

=T —FT1F

2016 2015
Ekzkakes Animal feeds 599,864 567,327
REMSEHA Poultry and chilled meats 55,869 53,179
MIEMR Processed food 199,531 118,576
BESR Agricultural produce 915 818
JEFEm Consumables 82,995 86,063
939,174 825,963
(b) W 2y B 3 W A7 1R 4 U0 A (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
P an expense is as follows:
—E-RE —T—hF
2016 2015
BEHEFERAE Carrying amount of inventories sold 6,995,597 7,819,073
FEMH Write-down of inventories 3,550 213
B[O 17 EMEH Reversal of write-down of inventories (1,948) (13,752)
MHHERRERAAEE  Fair value of agricultural produce on
initial recognition (14,113) (28,032)
FIHE & & e Reversal of fair value of agricultural
MEERAALEE produce due to sales and disposals 14,016 28,610
6,997,102 7,806,112
R-_E—RE+-_A=+—B 2% On the consolidated statement of financial position as at
EHBURRER ERUEZRFAERK 31 December 2016, a provision of RMB14,906,000 (2015:
REREBEZFERLBEARK RMB13,304,000) was made against those inventories
14,906,000 L (ZE—HF: AR with net realisable value lower than the carrying values.
13,304,0007C ) » R L BEFH IS - A= Other than this provision, none of the inventories as at 31
T-—RNER_FTE—HF+_A=1+— December 2016 and 2015 were carried at net realisable
B WEFEERAERFETE - value.
BorFr—FE2FEMEITAER-F The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior year
—RNEFEHEBREFEF - was the result of sales of impaired inventories in 2016.

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

16 8 (#) 16 INVENTORIES (continued)
(c) JRERASR : (¢) Production quantities of agricultural produce:
—E-REF —T—hF
2016 2015
AHE(E) Broiler breeder eggs (units) 6,473,818 19,256,628
() JRE N (it Py S 80 ) 109 52 ) BESA Jr (d) Movements of the agricultural produce, representing
TF: broiler breeder eggs, are summarised as follows:
—E—RE —ZE—RF
2016 2015
»—A—H At 1 January 818 1,396
EEFTEUE M Increase due to lay 14,113 28,032
$HE R ERTBUR Decrease due to sales and disposals (14,016) (28,610)
®+=—A=+—8 At 31 December 915 818
17 HEBCE SR 17 TRADE RECEIVABLES
—E—RE ZE—RF
2016 2015
FEUE 5 8RR Trade receivables 398,953 330,950
W REREE Less: allowance of doubtful debts (13,731) (8,654)
385,222 322,296

ZZ—NEFIR Annual Report 2016
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

17 HEWCR B MRk (41) 17

(a) MRS BT

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing

DITET analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
—E-RE —T—hf%F
2016 2015
BNER Current 303,399 239,145
BER R 30K Less than 30 days past due 54,453 49,124
BHI31 £ 60K 31 - 60 days past due 11,890 11,898
#AI61 = 90K 61 — 90 days past due 9,591 9,512
B ERERB 90 K More than 90 days past due 19,620 21,271
pal i ] Amounts past due 95,554 91,805
398,953 330,950

REE-BAFEEFEI0HE
60 BEEN - ARAAKEEER
BORR RIS SN M 5E29(a) ©

(b) M BB 5 Mk v B AL

B E SRR E R8T
RABERARK  BRIELAKER
AW E 5% % SRR AT RE MR )
REZBRT - BREEEKER
e Fe Y E 5 BR R P S o

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

(b)

The Group normally allows a credit period ranging from
30 days to 60 days to its customers. Further details on
the Group's credit policy are set out in note 29(a).

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly.
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(b)

HEE WS S B sk g AL (480

FARKRBENZBNOT :

MR RMEE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables (continued)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year is as follows:

—E-REF —T—h%F

2016 2015

R—A—H At 1 January 8,654 12,763
NN =R bl Impairment loss recognised/(reversed)

2,/ (BE) HRERIE  in the consolidated income statement 11,099 (3,912)

WS T AT U e 2R Uncollectible amounts written off (6,022) (197)

R+=ZA=+—8H At 31 December 13,731 8,654

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—8"
REBENEREZIERARE
5,754,000 C( — T —HfF : )
EEREE K T IRE - @RI E
FE W 5k 18 & B A B IR B e 3
FEM  mEREMTESE
W IE e T UE o phoh - B =
T—XR"FEF+_A=+—H8" B
FEBRUGEERREE (WEL
BABHAR R ) K325 R GRIA
EHEHRBERBEB|ARE
7,977,000 L (ZZE—FHF : AR
#8,654,0007T) ° BEEEEET
MG laEs [TTRAS A -

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's trade
receivables of RMB5,754,000 (2015: Nil) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables were related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered. Besides, as at 31 December
2016, an allowance for doubtful debts amounting
to RMB7,977,000 (2015: RMB8,654,000) was
made collectively on those receivables share similar
credit risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status. The impairment loss has been included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

ZZ—NEFIR Annual Report 2016
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17 HEBCE B Mk (4)

(©)

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

A% AL M B 5% MRk

I 8 {8 51 3% 1 R AR 1E IR 1B ) FE UK
BIERANRRATMOT

17

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(c)

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

=F-"% —FT-IF

2016 2015

ENEA Current 303,399 239,145
BER R 30K Less than 30 days past due 54,453 49,124
357,852 288,269

BE AR 38 5 7 A R 1B #) K K 0R £
ARELPIEZELEOBRANE
FB# -

B 38 FT 1 0 2 il 8 A R U R0
ZEMAKBERET RIFBELE
MBYRFAEM REBEL
B BEERGANEEEER
BEAUNE  BRBEDRARE/E

AR EREER - ARELRE
FLE LA E MM

FBEREEZEFAEHR—FA
e

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

All the trade receivables are expected to be recovered

within one year.
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MR
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JC s B Wk I 18 OTHER RECEIVABLES
—E—RF —T—hF
2016 2015
AT UK [l 1L E TS () VAT recoverable (i) 383,660 367,159
e MIARF () Deposits and prepayments (i) 101,377 52,141
BRTET Advances to staff 11,317 7,709
HAh, Others 11,423 69,403
507,777 496,412
B AT EI SRR BN I ERR () Less: non-current VAT recoverable (i) 91,508 73,391
mE Current 416,269 423,021

(i)

(ii)

AU B3 (B B 4R T R 4 R SR S5 1R
BEBORBBEERER - &
B) AT ER F ZRBEAHIE
BREBRTRAKEERNESE
BERMETESERMESL - &
RNAEERAE  BEZT—RF
+ZA=+—8 " BREASEEE
BIBEAGK —FERE A/ A IR E
#EB A AR ¥ 91,508,000 7T
(ZE—AF+=ZA=+—H:
AR 73,391,0007T) °

R AN BRERBE RN
AR E R R TR R SRR E A
BT -

PrBEE MR A (BREKRBEAL
HBR) FHR —FAKE -

(ii)

The VAT recoverable represents the unutilised input
VAT eligible for offsetting against future output
VAT. The unutilised input VAT arose mainly due
to the insufficient output VAT on sales of chicken
meat to offset the input VAT on purchases of live
chickens from contract farmers. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the VAT recoverable
as at 31 December 2016 which will be utilised after
one year is RMB91,508,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB73,391,000) based on the Group's budget.

Deposits and prepayments consist of advance
payments made to suppliers for purchases of raw
materials and other prepaid expenses.

All of other receivables (including amounts due from related

parties) are expected to be recovered within one year.
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19 BERBESHEY 19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
—E-AE —TRHE
2016 2015
RE AR R R RERE Cash and cash equivalents in the
REMmERTHIES consolidated statement of
KR EEY financial position and in the
consolidated cash flow statement 327,539 530,151
20 MEAFRBNESK 20 TRADE PAYABLES

—E-XF  —F-6F

2016 2015
BB SRR Trade payables 601,357 516,427
FrERENESRFTEHR —FAZ - The trade payables are expected to be settled within one
year.
RBEHAR - BNESEROERRS As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
e trade payables is as follows:
—T-REF —E-RF
2016 2015
RNER Current 353,764 286,439
DR 30 K2 H] Less than 30 days past due 175,978 131,257
31 & 60 KEIH 31 - 60 days past due 30,293 41,896
612 90 X EIH] 61 - 90 days past due 6,501 11,341
90 KA %I HA More than 90 days past due 34,821 45,494
Z|fgeEE Amounts past due 247,593 229,988
601,357 516,427

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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b A ko B EAMTBELA L 21 OTHER PAYABLES AND AMOUNTS DUE

I TO RELATED PARTIES
=T~ —FT1F
2016 2015
SHEBE () Sales rebate (i) 163,786 128,492
e 18 Rk Salaries, wages, bonuses and
H e other benefits payable 93,436 73,775
FERt & Accrued expenses 81,116 77,863
BAES Contract performance deposits 32,437 30,812
TR Receipts in advance 14,317 16,468
BEETEEENZE Payables for purchase of
fixed assets 6,728 11,843
e REE A T 3RIE Amounts due to related parties
(HizF28()) (note 28(e)) 42,600 43,926
Hith Others 28,506 33,978
462,926 417,157
PTESHIA : Derivative financial instruments:
— I B (M1aE 2991) — interest rate swaps (note 299(i)) - 1,834
462,926 418,991
) AREEEaARNE AEE#H (i) In order to promote the sales of livestock feeds, the

SNSRI o (YN E AR Group launched an incentive scheme where a rebate
ERAKEMES TR A
REXIREEEE T H D LA
B2 BN - B R RE RN ER
R ZF R L WAIE -

as a percentage of sales amount is payable to the sales
agents if they can achieve certain criteria as set by the
Group. The incentive rebate is net off to the turnover

when it is recognised.

All of other payables and amounts due to related parties are

P H A A5 3008 I B A B SE A £ 5K

BIEHR—FERNL LT - expected to be settled within one year.
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22 5 22 PROVISONS
—E-RE —E—RF
2016 2015
»—H—H At 1 January 12,452 -
FR (R, HEREE Provisions (reversal)/recognised
during the year (5,676) 12,452
R+=ZA=+—8H At 31 December 6,776 12,452
AEBITVETRSHESD  ZF The Group entered into certain farm lease contracts which
AARNBAREMETN T NEE can be canceled with paying compensation or penalties
HEHRBE RZE—AF+=A to the other party. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
=+—B RERZZHESHNEA reassessed and reversed the provisions amounting to
BERMAERE(RKE13) BIBEH T RMB5,676,000, which was established in accordance with
3(p) TEEETECR - AREEHEA R the accounting policy in note 3(p) after recognising the
R o # A R ¥ 5,676,000 7T ° impairment loss on the assets associated with those lease

contracts (see note 13).

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(a) ZAURME MK

P 365 80 R P aE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

23 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

(a) Bank loans were repayable as follows:

—E-REF —T—h%F
2016 2015
RITER Bank loans
—HR—FAEE — repayable within 1 year 560,147 319,947
—BER—FRER — repayable after 1 year
MERERE but within 2 years 243,636 323,833
—BERMFREAR — repayable after 2 year
AFRNERE but within 5 years - 384,099
IRITE R MB5E Total bank loans 803,783 1,027,879

W ABRARBAR
BAR—%FRA
BENRITER

NERIFRBEE
MERTTE K

Less: bank loans repayable
within 1 year
classified as
current liabilities

Bank loans classified as

non-current liabilities

(560,147) (319,947)

243,636 707,932
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23 wHEAEE (51)

23 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

(continued)
(b) Bk (b) Terms
=T —FT1F
2016 2015
BEPIRITER Secured bank loans:
— R BF=E — Floating interest rate
(ZZ—hF : BF (2015: BLR-2.05%
BLRJ#2.05% = t0 4.45% per annum)
4.45%) - 23,853
- 23,853
EIRAIRITE K - Unsecured bank loans:
—EEFEFFEA35% — Fixed interest rate
(ZZE—F1%F : §F at 4.35% per annum
4.35% £5.45%) (2015: 4.35% t0 5.45%
per annum) 29,000 178,832
—FERENTEF — Floating interest rate
3.99% & ranging from 3.99%
13.30% to 13.30% per annum
(Z=—H%F: (2015: 1.36% to 6.20%
HFF1.36% 26.20%) per annum) 774,783 825,194
803,783 1,004,026
SRITEREEE Total bank loans 803,783 1,027,879
(c) A5 HKH0 ST Bk 97 i3 A 2 MR (¢) The carrying value of assets used to secure bank loans
WA : are as follows:
—E—-RE —ET—FRF
2016 2015
T RAEF Land and buildings - 28,318

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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24 DAIBAr 2o SR 0 S 4 24 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS

(a) JJBcHERLE (a) Share option scheme
®n S+FNA+TTEE - &A% On 14 September 2007, the Group established a share

—ET
BRI ERESE  BTAKE
BRE(BRAKEETEMNAF
MEE) AT ETHRBEERAER
RARBARBRED ©

option scheme that entitles employees of the Group,
including directors of any Group entities, to take up
options at consideration of HKD1 to subscribe for
shares of the Company.

(1) AAFEEAENIIE KR (i)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
TRAFHEF 1T > T T A during the years are as follows, whereby all options
JRHE G LB 38 1R are settled by physical delivery of shares:
A iR AE SRR BRESKFH
)
Grant Date Options Vesting conditions Contractual life
‘000 of options
—HF—R+XHB 6,600 Z—hFE—-A+XAE Z—hFE—-A+XA
16 January 2015 E2-ZT-—RF~ATH B N\FXRATAH
16 January 2015 16 January 2015

to 10 June 2015

to 10 June 2018

—E—RF—A+H 6,600 —E—RF—A+H —E—RF—A+H
16 January 2015 —E—RFRATH 2 )\FRA+H
16 January 2015 16 January 2015
to 10 June 2016 to 10 June 2018
—HF—R+XB 6,600 E—RF—A+~H E—FHF—A+~H
16 January 2015 B —tEFRATAH Z2-T—-N\FXATAH
16 January 2015 16 January 2015
to 10 June 2017 to 10 June 2018
fER LR
Total share options 19,800
n —RERZZTE-—RE+ZA The number of options granted to directors and

employees for years ended 31 December 2016 and

-i— HETEEZRESNWERER
DR 2015 are nil and 19,800,000 respectively.

B % Bl A= K% 19,800,000 17 °

— REFFH Annual Report 2016
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24 PAIBcAy R RS RE W S i () 24 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
(a) WIS (40) (a) Share option scheme (continued)
(i) HEIRFENT B H R HET 2 (ii)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of
TFEEWF - share options are as follows:
—2-RE —T-hfF
2016 2015
REF METH
TEE 17128
Weighted BRE  Weighted ERE
average A average B
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
BT + BT T
HKD ‘000 HKD ‘000
R—A—BX7E Outstanding at 1 January 0.947 16,480 1.620 900
FREHEL Granted during the year - - 0.908 19,800
FREITE Exercised during the year - - 0.908 (80)
FREEHE Forfeited during the year 1.620 (900) 0.908 (4,140)
R+=—A=+—H Outstanding at 31
RTEE December 0.908 15,580 0.947 16,480

R+=—A=+—8 Exercisable at 31

BNk December 0.908 10,360 1.026 5,440

(iii)  FEIRFERT 25 715 (6 R MR 7% (iii)  Fair value of share options and assumptions
BB EREMESD The fair value of services received in return for
REH AR EEDZEE share options granted is measured by reference
BEHEREN A BE to the fair value of share options granted. The
E-HEREBEREAR estimate of the fair value of the share options
BEEMNGETHERZER granted is measured based on a binomial lattice
BRI - BRED model. The contractual life of the share options is
ERFRTZIER M —I18 used as an input into this model. Expectations of
BWABE - ZREEF K early exercise are incorporated into the binomial
TEHRFETENEE - lattice model.

KB (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited




24 DhIBeAy 2o SR i 32 iy (1)

(a)  JJBeHEs B ()

(i) FERRE 0 23 A0 18 (B R 1R 2
(#)

R-—_E—A&—HA+HAA
HEHNBRENALEE
RS ONNE

4
S

HENAREE

R H BB E

1B

TEHDR IR (BD —TB B
FE U8 B0 A
FHRE)

BB B (B — B R 1
R G R i
FHER)

BEHBE
ZRBHIR (ABBINE
HEeBEHF/EE)

P 35 80 R P aE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFTZ)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

24 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a) Share option scheme (continued)

(iii) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(continued)

Fair value of share options granted on 15

Janurary 2015 and assumptions are as follows:

Fair value at grant date HKDO0.200 — HKD0.212

0.200%7T-0.21287T

Share price at grant date HKDO0.900

0.900 % 7T

Exercise price HKDO0.908

0.908 % 7T

Expected volatility (expressed 32.29%
as weighted average
volatility used in the modelling
under binomial lattice model)

Option life (expressed as 3.4 years
weighted average life used 344
in the modelling under binomial
lattice model)

Expected dividends 0%

Risk-free interest rate (based on 0.74%

Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes)
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24 DhIBeAn 2o BE i 3¢ iy (46)

(a)  JIBcHET S (%)

(i) FERRE R 23 A0 18 (e R 1R 2
(#)

BN IE D@ AR R (2R
P 2 DN 19 R ER A
A8 WRBERFAGSE
438 5 7] BE 3R RO iR
BFLAE - RHKRER
REBEBEREFE -

BRERRERE EEM
B - s ERBARBER
RHASN AR BER
I #EET A BLIR R - K i
(=R s Junh RN B
A

HzZT—XF+=ZA
=T —RLEFER - KA
INEEE BB IR R T
BART764,000T(=F
—hF : AR¥1,767,000
7o)+ ERARA B R AR

N
e

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

(a)

24 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

(iii) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option

grants.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
equity-settled share option payments
expenses amounted to RMB764,000 (2015:
RMB1,767,000) were recognised in the

consolidated income statement.
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24 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) A5 WLl B S (b) Restricted share award scheme
R-ZEENE+-_A=-+=8" On 23 December 2008, the Group adopted a restricted
NEB M —IBA R IR G5 52E) share award scheme (the “Scheme”) to retain the best
T8I ([#%ET8l)) r Bt ASKE available personnel by providing additional incentives
EBE(BEAEBERGIMNES)IR to employees of the Group, including directors of
HEINEBABTBFAS © 7% Group entities. Unless terminated earlier by the
HEMBRBAATE  BRIFES Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
EIRTERATALL o IRIBZATE term of ten years. The shares repurchased under the
A& — 485 H 1 75 78 BRIl 45 120 Scheme become restricted once granted and become
- mM—EEBBTIBAER unrestricted again once vested. The Scheme is not
FR1D o ZETEITNX EMRAIE subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing
TEEHRRATAR © Rules.

HE-Z—R"E+-A=+—H Particulars and movement of the restricted shares
IEFE - ZEEITHARSIRG under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December
HEREBHNT 2016 were as follows:
RZB-7F RoB-AE
-A-A £n tZB=t-8
HATE  ERERD BEE FACHE  EAOE
Outstanding ~ Granted Vested  Forfeited Outstanding  RiHAH SBH
asat during during during as at Date of Vesting
01/01/2016 theyear  theyear  theyear 31/12/2016 grant period
[E& Employee 2,485,000 1,970,000  (2,197,500) (60,0000 2,197,500 16/01/2015 0-2.4 years
i 024
and
30/03/2016
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24 DAIBcAy 2 RS R S il (4) 24 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
(b) A5 WL B 4 B w4 (4) (b) Restricted share award scheme (continued)
AEEEES (EAAA A ZE Movements in the number of restricted shares
HERA) BB EHITERS outstanding and the respective weighted average
RDEE RS NEFHELEE R grant date fair value attributable to the employees and
REEREBHHT directors of the Group as grantees of the Scheme of

the Company were as follows:

ZE-RE —T-RF
2016 2015
InREF3 IIEF
KA RiLAH
AREE() BRESE  DREE) BFRH

Weighted BRHEBE  Weighted EnEE
average Number of average Number of
grant date restricted grantdate restricted

fair value (i) shares fair value (i) shares
BT BT
HKD HKD
R—A—BHERTE Outstanding at
1 January 0.740 2,485,000 - -
[k Granted 0.682 1,970,000 0.780 3,727,500
BB Vested 0.830 (2,197,500) 0.840 (1,242,500)
B Forfeited 0.780 (60,000) - -
R+=—A=+—8 Outstanding at
B ARITE 31 December 0.730 2,197,500 0.740 2,485,000
(i) BHEBAABEEARAROR (i) Grant date fair value represents the fair value of
BREHOAREE- the shares of the Company at the grant date.
BHE-_T—R"F+=-A=+—8 During the year ended 31 December 2016,
IEFER - BRI EE) S restricted share award scheme payments
% A AR 1,505,000 7T expenses amounted to RMB1,505,000 (2015:
(ZZE—HF : AR¥ 1,649,000 RMB1,649,000) were recognised in the
TL) ' BEREREBRER AR - consolidated income statement.

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited




24 DhJBeAy 2y AR i 32 i (41)

(b) A1 R B B3 SE MRy it ) (48)

(ii)

BERHEONAAEBER
(6

&R T A R B B B R
ZRBEBIRRSEFE
BMAREHE REBR
RERBBEOITEAKE
BEREHREARRES B
BRI BEOERNRZER
B o T imARAR E B R
HHEERZEANERR
BERHIBROOAAREE -

ERHBGOHAL BED
R=Z-AE=A=+H
B EBRT

RE L 0.6247 %7t -
DRfBE 0.68228 7T
RE L 0.788 7T
HEE
11508 0.78787T
TR 8 HHRER
71.354% F
46.86%
FEHIRE 0%
TRk A 0.45%
(LAETTi= 1 %.0.90%
fih 4R A B
(S10))

MR

(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

24 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Restricted share award scheme (continued)

(ii)

Fair value of the restricted shares and

assumptions

The illiquidity part of the restricted shares
under the Scheme is treated as an at-the-
money European put option by assuming that
the holder of restricted share would buy a put
option to protect against the depreciation risk of
stock price in the vesting period. The difference
between ordinary share price and European put
option price is the fair value of restricted share.

Fair value of the restricted shares granted on 30
March 2016 and assumptions are as follows:

Fair value at grant date HKDO0.6247-

HKDO0.6822
Spot price at grant date HKDO0.78
Exercise price HKDO0.78

71.354% and 46.86%

for each option

Expected volatility

Expected dividends 0%
Risk-free interest rate 0.45% and 0.90%
(based on Hong Kong

Dollar Swaps Curve (S10))
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25 HAWMERMFR P BIE 25 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) S MBORIF bW ¥ BB - (a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

financial position:

ZE-RE —T—hF

2016 2015

REH) At beginning of the year (10,402) (10,275)

FRFTISTEE Provision for income tax for the year (33,865) (31,168)

FRENMAEH Income tax paid in the year 35,128 31,148

EREE) T2 Effect of movements in exchange rates (216) (107)

RER At end of the year (9,355) (10,402)
& - Represented by:

FERTERISHL Income tax payable (9,355) (10,402)

(9,355) (10,402)

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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25 SRR BB (M) 25 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)
(b) AEMIBEBINEER (A1) 2H) (b) Movement of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the
year
FAERERE A B R P ER The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
WIRERBEE (AE) NHEMK recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
HE REZHMT - position and the movements during the year are as
follows:
mERE HERN
fhiyil HEEE- R

fE EEBGE  RERE  TFER EHE

Depreciation allowance  Provision Impairment HIBRIE Sales rebate

in excess of the related for loss-  Allowable  and other &5t
depreciation inventories receivables tax loss accruals Total
RZZ-7"-A-R At 1 January 2016 (314) 14 1,082 - 23,195 23,937
ERGABRRTA/ Credited/(charged) to
() (2t 7)) consolidated income
statement (note 7(a)) 8) 330 1,031 1515 2,424 5,292
RZZ—~"E+ZA=1-R At 31 December 2016 (322) 344 2,073 1515 25,619 29,229
RZZ-1%-A-A At 1 January 2015 (364) 539 812 6,851 18,419 26,257
BRGABRRITA/ Credited/(charged) to
(1) (A3t 76) consolidated income
statement (note 7(a)) 50 (525) 230 (6,851) 4,776 (2,320)
RZE-RE+=R=1-H At 31 December 2015 (314) 14 1,042 - 231% 23,937
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25 EEEMESRUFR P BLE (41

25

TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)
(c) HAMBHRUL R Bk (¢) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial
position
=T —FT1F
2016 2015
NN P O Deferred tax assets recognised
HROELEHIBEEE in the consolidated statement
of financial position 29,551 24,251
NN P O Deferred tax liabilities recognised
HROELEHIEEE in the consolidated statement
of financial position (322) (314)
29,229 23,937

(d) AR E B & B

IBARHI T 3(0) Tl & 5HBUR
HNE BT SRR R E T8
B HE AT B S 1B A R SR ERR
FlmFl - MAKEARRERIEA
E518 AR #918,335,000 (=%
—RF : AR®989,704,0007T)
ERELERIBEE - BIIEEER
BT o

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

(@)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 3(o), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB918,335,000 (2015: RMB989,704,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses can be carried
forward for 5 years.



25 EEEMESR R P BLE (41

(e)

A B 4 B AL

RIBREFHBE - HIMREER
HIRBEHSINEDEMBMREA
X10% B - RIFTHEE
HEERE o RIFTEEEF BT
SEBRBEWE - ERBKILAR
BEERATEETEKEARK
BB EMHEERES% °
RIEHBEFHBOEN TEPFE -
AEBEKREETENBARE =
BEELF+ZA=+—HIRD
M M) 2 FEUR B S S B AR TR
0% - AREREEDEKE A
AT \F-A—BEH
Z A B AIZA T IEIB - B
it R R TR R AR IETT DR
2 - ke ER B A B AR
DK FRNERELTHIA -

RZE—R"E+=ZA=+—80"
BB B A RIR 5 R FAERA A
Bt = 25 AR ¥ 396,381,000
T(ZZE—RAF: ARK
378,893,0007T) ° H % EHi &
DA BBRZ AN BIEH &
ERELAITERRRETE 5K
wA WA ERR D IRZE BT
B BT B RIEER 18
B EARY30,867,000L(=F
—FRF : AR#27,731,0007T) °

MR RMEE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

25 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(e)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the new PRC tax law, dividends received by
foreign investors from their investment in foreign-
invested enterprises are subject to withholding tax
at a rate of 10 percent unless reduced by treaty.
Pursuant to a tax treaty between the PRC and Hong
Kong, the investment holding companies established
in Hong Kong are subject to a reduced withholding
tax rate of 5 percent on dividends they receive from
their PRC subsidiaries. Pursuant to the grandfathering
treatments of the new PRC tax law, dividends
receivable by the Group from its PRC subsidiaries
in respect of its undistributed profits prior to 31
December 2007 are exempted from the withholding
tax. Dividends receivable by the Group from its PRC
subsidiaries in respect of its profits earned since 1
January 2008 will be subject to the withholding tax.
Accordingly, deferred tax would be recognised for
undistributed retained earnings of the PRC subsidiaries
to the extent that the earnings would be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2016, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to RMB396,381,000 (2015: RMB378,893,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of RMB30,867,000 (2015:
RMB27,731,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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26 B - il BB S 26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(a)  HERRALSE 2> 0 5 W) (a) Movements in components of equity
AEBEGZAEERTEEMAKID The reconciliation between the opening and
R EAY BB R A SR ER - BER closing balances of each component of the Group's
REEREEHR - ARFERE consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
RIS B F ¥ R EE T statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
BEIET ¢ in the individual components of equity of the company
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
RfpER
b0y
B RHEE  HABR  EXRE Sharebased  REEF
Share Share Contributed Translation ~ payment  Retained &t
capital ~ premium surplus reserve reserve profit Total

Mgk (HsEaeic) (REzE26()) (Ros2eiall) (PfEEelalig) (REE26(0))
Note (note 26(c)) (note 26 (dlll)  (note 26(alfil (note 26(d)fv) (note 26(d)iv)

RZ2-735-F-A At 1 January 2016 97,920 583,808 M215  (187,209) 281 275,158 1513773
EREERNTRS Equity-settled share-based
payment transactions % - (586) - - 906 - 320
ERiER Profit for the year - - - - - 106347 106,347
ERENE Equity reclassification - (919) - - 64 855 -
Afp2 A Other comprehensive income - - - 109223 - - 109223
R-E-NET-F=t-H  At31December 2016 97920 582,303 741,215 (717,982) 3847 382360 1,729,663
RZZ-1%-F-A At 1 January 2015 97914 582,902 M (275309 315 2891% 1436233
BERtERhZHRS Equity-settled share-based
payment transactions pi 6 906 - - 2,562 (1,134) 2,340
ErEl Loss for the year - - - - - (1290 (12.904)
LfpzE%s Other comprehensive income - - - 88,104 - - 88104
RZZ-TETZA=T-B  At31 December 2015 97920 583,808 M5 (187,09) 2811 25158 1513773
(i) HEABHENACHEIERE] (i)  Contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair
EFE (R 26(d)(i) &5 value of the shares of NAC determined based on the
H BABRBENACKH basis of the consolidated net assets of NAC at the
MAREBEEBBAQAE date of the reorganisation (see note 26(d)(ii)) over the
73 3R B AT AR 9 E B &Y nominal value of the shares issued by the Company in
&5 o exchange thereof.

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(b)

Jbe &

0

(i)

P 365 80 R P aE

(BREHEAI - AAREFITE)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)
(b) Dividends
JBE T A 25 F SRR SR i (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
N JRE, Company attributable to the year
RZE—RER=-ZT—H No final dividends were proposed after the end
FHRERTHEELEER of reporting periods of 2016 and 2015.
REIBB ©
Z HI R BLAF B R AF A 4L O (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
RN T2 2 Al g R R the Company and minority shareholders of its
JBG L Al D BRI IR subsidiaries attributable to the previous financial
5! year, approved and paid during the year
=T~ —FT1F
2016 2015
IREEE) VNG Dividends to minority shareholders
DEHRRAS of subsidiaries 51,035 53,797

— REFFH Annual Report 2016
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26 EA - il KB B (B) 26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(c) A& (¢) Share capital
(i) EEREFTRAE (i) Authorised and issued share capital
ZE-RE —Z-n%
2016 2015
RAEE g
Number of €% Number of k|
shares  Amount shares Amount
‘000 '000
T TR
EE Authorised:
W+=A=+-H Ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each
BREEBLMLER  at31 December 10,000,000 964,358 10,000,000 964,358
B#TREEEER - Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
n—A—AH At 1 January 1,016,188 97,920 1,016,108 97,914
RIER R 2 Share issued under share option
BT R (i) scheme (i - - 80 6
W+=A=+-H At 31 December 1,016,188 97,920 1,016,188 97,920
TEBRFEAATZEEARAR The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
AITREIR 2 KRE RER dividends as declared from time to time and
RAIRRAE LBRE— are entitled to one vote per share at general
EREE -TELTBRH meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
KRR ZHARBEMSZ rank equally with regard to the Company's
BREERN - residual assets.

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(©)

JeAs (4)

(1)

S IE] AR

REL-BERFEB)AR
RAIB/—RBEHETHR
HIR ) R A B R B AR
MEFERR > XRFEACF
EEBEEBRAGELR
RIZH RS D R 8
BEHMER - (FRAERF
B in BBy T Bl ey — &9 -
KEBATRMZIETL
B AERFEABARS

EB A w2 R &I PT
FoMBRNHBERE
BaRHAERAFIEER

N

ZIERRER/BIRAR
AMEEER  BiKa
ABRME @ WABARAF
KB AR - EERFAN
B An BARAEE LD

P 365 80 R P aE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(©

Share capital (continued)

(i) Purchase of own shares

Core Pacific-Yamaichi International (Hong Kong)
is an employee benefit trust used in conjunction
with the restricted share award schemes. The
trustee has agreed to satisfy the award made
under the restricted share award scheme
through the relevant employee benefit trust. As
part of restricted share award scheme, the Group
funds the trust, from time to time to enable the
trustee to acquire its own ordinary shares to
satisfy the award. All shares have been acquired
through the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The trust was treated as a legal entity separate
from the Company but as a subsidiary of the
Company for consolidation purpose. The shares
held by the trust are treated as treasury shares.
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26 EA - il KB B (B) 26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(c) JBeAs (#) (¢) Share capital (continued)
(i) Kl E ARG (3E) (ii)  Purchase of own shares (continued)
ZEBERLFEENRG Details of these shares repurchased and held by
FIEESIET the trust are set out below:

BERHEE BRAN BREN  CHRERE

Number of BREER REEEE Cash
/R shares  Highest price  Lowest price  consideration
Month/year repurchased paid per share paid per share paid
B BT
HKD HKD
ZZT\F+ZA December 2008 548,000 0.85 0.85 427
“ETNET-A November 2009 2,222,000 1.50 143 2,876
ZZTNFTZA December 2009 589,000 148 1.48 764
“E-Z£0A May 2010 945,000 1.51 1.33 1,206
—E-=%1f May 2013 4,583,000 118 1.03 3,957
—F-=%F7A June 2013 497,000 1.09 1.05 432
&5t Total 9,384,000 9,662
REBRHIRN %8 Shares granted to
FEETREMRR employees under
restricted share
award scheme (6,627,000)
ERAFR Shares held at the
end of the year 2,757,000

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited




MR

(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)
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26 EAS - il BB B (B) 26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(c) JBeAsS () (¢) Share capital (continued)
(iii) IR B 1 R S i K i (iii)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at
TRATHERR IR FERI 1R 540 the end of the reporting period

1T —E-RE —T-hfF

Exercise price 2016 2015

BT L A

HKD Number Number

—T-AFRATAHZE 10 June 2015 to

—ZE-\FXATH 10 June 2018 0.908 5,140,000 5,440,000
—T-RERATAZE 10 June 2016 to

—ZE-\FXATH 10 June 2018 0.908 5,220,000 5,520,000
—T—+HFXATAHZE 10 June 2017 to

—ZE-\FXATH 10 June 2018 0.908 5,220,000 5,520,000

15,580,000 16,480,000

BHOBRERTEFAA Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for
BEHNBERRBIRE B one ordinary share in the Company. Further
Mo ZE BRI — details of these options are set out in note 24 to
ESE R E s the financial statements.
24 -

(iv) RIEH R R 07 SE ) 1 2 (iv)  Shares granted under restricted share award scheme
FHHT IR G
RZZE—J/8F 2,197,500 In 2016, 2,197,500 shares were vested to
BBt B AR IR A IR IR 1 employees under restricted share award
B EGEBERNE TR scheme. An amount of RMB586,000 and
8 - 5 A AR586,000 RMB1,363,000 was transferred from capital
TR AR¥1,363,000TE redemption reserve and share-based payment
DRI 8 E AR & E & IA reserve to share premium account, respectively.
W& A7 A EE it 9 S A o S

BERMGER -
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26 EAN - it RS (51)

d) 2T NS
(i) RO i 1B R B A ] o A

B0 B AR R R E
B R AR R 31T B A AT iR
MASR BN ERE R
BREREARE AR
ARt B ik B AT 10k
TARBER  REAR
AEZEEZZESERREE
B& ARe1BEER—
REBBIZ 2 BIHER

BOREREIEAMBRE
NFrA 2B BEEE
BREBRN R SEFRLD -

i) EUHH

BEAEERQRARED
BMERXRSMABERLDAE
REMBEATE(E
#1)r ARRBANACHE
R AR R %17 1,999,999 Ik &
PREE 0.1 B TH L mAk -
ERWE RS AT NACK
BHRE - REMNACTE
ABRARBEEEARDRIER
RMMETROEENZE
BOERELAEREEZS
REVBmMRPHE HEH
1%0

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(@)

Nature and purpose of reserves

@

(i)

Share premium and redemption reserve

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of the shares of the Company. Under
the Companies Law of Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company would be in a position to pay off
its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

Redemption reserve represents the historical
value of shares repurchased and held by the
trustee which are treated as treasury shares.

Merger reserve

Pursuant to the reorganisation plan of the
Group in preparation of the Company’s listing
in the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Reorganisation”), the
Company issued 1,999,999 ordinary shares
of HKDO.1 each to the then shareholders of
NAC in consideration of acquiring their equity
interests held in NAC. The difference between
the then shareholders’ total capital contributions
to NAC over the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange thereof
was transferred to the merger reserve in the
consolidated financial statements as at the date

of Reorganisation.



26 EAN - Gt RS (51)

(d)

ik il 2 P T B 3 ()

(iii) P E

KR F RN ERE R EA
ERBIREBEEHETER
A FOERIA R AR R RS
B B 32 &) BT I8 2 B ) AR A
ERET WEEHRES
GHE -

—REEHEEE

FEIME A RZEREFE
EHANREREBEEHE
BREEEF10% DEE—
MEHEEES BEERHES
BRIEZTMEARNE0% A
- ERASERFENA
EmEREFEAD KRS
AT{ES o

TRFRED

ETHEMBARLBAR
VhEFRERES - E@ES
LHMBLARESERIE
RE - REEZRAARE
MEBAREESRERENE
R EAIRE L (Pl
BEE REREMETHE
MERHE) - ZESFRIBRIN
TN - AREENE
BOBAERBRRDIKEE
RIfEH ©

MR RMEE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(@)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)  PRC statutory reserves

Transfers from retained earnings to PRC statutory
reserves are made in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles
of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

General reserve fund

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10 percent of their after-tax profit,
as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to general
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50
percent of the registered capital. The transfer to
this reserve must be made before distribution of
a dividend to shareholders.

Enterprise development fund

Certain subsidiaries in the PRC are required
to set up an enterprise development fund.
Transfers to this fund are made at the discretion
of the board of directors of the subsidiaries.
This fund can only be utilised on capital items
for the collective benefit of the subsidiaries’
employees such as the construction of
dormitories, canteens and other staff welfare
facilities. This fund is non-distributable other than
on liquidation. The transfer to this fund must
be made before distribution of a dividend to
shareholders.
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26 EA - il KB B (B) 26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) fltfE 2 P B R () (d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iv) BER G (iv)  Translation reserve
b H e s E R EE I The translation reserve comprises all foreign
X¥BWBRARMBHRE R exchange differences arising from the translation
RESBRRTBEMNE R of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries
AREFENERARQA outside of the PRC, and the translation of inter-
HEREENFMBENZE group loans classified as net investment in PRC
o subsidiaries.
(v) LR 73 28819 317 1 (v)  Share-based payment reserve
ARt A ERE T HEE The share-based payment reserve comprises the
FERIEMIEES(n) (i) R fair value of the actual or estimated number of
AR AERAZ S unexercised options and restricted share awards
B BRERTAEE granted to employees of the Group recognised in
EERKRITEERERSE accordance with the accounting policy for share-
B2 il % 13 22 B ) B R sk Ay based payments in note 3(n)(ii).
FFEEMAREE-
(e) VI HES> IR (e) Distributability of reserves

RZZE—R"E+=ZA=+—8"
A SR T A A AR R REE
mEEL) B AR 1,631,743,000
T(ZE—RF: HARE
1,415,853,0007T) °

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company was approximately RMB1,631,743,000
(2015: approximately RMB1,415,853,000).
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(f) Capital management

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base
so as to maintain creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business, by
pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of a total liabilities-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
capital is defined as total equity. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends payable to shareholders, issue new shares
or return capital to shareholders.
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26 EA - il KB B (B) 26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

) HEARH () (f)  Capital management (continued)
RZZE—RFRZZT—AFT= Total liabilities-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2016
R=+—Bz#@BaEEERLEK and 2015 was as follows:

LUNNE
—E—RF —T—hF
2016 2015
BB & Current liabilities 1,654,782 1,311,809
ERBERE Non-current liabilities 243,958 708,246
aE8E Total liabilities 1,898,740 2,020,055
EmBE Total equity 1,761,395 1,704,521
BEBEEEARLER Total liabilities-to-capital ratio 1.08 1.19
AN R SCE M@ R R EE R AN Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
HrEINE)EARFNR - subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
27 7R 27 COMMITMENTS

(a) HEARRISE (a) Capital commitments
RZE—RFE+ZA=+—BI& Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
KRG EVBRRELBENE 2016 not provided for in the consolidated financial
RAEEWT statements were as follows:

=T —FT-RF
2016 2015
EETAY Contracted for
—EEEE - Fixed assets 51,885 82,429
EEEERETL Authorised but not contracted for
—EEEE - Fixed assets 90,718 37,181
142,603 119,610

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

27 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease
payments under non—cancellable operating leases are

payable as follows:

ZE-REF —ZT-hF

2016 2015

—FR Within 1 year 6,258 1,686
—FUEERFUR After 1 year but within 5 years 16,039 18,406
AFENUE After 5 years 84,975 27,809
107,272 47,801

AEBERBEEEHOEEZEY
Rt  ERBEEHR KR
ER+F  UREHEEME K
REREBEHAT - ZFHOM
TERFAEE -

ik Bk

AEBEETHEERP ([ROE
FDRIZ—FHNEH (RIEH
YEEBFER) Bt AKE
RZZREEERMEEENHE
EBRARNEFPEBENAETH
BERMEE - EREHAR B
RHNARNEFPEBERENSHE
m

©

The Group leases a number of properties and land
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of one to fifty years, with an option to renew the
leases when all terms are renegotiated. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

Purchase commitments

The Group entered into one-year contracts (renewable
and reviewed annually) with certain selected farmers
("Contract Farmers”) under which the Group agrees
to purchase live chickens, upon fulfilment of certain
quality requirements, from the Contract Farmers
at an agreed price determined based on the then
prevailing market prices. The amounts of live chickens
contracted to be purchased from the Contract Farmers
at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

—E—RF —T—hF
2016 2015
EEES) Contracted for 204,412 240,616
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27 TR (%) 27 COMMITMENTS (continued)
d) SBRIE (d) Sales commitments
AEEEEBE TR, —FH The Group entered into one-year contracts (renewable
MEW(NEPTESFERZ) and reviewed annually) with certain customers under
Bt AEBERERKEERT which the Group agrees to sell chicken meat at an
BETHHBEERLEHRR -8 agreed price determined based on the then prevailing
EETEZBR —BIZEHTE - B market prices. The pre-determined price typically
WMERKR  BRINRZERPE agreed on a seasonal basis. The amounts of chicken
EHANSEHT meat contracted to be sold to these customers at the

end of the reporting period were as follows:

=F-x"F —FT1F

2016 2015
BEETA Contracted for - 8,988
28 BWHEALRY 28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
KRV BRESBEHBAOBEALTER In addition to the related party information disclosed
Oh REBETHTERBEALR elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered
Z e into the following material related party transactions.
(a) BN A0 B BB A LI B 17 (a) Name and relationship with related parties
FR - BTSN EER During the year, transactions with the following parties
FEALTRS : are considered as related party transactions:
BEALER EERRE A T HBAR
Name of party Relationships
AR ERDBRAR ([ RKRMEE]) * 5 Sl WNC]
Great Wall Enterprise Co., Ltd. ("GWE") Ultimate holding company
AABIRR (358%) AR ([AAKEIRR 1) R R A A
Great Wall International (Holdings) Ltd. (“GWIH") Intermediate holding company

KB (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
U YR Y P YGRS (a) Name and relationship with related parties (continued)
(1)
HEALTER EARRE A T WEIR

Name of party

Relationships

ERARBGOKFIERBR AR ([dEFmsKkF]) *
Great Wall Yung Huo Food (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
("GWYHB")

ZREBRMRGARAR ([ e ERI]) *
Total Nutrition Technologies Co., Ltd. (“TNT")

RBUHREREERAFA(TELURERM])*
Tai Ji Food Co., Ltd. (“TJF")

IREWFHBERER AR ([IEREW]) *
Beijing Universal Chain Food Co., Ltd. (“BUCF")

AKEm(KR)BRAR ([RKKER(K=E)])*
Great Wall Food (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. ("GWF-TJ")

AKBMER(KE)BRAF ([ REKBMRM) ) *
DaChan Showa Foods (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (“DSF")

RBCOKEEEE R (A7) AR AR (TABOKEILR) 1) *
Great Wall FeedTech (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
("GWFT-BJ")

RBGKERE B M (RE) BRAR ([ REGKERE)])*
Great Wall FeedTech (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.
("GWFT-TJ")

AR B E (RRBNELIER A F) BB R R
Subsidiary of GWE, ultimate holding company of
the Company

RERPEE (KRR RELZERAR) BB A
Subsidiary of GWE, ultimate holding company of
the Company

ARBRM R (KRR ANELIER A F)) BB R R
Subsidiary of GWE, ultimate holding company of
the Company

AR ZE (RR B SRIER A R) KB R R
Subsidiary of GWE, ultimate holding company of
the Company

REKBIER (R R BRIRNERAR]) BB QA
Subsidiary of GWIH, intermediate holding

company of the Company

ABBIR (R R B FRMER AR BB R R
Subsidiary of GWIH, intermediate holding
company of the Company

KRB (AR RRR R A R]) BB A
Subsidiary of GWIH, intermediate holding

company of the Company

KRB (R A B R MERDA]) #IKTE A7)
Subsidiary of GWIH, intermediate holding

company of the Company
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28 BIEEALRY (%)

(@

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
UV YN RA Y] PSR LS (a) Name and relationship with related parties (continued)
(#1)
BEATRRE EHRRE A T HIBER
Name of party Relationships
AKRRBRR(RE)BRAR ([ ARKEREGAE]D* KREEWMEE (RRAR&ELERAR) B
DaChan Liangyou Foods (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. it/
("DLF-TJ") Associate of GWE, ultimate holding company of
the Company
AKERBRR(E8)BRAR(AKERREGR EED* REERMEE (KRRAKN&LERAR) B

DaChan Liangyou Foods (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
("DLF-SH")

Marubeni Corporation (“MAR")

Marubeni (Dalian) Co., Ltd. (“MAR-DL")

Hansen Inc.

ANBMEZERAR AR ([ KHME]) *
Dacheng Land Development Limited (“DLD")

DaChan (VN) Co., Ltd. (“DVN")

DACHAN (ASIA-PACIFIC) LIM (“DAPL")

EMPIKRMBR AR ([EHRREK]) *
JiLin CSD Food Co., Ltd. (“JiLin CSD")

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

SIWNE]

Associate of GWE, ultimate holding company of
the Company

DB

Minority shareholder

Marubeni (D EIIRER ) 698 2 7]
Subsidiary of Marubeni, minority shareholder

HERELE  BRELE  BRFLIERBERR
SEHRAREEREGHRT

Mr. Han Jia-Hwan, Mr. Han Chia-Yin, Mr. Han
Chia-Yau and Mr. Harn Jia-Chen jointly own
100% interest of Hansen Inc.

Hansen Inc.Fy2 &M B AR
Wholly-owned subsidiary of Hansen Inc.

NS0l =PNG]

Subsidiary of an associate

EENRIHMEA R
Subsidiary of an associate

NI VNG|
Subsidiary of an associate



28 BIEEALRY (4)
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
U YN RA Y] PR LS (a) Name and relationship with related parties (continued)
(%10)
BEATRERE EHRRE A T EER

Name of party

Relationships

KBENFEFHEREBRAD ([ RBEREZE]) *
Advent Prosperity Real Estate Development Co.,

Ltd. (“APRD")

IRB#ERXBRRERART ([ItRgE])
Beijing You Will See Eco-Agri Co., Ltd. (BJWS)

AERREEARA

Taiwan International Gene Co., Ltd. (“TIG")

R B B/R R M ERIEE AR A
Mengcun Hui Autonomous County Construction
Investment Co., Ltd. (“MCCI")

IR SERRBR AT ([LERSE]) *
Shandong Kaida Environment Co., Ltd. (“SKE")

FYERERRRER AR (DRYIFEKR]) *

Shenzhen Huada Gene Technology Co., Ltd.
("SHGT")

* RAIEBHAXEREHSE -

%5 R A HAE B AR XR
%o

U SpESNGIL ) NG|
Associate of a subsidiary

HIB A R HE A R

Associate of a subsidiary

NG NG
Associate of a subsidiary

MEBATMRES
Investor of a subsidiary

HREAL
Other related party

HihREA LT
Other related party

The English translation of the company names is for reference
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRBEEBIN - UARKETFTZ5)
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

28 B A2 5 (B1) 28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
b)) WEREEALRS (b) Significant related party transactions
FREABEATRZHFBEN Particulars of significant related party transactions
N during the year are as follows:
ZE—RF —ZT—hF
2016 2015
HEEM : Sales of goods: 224,029 408,980
HERHRE R Purchases of material and goods 24,139 27,562
EERT Management services: 665 624
DIRMEHESART ©  Rental services provided: - 900
BN TR Processing services provided: 24,803 -

XS] Consideration paid for
1B - business combination: - 1,400

KB (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited




28 BIEEALRY (4)

()

(d)

BRI R A R &

AEEIZEREAEHE (R
EHESEBEC N TARAE
EMEBMMEIOMBECHT
ETH&SHEENSF)NT

MR RMEE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFTZ)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(¢) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company'’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as

follows:
=T~ —T1F
2016 2015
EEEEET Short term employee benefits 7,956 7,435
RRETEIH R Retirement scheme contributions 105 129
ARGt B ERR Y Share-based payments - 83
8,061 7,647

MemBme st A TETRA] (M
#6(b) -

JHE o B 2 N -k B

R|EHR - AKEHUTEE

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (note
6(b)).

(d) Amounts due from related parties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had

AT #EER the following balances with related parties:
s ZE-REF —T—h%F
Note 2016 2015
FEWE Z BRI Trade receivables (i) 82,465 60,671
(i) BEATHERESER (i)  Trade receivables from related parties are

TR - 8 RIEER
—FRHE - RZT—
F+-—A=+—8 L&
HZEFEFELEXNRE
518 o

b

~

N\

unsecured, interest free and are expected to
be recovered within one year. There was no
significant impairment loss made against these
amounts at 31 December 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRBEEBIN - UARETFTE5)
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

28 BHEEAL:Z 5 () 28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(e)  MEATBH XA 13K (¢) Amounts due to related parties
RMEBR - NEBAATEE As at the end of reporting period, the Group had the
ANT# following balances with related parties:
gz —E—RF —ET—hF
Note 2016 2015
FERE SERI Trade payables (i) 2,323 1,886
HAh FE{I R Other payables 42,600 42,040
44,923 43,926
(i) BEATHENZESHER (i)  Trade payables to related parties are unsecured,
TR £ B REHR interest free and are expected to be paid or
—FRER -

settled within one year.

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited




28 BIEEALRY (4)

(0 LTS B A 3 S 2 i R
]

EXAEETREALRZSER
MEXZRFEBERS (ER
RETRAUEI4AE) - LR
A VAEMBERATHNES
EHE (MERS] —F-

29 A R Be 4% B R A R A

AEENFESRIABERS KR
EEEY  BREZIERRREMER
R A EERRENESRRER
fEMNRE EARKBEERE XK BRE
TELAFEERR  FXERRE - BERE
B XBRR RBESKBARER
R o REBMINEAEER S REZ D
mslE A ERR -

AEEAENERRERRASEER
B A P B R O B A R B B TR O
REREHNMT :

MR RMEE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(f) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected

transactions

Certain related party transactions listed above
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules are provided in section
headed “Connected transactions” of the Report of the
Directors.

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other
receivables, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
and other payables. Exposure to credit, interest rate,
currency, business, liquidity and commodity price risks arise
in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from movements in

its own equity share price.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below:

ZZ—NEFIR Annual Report 2016




A 35 8 R P e

(B SEHEBI - UARKEFTZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

29 ik Be 4T B K 4 o A (&)

(@)

KB (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

v £ B8

FERBIERSHE T BEBEATHX
NEHFR  TRELEAKE
B REY E SRR R Y R E A £
HE - AREEBBRIEERERS
KEFREEEERR - XEBSE
BEAAABREVHERNE
FETRS  BEEEKE SR
ROBEERR - NREBREKRE
18 FE MR TR A 45 R AR AR ) - AT
BREEERBIBER - NEERERE
ERER - Mo ARERERE
P A EMGRIR &R - T 2 HIK &R
HERERABRE AEEN
ZHEEBEREREERRT
RN ETEE-—FEFPH L &
REERRE RRELSE PR
MEASEHEENKREEL ©

AEEEHNEERREERE
BREFPHERFEMZE -
REEPEEMETEXBERA
TERYRE AREXEED
[E\ B = B2 AN B [ A A B
BEBTERBEHERBEL -
RREBAR - ENE SEREE
FREFEBEZEAEFRAAR
FRDRME28% (ZE—RF :
49%) k9.7%( =T — A F:
8.6%) °

EHAEBEIREE S MEMER
HERNEERBRMNE—FE/E
BREESHNWE17 %18 -

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(2)

Credit risk

It is the risk that a counterparty is unable to pay
amount in full when due. It arises primarily from the
Group's trade receivables and amounts due from
related parties. The Group limits its exposure to
credit risk by rigorously selecting counterparties. The
Group mitigates its exposure to risk relating to trade
receivables by dealing with diversified customers with
sound financial standing. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control policy to minimise credit risk. In addition,
all receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and overdue balances are followed up by senior
management. The Group's diversified business base
ensures that there are no significant concentrations
of credit risk for a particular customer. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in which
the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of reporting periods, 2.8 percent
(2015: 4.9 percent) and 9.7 percent (2015: 8.6 percent)
of the total trade receivables was due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers,

respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in notes 17 and 18.



29 ik BE AT B K 4 o A (B

i )

EERRBECRARAE - K&
EERTARSEREERREZH
ReRkBSFEEBYWKF  URAAX
SENRE2RHES  WRIERE
HRERENDOTE - NEH
MR RBBERRITER
URFES ERHERBEEM I H
BiGFE R A REH RS
BEHHER -

TERALNBERRAEERA
REHRTAREBIZ A LRI
RenBstEZFTESRAE
(BREZANNRFENRER
B WEEFENE - AERRE
HRMEGFE)  RAKERR
AN

MR EE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFTZ)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’'s operations and mitigate the
effects of short-term fluctuations in cash flows.
The Group's treasury department is responsible
for maintaining a balance between continuity and
flexibility of funding through the use of banking
facilities in order to meet the Group’s liquidity

requirements.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group's
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of reporting period) and the earliest date the

Group and the Company can be required to pay:
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29 ik Be 4T B K 4 S UM (41

(b) By PERBE (%)

29

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

“E-RE

2016
AR
$RBEE —ER —ENE MESL
REEE HERXEE  BORWME  BOREE

Total Within ~ Morethan  More than
EE  contractual 1year 1 year 2 years
Carrying undiscounted oron but less but less
amount cash flow demand than2years than5 years
RITER Bank loans 803,783 839,032 591,889 247,143 -
EREZER Trade payables 599,034 599,034 599,034 - -
At fEfFE Other payables 465,249 465,249 465,249 - -
FERRE Dividend payables 14,221 14,221 14,221 - -
1,882,287 1,917,536 1,670,393 247,143 -
—T-Ff
2015

CLOlZS
FREe —EMm —FHE REME
MELE  REXER  BEIRWE  EORRF
Total Within More than More than
BRAE  contractual 1 year 1 year 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted oron but less but less
amount cash flow demand  than2years  than b years
RITER Bank loans 1,027,879 1,065,963 334,056 332,607 399,300
R EZEN Trade payables 516,427 516,427 516,427 - -
At fEfFE Other payables 418,991 418,991 418,991 - -
FERRE Dividend payables 33,590 33,590 33,590 = =

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

1,996,887 2,034,971 1,303,064 332,607 399,300
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()

ZIES N

AEENXEAREERGFEE
Ko T BA R R EE M KRB
MERDEAREERRS
mEN KRR KA R EBENER

B -

AR BB ERAOFIE R BE
FHRBRME23 - ARENTH
R SRR BRF R E B SR
SIRELBOER -

RZE—XE+_A=+—
B R REEEM R 100
EEREMEHERFSEAM
BT AEEMBRBERT R
BERARD EmHARE
6,492,324 T (—ZZE—HF : AR
#4,517,15170) - BAULBRAEE
VEBIFRFIN  HiEAERMNE
AW T ERFE -

bl BRI AT T R R R R
HERBEMRELELBEAR
EHFEMNTERIETESRT
BRTAENTFERRMIED o 1
B 100 EES S E IR EY
BEET—AfREHAERNAET
BEF BTG - PN EER T
—REMER -

MR RMEE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(©

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of
the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are
disclosed in note 23. The Group's floating interest rate
borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in cash
flows due to changes in interest rates.

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax
and retained profits by approximately RMB6,492,324
(2015: RMB4,517,151), and there is no impact on other
components of the consolidated equity, except for
retained profits of the Group.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date.The 100 basis point increase/
decrease represents management’'s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2015.

ZZ—NEFIR Annual Report 2016
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(d)

W R B

REBAREDEEBANELHR
RARBETRS > MARET
EEEBEBMAINE - REFRA
REHINEZR 5 B E BB+
ARBITREREEFINEOE
MR HETT

(i) B R

RECDHEREELRER
EREBEARIEEE I
SN ERFHEMELENE
BRBRAE - RHE=Z
B ARZEREBEAAR
BolE ERBREEXS
FEAZRANRERKRE -

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(@)

Currency risk

Majority of the revenue-generating operations of
the Group are transacted in RMB, which is not
freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’'s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign

currencies.

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure
at the end of reporting period to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated
using the spot rate at the year end date.



P 365 80 R P aE
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

29 ARl Be 4% B % A oA (%) 29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) B mBs (%) (d) Currency risk (continued)
(i)  EHE BRI () (i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)
NS TE H RS A E (AAR Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in
¥TFITE5) thousands of Renminbi)
ZE-REF
2016
uUsD RMB HKD
Sy AR BT
FEWE 5 R Trade receivables - - -
ReRkRE&EFEY Cash and cash
equivalents 11,796 4,486 2,535
B E SRR Trade payables (74,192) - (14,065)
FHEER Interest-bearing
borrowings - (590,549) -
BEREREER Net exposure arising
BEEEZFRR from recognised
HHE assets and liabilities (62,396) (586,063) (11,530)
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29  Ariph R B A% B R A oA (4F) 29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(@) FEWE R BE (A1) (d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) B R () (i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)
SN TE H R B A (AAR Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in
BT 25 (&) thousands of Renminbi) (continued)
ZT—hHF
2015
usb RMB HKD
ETT AR BT
FEUE 5 BRI Trade receivables 2,572 - -
ReRReFEY Cash and cash
equivalents 11,561 9,931 462
FETE 5 BR Trade payables (20,879) - (36,402)
FTEEBRK Interest-bearing
borrowings (23,128) (373,263) -
BEREREER Net exposure arising
BEEEZFRR from recognised
HHE assets and liabilities (29,874) (363,332) (35,940)
(i) BT (ii)  Sensitivity analysis
THREF - REBAAEM The following table indicates the instantaneous
b R MR change in the Group's loss or profit after
WMEHREAEEAERSE tax (and retained profits) that would arise if
RNE 8 E =7z B H R foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
28 BEARERTE significant exposure at the end of reporting
BRI R (RBFRF) period had changed at that date, assuming all
EEREZE R MED other risk variables remained constant. The
MERAERARMOE sensitivity analysis includes balances between
g MEEsREAE R RiE Group entities where the denomination of the
KT Be B AN B HE balances is in a currency other than the functional
FHE - currencies of the lender or the borrower.

KB (ZaM) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

ERZFINDTRAAEHE
REIMREBREE G
HOBRBREEIORN &
¥z RAOEZ27IMER
HEMARE BB AAE =
BRESARERELSME

BERTE -

RN 5 17 T R AR T
B0 RIS B R A
ARAEEEATEARE
HERIETE T AMERME
R - TS B
(RERFR) T2
et - o skm ==
— HE AR -

(d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) THIEPE T () (ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)
—E-RF 0%
2016 2015
HirBie E[GRTEE
i) BER
B/ BFEA BELF/ B
(TR it}Z (FE8) EFZ
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease)  profit after tax (decrease) loss after tax
in foreign and retained in foreign and retained
exchange rate profits exchange rate profits
AR RMB 5% 27,671 5% 20,914
-5% (27,671) -5% (20,914)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of
the instantaneous effects on each of the
Group entities’ profit or loss after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into RMB at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of reporting period for

presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
end of reporting period and had been applied to
each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency
risk for non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2015.
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(e)

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(e)

Business risk

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising
from changes in prices of livestock and livestock’s
agricultural produce and the change in cost and supply
of feed ingredients, all of which are determined by
constantly changing market forces of supply and
demand, and other factors. The other factors include
environmental regulations, weather conditions and
livestock diseases. The Group has little or no control
over these conditions and factors.

The Group is subject to risks relating to its ability
to maintain animal health status. Livestock health
problems could adversely impact production and
consumer confidence. The Group monitors the health
of its livestock on a regular basis and has procedures
in place to reduce potential exposure to infectious
diseases. Although policies and procedures have been
put into place, there is no guarantee that the Group will

not be affected by epidemic diseases.

The Group manages its exposure to fluctuation in the
price of the key raw materials used in the operations by
maintaining a large number of suppliers so as to limit
high concentration in a particular supplier.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

®

@

Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from any
unexpected increase in the prices of corn and soybean
meal commodities before committing to purchase
of raw materials and any unexpected decreases in
the prices of corn and soybean meal commodities
following completion of purchases. To protect the
Group from the impact of price fluctuations in corn
and soybean meal commodities, commodity derivative
contracts are entered into with independent futures
trading agents. Changes in the fair value of commodity
derivative contracts that economically hedge the price
fluctuations in corn and soybean meal commodities
and for which no hedge accounting is applied are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Fair value measurement

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

In accordance with IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement, the Group defines the three
levels of fair value hierarchy. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the

valuation technique as follows:
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(g) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(continued)

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement
date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured

using significant unobservable inputs

The Group's financial asset and liability measured
at fair value is commodity derivative contracts
and interest rate swaps.

The fair value of commodity derivative contracts
are measured using quoted prices from
independent trading agents without adjustments
and therefore fall into level 1. The commodity
derivative contracts were all closed as at 31
December 2016, thus no derivative financial
instruments was recognised on balance sheet as
at 31 December 2016.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(g) Fair value measurement (continued)

@

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(continued)

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the
estimated amount that the Group would receive
or pay to terminate the swap at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the floating
interest rates and coupon fixed interest rate, and
therefore fall into level 2. The fair value of interest
rate swaps as at 31 December 2016 is nil (2015:
RMB1,834,000).

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair value. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s and the Company's financial assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2016 and 2015.
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30 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 22 and note 24(a) contains information about the

assumptions relating to provisons and the fair value of share

options. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as

follows:

@)

(it)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and distribution
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer preference and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these estimations
at the end of reporting period to ensure inventory is
shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts resulting from inability of the customers
to make the required payments. The estimate is
based on the ageing of the trade receivable balance,
customer credit-worthiness, and historical write-off
experience. If the financial conditions of the customers
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher
than estimated.
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30 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)  Impairment of fixed assets

(iv)

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the fixed
assets at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
When indication of impairment is identified,
management prepares discounted future cashflow to
assess the differences between the carrying amount
and value in use and provided for impairment loss. Any
change in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecasts would increase or decrease in the provision
of the impairment loss and affect the Group's net asset
value.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the unused tax credits can be utilised, management'’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management's assessment is
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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31

2w e i g A IR O 31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
s —E-RE —T—RfF
Note 2016 2015
FRBEE Non-current assets
R QR E Investments in subsidiaries 1,668,909 1,360,934
FEMPT B A R RIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 537,618 599,360
2,206,527 1,960,294
mENERE Currentassets U
EAh R Y R TE Other receivables 7,011 7,441
FEUBT B A B 5RIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 55,025 130,657
RekReFEY Cash and cash equivalents 9,192 176,640
71,228 314,738
mEgE Current liabilities B
oAt B FIE Other payables 12,312 10,948
FHEMER Interest-bearing borrowings 289,113 58,700
FESTRAE A TFIE Amounts due to related parties 3,031 419
304,456 70,067
AOREFE Net current assets | lessz2e)  2aae7
EEFEARBDEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,973,299 2,204,965
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
FHEMER Interest-bearing borrowings 243,636 691,192
23636 691,192
EEFE Net assets 1,729,663 1,513,773
EAXRR#E Capital and reserves 26(a)
&N Share capital 97,920 97,920
& Reserves 1,249,383 1,140,695
BEEF Retained profit 382,360 275,158
TR 1AEE Total equity 1,729,663 1,513,773

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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33

MR RMEE

(B SEHEBI - UARETFITZ7)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

At 31 December 2016, the immediate parent and ultimate
controlling party of the Group are Waverley Star Limited and
GWE respectively, which are incorporated in BVI and the
Republic of China respectively.

GWE, which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange,
produces consolidated financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
Republic of China, which are available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements.

Of these developments, the following relate to matters

that may be relevant to Group's operations and financial
statements:
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33 CHEMiERRERE_Z A4 33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

+H =+ —H k4B NEW STANDARDS AND
5T ~ P B R GR R W AL 5 INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
= (4) YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

RT5 B HRER
IR SRR A
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

BN SERET R BIE - He sk - 155154 —E—+F—-HA—H
Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
WEEHEBIEN 2SR ZAELE - AEH - BR BI IR K AT LA ATt B2 535 —T—+tF—HA—H
Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: 1 January 2017

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

BIRREA R S HERISE 95 - 2 T A —ZE-N\F—-HA—H
IFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BRI RS SERIE 1658 - ZESAZHMA —E-N\F—-HA—H
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BRI RMELERNE 2R 2AEIE - ROEEZT - ROBERSE MR Z 2 5EREE —E-N\F—-HA—H
Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification 1 January 2018

and measurement of share-based payment transactions

BRI RS LERE 1658 HE —ZE-hF—H—H
IFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019

KB E M (M) BBR A & DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before
their effective date and which transitional approach to take,
where there are alternative approaches allowed under the
new standards.

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 3(c), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some
leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

— REFFH Annual Report 2016




A 35 8 R P e

(B SHEHEBIN - UARKEFITZ)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

33 CHEMiERRERE_Z A4 33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

T 2H = HORAE A RO
BT~ S T B R Y A B
()

B A s i O 6 16 9% o LA (40D

BHIBIRR M A | E ERIE 165 KT
EABRFELEARBBROGESH
BAMEEBARNTN - AW —B
ROBEBR B REERFE 165 - &M
ABTBE I BMEHERKLEHE -
R EERSET - AHABAR
RITRMEMESFEBUNT KA
BHOAR  RZEORS A
EBEAREKERREENRNRE
HRARGEEEAE  USHERIAE
MIEREIBE - RUFERZE
EkaEE  #FEASERAEEAE
5 KRB B B BT RET R M B R X R i
REBEEFE  MIERNBHAZER
AEREERRBELEHOMEENEE
AXHWRAERR - FREREEMNS
A AEATEEN S S E AR
RAREHES (AESA12EAKAT
F)REEBEENHEE  RZFER
T HeRxBEENEHARZRER
EXRWER -
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NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease. However, once IFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees
will account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability
at the present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset.
After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised
on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on
the timing of the expense recognition in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the lease. As disclosed
in note 27(b), at 31 December 2016 the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to RMB107,272,000 for properties and land
use rights, the majority of which is payable either between
1 and 5 years after the reporting date or in more than 5
years. Some of these amounts may therefore need to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-
of-use assets, once IFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine the
amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of IFRS 16, after taking
into account the applicability of the practical expedient
and adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated
between now and the adoption of IFRS 16 and the effects of

discounting.

The Group is considering whether to adopt IFRS 16 before
its effective date of 1 January 2019. However, early adoption
of IFRS 16 is only permitted if this is no earlier than the
adoption of IFRS 15. It is therefore unlikely that IFRS 16 will
be adopted before the effective date of IFRS 15, being 1
January 2018.
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HE+t-A=t-BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
“E-RE ZE-1f ZT-WF ZE-=F ZT—Zf

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

BEBAAREEET) Turnover (RMB million) 8,124 8,899 11,406 11,752 11,435

EF(ARBEETL) Gross profit (RMB million) 755 708 647 695 728

EFE (%) Gross profit margin (%) 9.3 8.00 5.70 5.90 6.40

FEEF/(BB) Profit/(loss) for the year

(AE¥RBET) (RMB million) 117 (111) (94) 31 112

4R/ (8) % (%) Net profit/(loss) margin (%) 1.44 (1.25) (0.82) 0.26 1.00
RPTHESEE NEIDER/  Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of

(BE)AREEET) the Company (RMB million) 54 (154) (108) (9) 72

BREMN/ (B8) Earnings/(loss) per share - - - - -

—ER(ARET) - basic (RMB) 0.05 (0.15) (0.11) (0.01) 0.07

- BE(ARET) - diluted (RMB) 0.05 (0.15) (0.11) (0.01) 0.07

R+=A=+-8
At 31 December

“E-xF ZZ-1F ZZ-WF ZT-=F CZT-ZF

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

AREBEER AREEET ARERERT ARKEET ARBEER

RMB million RMB million RMB million  RMB million  RMB million

BETE Net assets 1,761 1,705 1,864 1,984 1,988

BENE Total assets 3,660 3,725 3,928 3,948 3,696

IR Non-controlling interest 272 249 261 283 278

BERE Total liabilities 1,899 2,020 2,064 1,963 1,707

268 KA ES (Z2M) BFRE2AF DaChan Food (Asia) Limited
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